NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF HCLINFOSYSTEMS
LIMITED SCHEDULED TO BE HELD THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING AS
PER THE DIRECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, COURT
—V,NEW DELHI BENCH

[pursuant to order dated September 17, 2021 read with rectification order dated September
24,2021 and order dated October 7, 2021 passed by the National Company Law Tribunal,

New Delhi Bench) (Court - V) (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”)]

DETAILS OF THE MEETING:

Day Tuesday

Date November 30, 2021

Time 02:30 PM.

Mode* Meeting to be held through video conferencing

* Please note that there shall be no meeting requiring physical presence at a common venue in
view of the present circumstances on account of COVID-19 pandemic.

S. No.

Contents

Page No.

L.

Notice of meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited
(“the Company” or “Transferee Company”) pursuant to the order of
NCLT, New Delhi.

3-9

Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any.

10-33

Annexure-I - Scheme of Amalgamation between Digilife Distribution and
Marketing Services Limited and HCL Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

34-52

Annexure-II — Copies of order passed by the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal at New Delhi Bench, in Company Application No. CA(CAA)-
90/230/232/2020 dated September 17, 2021 along with rectification order
dated September 24, 2021 and order dated October 7, 2021.

53-65

Annexure-III —Intimation sent to the relevant stock exchanges with respect
to the Scheme.

66

Annexure-IV — Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited as per the provisions of
Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

67-68

Annexure-V — Report adopted by the Board of Directors of HCL Learning
Limited as per the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013.

69-70

Annexure-VI — Report adopted by the Board of Directors of HCL
Infosystems Limited as per the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

71-72




S. No. Contents Page No.

9. |Annexure-VII - Copy of audited financial statements of Digilife| 73-116
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited for the year ended March 31,
2021

10. | Annexure-VIII - Copy of un-audited financial statements (provisional) of| 117-118
Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited for the period ended
June 30, 2021

11. |Annexure-IX - Copy of audited financial statements of HCL Learning| 119-170
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021

12. |Annexure-X - Copy of un-audited financial statements (provisional) of| 171-172
HCL Learning Limited for the period ended June 30, 2021

13. | Annexure-XI - Copy of audited financial statements of HCL Infosystems| 173-233
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021

14. |Annexure-XII - Copy of un-audited financial statements of HCL| 234-238
Infosystems Limited for the period ended June 30, 2021

15. |Instructions for joining the meeting to be held through VC and for e-voting | Separate
during the meeting through electronic means. Leaf

Since the meeting is being held through video conferencing, physical attendance of unsecured

creditors have been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the

unsecured creditors will not be available for the meeting and hence proxy form and attendance

slip have not been annexed along with the notice of the meeting

Dated this October 18, 2021

Sd/-

Mr. Pushpendra Surana, CA
(Chairperson appointed for the meeting)
Place - New Delhi



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
NEW DELHI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA)-90/230/232/ND OF 2020
In the Matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
And

In the Matter of Sections 230 — 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements, Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between
Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956
Having its registered office at:
806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,
New Delhi — 110019
CIN: U72900DL2008PLC175605 (Transferor Company 1/ Applicant

And Company 1)
HCL Learning Limited

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956

Having its registered office at:

806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,

New Delhi — 110019 (Transferor Company 2/ Applicant
CIN: U80900DL2012PLC242907 Company 2)

And
HCL Infosystems Limited

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956

Having its registered office at:

806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,

New Delhi — 110019 (Transferee Company/ Applicant

CIN: L72200DL1986PLC023955 Company 3)
And

Their Respective Shareholders and Creditors



NOTICE OF THE TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE
UNSECURED CREDITORS OF HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated September 17, 2021 (date of pronouncement) read
with rectification order dated September 24, 2021 and order dated October 7, 2021, New Delhi
Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal in Company Application No. CA (CAA) No.
90/230/232/ND/2020 (“Order”) has directed a meeting to be held of the Unsecured Creditors
of HCL Infosystems Limited for considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without
modifications, following resolution for the amalgamation proposed to be made between Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited and HCL Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors through video conferencing (“VC”)
along with a facility for e-voting (during the meeting) in compliance with the provisions of
Section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to
time, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing
Regulations) and other applicable laws and regulations (including any statutory modification
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

In pursuance of the Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting
of the unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited will be held on Tuesday, November
30, 2021 at 02:30 P.M. (“Meeting”) through VC, following the operating procedures (with
requisite modifications as may be required) referred to in Circular No.14/2020 dated 8 April
2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13 April 2020, Circular No. 22/2020 dated 15 June 2020,
Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28 September 2020, Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31 December
2020 and Circular No. 10/2021 dated 23 June 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India. Further, there shall be no meeting requiring physical presence ata common
venue in view of the present circumstances on account of the COVID-19 pandemic. At such
day, date and time, the said unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited are requested to
attend the Meeting through VC.

Persons entitled to attend and vote may vote through e-voting facility made available during
the Meeting through VC. The facility of appointment of proxies by unsecured creditors will
not be available for such Meeting. However, a body corporate which is an unsecured creditor
is entitled to appoint a representative for the purposes of participating and / or voting during
the Meeting.

TAKE NOTICE that the following resolution is proposed under Section 230(3) of the Act
and the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of HCL
Infosystems Limited, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or
without modification(s), the Scheme.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules provided therein, the applicable
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 read with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Obligations™),
including any statutory modification or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force,
and subject to the relevant provisions of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the



Company and subject to the sanction by the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi
(“NCLT”), as the case may be and in accordance with the regulations/guidelines, if any,
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or any other relevant authority from
time to time to the extent applicable and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions
and sanctions of the appropriate authorities as may be necessary/required and subject to
such conditions as may be prescribed, directed or made by any of them while granting such
approvals, consents and permissions, the arrangement embodied in the proposed Scheme
of Amalgamation between Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited and
HCL Learning Limited with and into HCL Infosystems Limited and their respective shareholders
and creditors (“Scheme”) be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred
to as the “Board”, which term shall include any committee constituted by the Board of Directors
of the Company or any person(s) authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on
the Board of Directors of the Company by this Resolution), be and is hereby jointly/ severally
authorized to effectively implement the amalgamation embodied in the Scheme, make or accept
such modification(s) amendment(s), limitation(s) and/ or condition(s), if any, to the Scheme as
may be required by the Hon’ble Tribunal and/ or any other authority while sanctioning the
Scheme or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may
arise in giving effect to the Scheme or for any other such reason, as the Board may deem fit and
proper, to resolve all doubts or difficulties that may arise for carrying out the Scheme and to do
and execute all acts, deeds, matters and things as the Board may in its absolute discretion deems
necessary or expedient for giving effect to the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and are hereby jointly/ severally authorized to
sign, verify, execute and file any documents or authorize any person or committee constituted
for this purpose to sign, verify, execute and file any documents, including but not limited
to affidavits, petitions, pleadings, applications, certificates, declarations, undertakings,
vakalatnamas, proceedings, or any other documents incidental or necessary for making effective
the aforesaid Scheme.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT considering the COVID -19 situation, the Tribunal has
dispensed the Transferee Company from holding physical meeting of Unsecured Creditors and
ordered that voting of the unsecured creditors shall be conducted through e voting during the
meeting being convened.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4) read
with Sections 108 of the Companies Act, 2013; (ii) Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii) Rule 20 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014; and (iv) Regulation 44 and other applicable
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided the facility of voting through
e-voting (during the meeting being convened through VC) so as to enable the unsecured
creditors, to consider and approve the Scheme by way of the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly,
voting by unsecured creditors of the Company to the Scheme shall be carried out through
e-voting.



TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT the Tribunal has appointed Mr. Pushpendra Surana, CA
as the Chairperson, failing him, Mr. Suman Kumar Verma, CA as the Alternate Chairperson for
the meeting of unsecured creditors. The Tribunal has also appointed Mr. Ramkripal Sharma,
CS as the Scrutinizer for the meeting, including for any adjournment(s) thereof.

The abovementioned Scheme, if approved at the voting, will be subject to the subsequent
approval of the Tribunal.

This Notice and Explanatory Statement, the scheme along with the requisite documents is
placed on the website of the Company viz. https://www.hclinfosystems.in/investors/.

Copies of the said Scheme of Amalgamation and Explanatory Statement under Sections
230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any and
other relevant documents can be obtained free of charge on any working day (except Saturday,
Sunday and public holidays), from the date of this notice till the date of the meeting during
the business hours at the Registered Office of the Company. Also, any unsecured creditor
desirous of obtaining aforesaid details may send an email at cosec@hcl.com and the copy
of scheme along with other details as requested shall be mailed to the concerned unsecured
creditor.

Dated this October 18, 2021

Sd/-

Mr. Pushpendra Surana

(Chairperson appointed for the meeting)
Place - New Delhi



Notes:

1.

The notice in relation to the Tribunal convened meeting, together with documents
accompanying the same (collectively, the “Notice”) is being sent to all the unsecured
creditors, with outstanding balances of INR 1,00,000 or more as on March 31, 2021 (“Cut-
off date™).

The Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016 and other applicable provisions, if any setting out all material facts and reason for the
proposed resolution is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be
followed and in terms of the order dated September 17, 2021 (date of pronouncement)
read with rectification order dated September 24, 2021 and order dated October 7, 2021 of
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal at New Delhi (“Order””), HCL Infosystems
Limited is convening the Meeting through Video Conferencing (“VC”), and there shall be
no meeting requiring physical attendance of the unsecured creditors at a common venue.
The proceedings of the Meeting shall however be deemed to be conducted at the registered
office of HCL Infosystems Limited which shall be the deemed venue of the Meeting.

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) is appointed to provide the facility for
convening the meeting through VC; to handle and supervise the entire process of holding
the meeting through VC and e-voting during the meeting in a secured manner.

As the meeting shall be conducted through VC, the facility for appointment of Proxy by
the Unsecured Creditors is not available for this meeting and hence the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

Attendance of the Unsecured Creditors participating in the meeting through VC Facility
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum.

Pursuant to the order of NCLT read with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the Company offers e-voting facility during the
meeting to the unsecured creditors to enable them to vote electronically.

Creditors who would like to express their views or ask questions during the meeting
may register themselves as a speaker by sending a request from their registered email id
mentioning their name, address and PAN at cosec@hcl.com on or before Tuesday 23rd
November, 2021. Those Unsecured Creditors who have registered themselves as a speaker
will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. Speakers are
requested to submit their questions at the time of registration, to enable the Company to
respond appropriately.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
as appropriate, to ensure the smooth conduct of the meeting.

Only Unsecured Creditors of the Company may attend the meeting of Unsecured Creditors
through VC and vote through E-voting system



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
18.

The voting rights of eligible Unsecured Creditors shall be in proportion to the principal
amount due to them as on 31st March, 2021.

In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of unsecured creditors has
been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly,
the facility of appointment of proxies by unsecured creditors under Section 105 of the
Act will not be available. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the
Act, representatives of the institutional/ corporate unsecured creditors may be appointed
for the purpose of voting through e-Voting, for participation in the meeting through VC
Facility.

Institutional/ Corporate Unsecured Creditors (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc)
of HCL Infosystems Limited are entitled to appoint an authorized representative for the
purpose of participating and / or voting during the Meeting held through VC. Further, such
Institutional/ Corporate Unsecured Creditors (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.)
are required to send scanned certified copy (.pdf file) of the relevant resolution/ authority
letter / power of attorney together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
representatives who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer at iprksharma@gmail.com
from their registered email address with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.on , no later
than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the Meeting.

The authorized representative of the unsecured creditor (in case such unsecured creditor
is a corporate member) should additionally e-mail copy of their valid and legible identity
proof (.pdf file) issued by a statutory authority (i.e. Pan Card / Aadhaar Card / Passport /
Driving License / Voter ID Card) to the Scrutinizer at iprksharma@gmail.com from their
registered email address with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in, no later than 48 hours
before the scheduled time of the Meeting.

The Unsecured creditors may join the meeting through VC 15 minutes before the scheduled
time by following the procedure as mentioned below and the window for joining the VC
Facility will remain open till the closure of the meeting.

In terms of the directions contained in the Order, “the quorum of the meeting shall be as per
the number provided under Section 103 (i.e., Fifteen (15) Unsecured Creditors of HCL
Infosystems Limited). Further, the Order also directs that in case the required quorum for
the Meeting is not present at the commencement of the Meeting, then the Meeting shall
be adjourned by half an hour (i.e., 30 minutes) and thereafter, the persons present shall
be deemed to constitute the quorum, however, the requirement of Section 230(6) of the
Act shall be complied with regard to the agreement to the scheme by majority of persons
representing 75% in value.

The physical copies of this Notice are being sent to unsecured creditors by speed post, as
directed by the Tribunal. The Notice is also being displayed on the website of the Company,
Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed and depositories.

There will be one e-voting for every unsecured creditor as on March 31, 2021.

Details of persons to be contacted for issues relating to e-voting :



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Ms. Soni Singh, Assistant Manager, Email id — evoting@nsdl.co.in, contact Number —
1800 102 0990; 1800 22 4430.

The material documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be
open for inspection by the Unsecured Creditors at the Registered Office from the date of
this notice up to November 30, 2021 between 10:00 A.M to 5:00 P.M on all working days
(except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays) and shall also be available on the website
of the Company i.e. https://www.hclinfosystems.in/investors/.

Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the unsecured creditors, they shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently.

NCLT has appointed Mr. Ramkripal Sharma, CS as a Scrutinizer for the said NCLT
convened meeting of the unsecured creditors for the purposes of conducting the meetings
and e voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of e-voting (during the meeting) will be final. The
Scrutinizer appointed for Voting Process (i.e. e-voting [(during the meeting)]), will submit
his report to the NCLT appointed Chairman of the meeting or a person authorized by him
upon completion of scrutiny, in a fair and transparent manner, of voting not later than forty
eight hours from the conclusion of the voting. The Chairman or a person authorized by
him shall announce the results of e-voting and the results shall be placed on the website of
Company and at the Registered Office of the Company. The Resolution, if approved by the
requisite majority, shall be deemed to have been passed on 30" day of November , 2021,
through e-voting during the meeting by VC.

The Results will be posted on the website of the Company at https://www.hclinfosystems.
in/investors/ and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the
declaration of Results by the Chairman or a person authorized by him. The results shall
also be immediately forwarded to the stock exchanges and depositories.

In case of any query / concern/ grievance, the unsecured creditors may write to the Company

Secretary at cosec@hcl.com

The Notice convening the meeting, the date of dispatch of the Notice and the Explanatory
Statement, amongst others, will be published through advertisement in Delhi editions of
“Business Standard” both English and Hindi edition.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority in number representing 75% in value of
the unsecured creditors of the Company as on cut-off date i.e., 31st March, 2021, voting
through e-voting during the meeting, agree to the scheme.

The unsecure d creditors are requested to refer the instructions provided under “Instructions
for joining the meeting to be held through VC and for e-voting during the meeting through
electronic means” provided as a separate leaf along with this notice.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
NEW DELHI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. CA(CAA)-90/230/232/ 2020
In the Matter of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013)
And
In the Matter of Sections 230 — 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements, Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
And
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation between

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956

Having its registered office at:

806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,

New Delhi — 110019

CIN: U72900DL2008PLC175605 (Transferor Company 1/ Applicant
And Company 1)

HCL Learning Limited

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956

Having its registered office at:

806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,

New Delhi — 110019 (Transferor Company 2/ Applicant

CIN: U80900DL2012PLC242907 Company 2)
And

HCL Infosystems Limited

Company registered under the Companies Act, 1956

Having its registered office at:

806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,

New Delhi — 110019 (Transferee Company/ Applicant

CIN: L72200DL1986PLC023955 Company 3)

And
Their Respective Shareholders and Creditors

Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
and other applicable provisions, if any.

1. Pursuant to Order dated September 17,2021 (date of pronouncement) read with rectification
order dated September 24, 2021 and order dated October 7, 2021 passed by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal at New Delhi Bench, in Company Application No.
CA(CAA)-90/230/232/ 2020 filed jointly by Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services
Limited, HCL Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems Limited, separate meetings of
Unsecured Creditors and Equity Shareholders of HCL Infosystems Limited are being
conducted through video conferencing (“VC”) on Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at 02:30
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P.M. and 3:30 P.M. respectively for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving,
with or without modification(s), the amalgamation embodied in the proposed Scheme
of Amalgamation between Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, HCL
Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme” or “Scheme of Amalgamation™).

This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any.

The Scheme envisages the amalgamation between Digilife Distribution and Marketing
Services Limited, HCL Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems Limited pursuant to
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of the Scheme, which has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferor
Companies and Transferee Company at their Meeting, held on August 05, 2020 and August
06, 2020, respectively, is attached as Annexure - L.

Copies of order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal at New Delhi
Bench, in Company Application No. CA(CAA)-90/230/232/ 2020 dated September 17,
2021 (date of pronouncement) read with rectification order dated September 24, 2021 and
order dated October 7, 2021 is attached as Annexure — II.

Particulars of the companies
6.1.Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited (“Transferor Company 1”)

(a) The Transferor Company 1, a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems
Limited, was incorporated on March 19, 2008 under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferor Company 1 is
U72900DL2008PLC175605.

(b) The Registered Office of the Transferor Company 1 is situated at 806, Siddharth 96,
Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019 and having permanent account number (‘PAN’) as
AACCHO0076J. Email id of its authorized representative is gunjan.khanna@hcl.com .

(¢) Transferor Company 1 is an unlisted public limited company.

(d) Transferor Company 1 is primarily engaged in the business of value-added distribution
of technology, mobility and consumer electronic products.

(e) The main objects of the Transferor Company 1 are set out in Clause III (A) of its
Memorandum of Association. A few of the main objects as stated in the Memorandum
of Association of Transferor Company 1 are as under :

o To carry on in India or anywhere in the world all kinds of businesses of
manufacturers, assemblers, designers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters,
repairers, processors, dealers, retailers, traders, distributors, product engineers
or otherwise dealing in all types, varieties and kind of products and provide
services for specialty solutions including, but not limited to, safety, security
and surveillance devices, enterprise lighting products, equipments, products,
systems, services, applications and projects.

1



S

(g

(h)

* To carry in India or anywhere in the world the business of providing and
supplying end-to-end technology solutions including, but not limited to, various
security and surveillance devices, equipments, products, systems and system
integration.

*  TocarryoninIndia or anywhere in the world the business of remote infrastructure
management in the field of security and surveillance.

e To carry on In India or anywhere in the world the business of consulting,
certification, training and other advisory services in the field of security and
surveillance.

The Share Capital of Transferor Company 1 as per the audited balance sheet on March
31, 2021 is as under:

Particulars (Amount in Rs)
Authorised Share Capital
60,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 600,000,000
Total 600,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
56,050,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 560,500,000
Total 560,500,000

Subsequent to March 31, 2021 and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the
Board of Directors of the Transferor Company 1, there has been no change in the
issued, subscribed or paid up capital of the Transferor Company 1.

Post sanction of the proposed Scheme, the Transferor Company 1 shall stand dissolved
and its shares shall get extinguished.

Details of change of name of Transferor Company -1 during the last five years: There
has been no change in the name of Transferor Company -1 during the last five years.

(i) Details of change in registered office of Transferor Company -1 during the last five
years: There has been no change in Transferor Company -1’s registered office during
the last five years.

(j) Details of change in objects of Transferor Company -1 during the last five years: There
has been no change in Transferor Company -1’s objects during the last five years.

(k) Details of present Board of the Director of Transferor Company -1 along with their
addresses:

S. Name of the Designation Address
No. Director

1 |Dr. Nikhil Sinha Independent and 2416, Pine ST San Francisco CA,
Non-Executive Director |[USA 94115

2 |Mr. Pawan Kumar|Non-Independent  and|A-17, Dhruva Appartments Plot

Danwar Non-Executive Director |No. 43 Sector 13 Rohini
New Delhi 110085
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S. Name of the Designation Address
No. Director

3 |Mr. Dilip Kumar|Managing Director 241, Deerwood Chase, Nirvana
Srivastava Country, Sector 50, Islampur (97),
Gurgaon, South City-II, Gurgaon,
Haryana — 122018

4 |Ms. Rita Gupta Non-Independent  and |B-101, Sector — 14, Noida, Gautam
Non-Executive Director |Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh —

201301.
5 |Mr. Sundararajan  |Non-Independent  and|P 403, Omaxe Twin Tower, F-21
Mahalingam Non-Executive Director |Near Mahagun Maple, Sector 50,
Gautam Buddha Nagar

Noida Uttar Pradesh 201301

(I) Details of promoters of the Transferor Company-1: Transferor Company-1 is the
wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems Limited (Transferee Company), having
its registered office at 806, Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019.

(m) The amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company-1 as on March 31,
2021 is INR 48,047,734/-.

(n) Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons in relation to
Transferor Company-1

S. |Category of Stakeholder | Effect of the scheme on Stakeholder

1. |Promoter and Non- e Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited is a
Promoter shareholders wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems Limited.

e Accordingly, upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi,
and on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited in HCL
Infosystems Limited, all the equity shares held by HCL
Infosystems Limited and its nominees in the Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited shall stand
cancelled and extinguished as on Appointed Date. There
will be no issue and allotment of equity shares of HCL
Infosystems Limited upon the Scheme being effective.

e Therefore, there would not be any dilution of shareholding
of HCL Infosystems Limited and the interest of
shareholders (Promoters as well as Non-Promoters) of
the company remains unaffected.
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S. |Category of Stakeholder | Effect of the scheme on Stakeholder

2. |Creditors e The companies do not have any secured creditors.

e Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and on
transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife Distribution
and Marketing Services Limited in HCL Infosystems
Limited the unsecured creditors of Digilife Distribution
and Marketing Services Limited will become unsecured
creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited.

e Accordingly, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect
on the unsecured creditors of Digilife Distribution and
Marketing Services Limited.

3 |Key Managerial e The proposed Scheme would not impact key managerial
Personnel personnel since the Scheme is between Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, HCL
Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems Limited and their
shareholders and creditors, except to the extent of their
shareholdings. As discussed above, there is no effect of
the proposed Scheme on shareholders of these companies
since no shares are proposed to be issued pursuant to the

Scheme.
4 | Depositors/ Deposit e No effect. There are no depositors/Deposit Trustee
Trustee
5 |Debenture Holders/ e No effect. There is no Debenture Holders/ Debenture
Debenture Trustee Trustee
6 |Employees e No effect on the employees. On approval of the Scheme
of Merger, and with effect from the Appointed Date all
employees of the Transferor Company 1 shall be deemed
to have become the employees of Transferee Company
pursuant to Clause 13 of the Scheme of Amalgamation
7 | Directors e On the approval of the Scheme, Transferor Company 1

will merge into Transferee Company and Directors of
Transferor Company 1 will cease to hold their respective
positions.

(o) In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Transferor
Company-1, has adopted a report, inter- alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their
stakeholders. A copy of the report adopted by the Board of Transferor Company-1 is
enclosed as Annexure-1V.

(p) The audited financials for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and the unaudited
financials (provisional) for the period ended June 30, 2021 of Transferor Company-1 are
enclosed as Annexure-VII and Annexure-VIII respectively.
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(q9) No investigation proceedings are pending in relation to Transferor Company-1 under
Sections 235 to 251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 210 to 227 of the Act.

6.2 HCL Learning Limited (“Transferor Company 2”)

(a) The Transferor Company 2, a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems Limited,
was incorporated on September 28, 2012 under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferor Company 2 is
U80900DL2012PLC242907.

(b) The Registered Office of the Transferor Company 2 is situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru
Place, New Delhi - 110019 and having PAN as AADCHO0304E. Email id of its authorized
representative is komal.bathla@hcl.com

(¢) Transferor Company 2 is an unlisted public limited company.

(d) Transferor Company 2 is primarily engaged in selling of digitised educational content &
learning solutions.

(e) Themain objects ofthe Transferor Company 2 are set outin Clause III (A) of its Memorandum
of Association. A few of the main objects as stated in the Memorandum of Association of
Transferor Company 2 are as under:

*  To carry on in India or anywhere in the world all or any of the business or businesses
to own, run, manage, administer or otherwise acquire schools, colleges, education
institutions or training centers fur imparting training in the development, assemble,
operation, support, implement, administer, configure, install, maintain, diagnose and
repair of the computers hardware and training In information technology, software
solutions, information and data ban\<5, networking, server technology, data processing,
telecommunications and other allied activities.

*  To develop, handle, upgrade, licence, sub-licence and dcal with content for a wide
range of target audiences, businesses, corporates, schools, users in schools, higher
education institutions, universities, and professional educational settings and the
services which covers the entire length and breadth of education, learning and training
needs across schools, colleges, universities, individuals and enterprises,

* 1o carry on in India or anywhere In the world ell or any of the business of providing
and supply of end-ta-end turnkey advanced education solutions to schools, institutions
and universities across the country in the government and private sector and establish
the DigiSchool and DigiCampus for schools and colleges, to affiliate Itself, or associate
with other institutions, establish faculties and to select faculty members and decide
courses and teaching methods and strategies in order to ensure the more effective
education programmes.

(f) The Share Capital of Transferor Company 2 as per the audited balance sheet on March 31,
2021 is as under:

Particulars (Amount in Rs)
Authorised Share Capital
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000
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(2

(h)

(1)

G

(k)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
75,274 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 752,740
Total 752,740

Subsequent to March 31, 2021 and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the
Board of Directors of the Transferor Company 2, there has been no change in the issued,
subscribed or paid up capital of the Transferor Company 2.

Post sanction of the proposed Scheme, the Transferor Company 2 shall stand dissolved and
its shares shall get extinguished.

Details of change of name of Transferor Company -2 during the last five years: There has
been no change in the name of Transferor Company -2 during the last five years.

Details of change in registered office of Transferor Company -2 during the last five years:
There has been no change in Transferor Company -2’s registered office during the last five
years.

Details of change in objects of Transferor Company -2 during the last five years: There has
been no change in Transferor Company -2’s objects during the last five years.

Details of present Board of the Director of Transferor Company -2 along with their
addresses:
S. Name of the Designation Address
No. Director
1 |Mr. Neelesh Non-Independent House No. B-140 Sector -19 Noida
Agarwal and Non-Executive Gautam Buddha Nagar Noida Uttar

Director

Pradesh 201301

2 | Ms. Nina Puri

Non-Independent
and Non-Executive
Director

21-D, Friends Colony West Delhi
110065

3 |Dr. Nikhil Sinha

Independent and Non-
Executive Director

2416, Pine ST San Francisco CA,
USA 94115

4 |Mr. Dilip Kumar
Srivastava

Non-Independent
and Non-Executive
Director

241, Deerwood Chase, Nirvana
Country, Sector 50, Islampur (97),
Gurgaon, South City-1I, Gurgaon,
Haryana — 122018

5 |Mr. Sundararajan
Mahalingam

Non-Independent
and Non-Executive
Director

P 403, Omaxe Twin Tower, F-21 Near
Mahagun Maple, Sector 50, Gautam
Buddha Nagar, Noida Uttar Pradesh
201301

(1) Details of promoters of the Transferor Company-2: Transferor Company-2 is the wholly
owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems Limited (Transferee Company), having its registered
office at 806, Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

(m) The amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company-2 as on March 31,
2021 is INR 488,736,242/-.
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(n) Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons in relation to Transferor
Company-2

S. | Category of Effect of the scheme on Stakeholder

no | Stakeholder

1. |Promoter and Non- e HCL Learning Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
Promoter shareholders of HCL Infosystems Limited.

e Accordingly, upon the Scheme being sanctioned by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi, and on transfer and vesting of undertaking of
HCL Learning Limited in HCL Infosystems Limited,
all the equity shares held by HCL Infosystems Limited
and its nominees in the HCL Learning Limited shall
stand cancelled and extinguished as on Appointed
Date. There will be no issue and allotment of equity
shares of HCL Infosystems Limited upon the Scheme
being effective.

e Therefore, there would not be any dilution of
shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited and the
interest of shareholders (Promoters as well as Non-
Promoters) of the company remains unaffected.

2. | Creditors e The companies do not have any secured creditors.

e Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and on
transfer and vesting of undertaking of HCL Learning
Limited in HCL Infosystems Limited the unsecured
creditors of HCL Learning Limited will become
unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited.

e Accordingly, the Scheme will not have any adverse
effect on the unsecured creditors of HCL Learning

Limited.
3 |Key Managerial e Theproposed Scheme would notimpactkey managerial
Personnel personnel since the Scheme is between Digilife

Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, HCL
Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems Limited and
their shareholders and creditors, except to the extent
of their shareholdings. As discussed above, there is
no effect of the proposed Scheme on shareholders of
these companies since no shares are proposed to be
issued pursuant to the Scheme.

4 | Depositors/ Deposit e No effect. There are no depositors/Deposit Trustee
Trustee
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S. | Category of Effect of the scheme on Stakeholder
no | Stakeholder

5 |Debenture Holders/ e No effect. There is no Debenture Holders/ Debenture
Debenture Trustee Trustee
6 |Employees/ e No effect on the employees. On approval of the Scheme

of Merger, and with effect from the Appointed Date
all employees of the Transferor Company 2 shall be
deemed to have become the employees of Transferee
Company pursuant to Clause 13 of the Scheme of
Amalgamation

7 | Directors On the approval of the Scheme, Transferor Company 2
will merge into Transferee Company and Directors of
Transferor Company 2 will cease to hold their respective
positions.

(o) In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Transferor
Company-2, has adopted a report, inter- alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on their
stakeholders. A copy of the report adopted by the Board of Transferor Company-2 is
enclosed as Annexure-V.

(p) The audited financials for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and the un-audited
financials (provisional) for the period ended 30 June, 2021 of Transferor Company-2 are
enclosed as Annexure-IX and Annexure-X respectively.

(q) No investigation proceedings are pending in relation to Transferor Company-2 under
Sections 235 to 251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 210 to 227 of the Act.

6.3 HCL Infosystems Limited (“Transferee Company”)

(a) The Transferee Company was incorporated on April 17, 1986 under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956. The Corporate Identification Number of the company is
L72200DL1986PLC023955.

(b) The Registered Office of the Transferee Company is situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru
Place, New Delhi — 110019 and having PAN as AAACH2420C. Email id of its authorized
representative is komal.bathla@hcl.com .

(c) Transferee Company is a public listed company. The equity shares of Transferee Company
are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter called ‘NSE’) and BSE
Limited (hereinafter called ‘BSE’).

(d) Transferee Company is the holding company of Transferor Company 1 and Transferor
Company 2.

(e) Transferee company is primarily engaged in value-added distribution of technology,
mobility and consumer electronic products.

(f) Themain objects of the Transferee Company are set out in Clause I11 (A) of its Memorandum
of Association. A few of the main objects as stated in the Memorandum of Association of
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Transferee Company are as under :

» To carry on in India or anywhere in the world, all or any of the following business
or businesses as designers, assemblers, buyers, sellers, manufacturers, processors,
dealers, retailers, traders, stockiest, distributors, importers, exporters, remodelers,
installers, repairers, converters, overhaulers, representatives, developers, agents,
hirers, cleaners, storers and lessors and service providers as principals, agents,
contractors or otherwise deal in products and services in-

i. the field of engineering in all or any of the fields of electronics, electrical,
telecommunications, mechanical, chemical, solar and renewable energy, consumer
lighting products and civil engineering;

ii. all kinds of plant, machinery, equipment, apparatus, implements, parts,
components, spares, batteries, accessories, assemblies, sub-assemblies and other
devices and scientific or other instruments, precision tools, moulds and other
equipment (including, but not limited to and in particular computers, accessories
and peripherals thereof, digital products, electronic aids and appliances, copiers,
microfilm readers and processors and other reprographics equipment, hardware
and software for electronic and electro-mechanical and other related equipment
and other ancillary items) and any other articles, products, by-products, materials,
appliances, spares and accessories, apparatus and substitutes thereof;

(g) The Share Capital of Transferee Company as per the audited balance sheet on March 31,
2021 is as under:

Particulars (Amount in Rs)
Authorised Share Capital

5,52,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 1,105,000,000
500,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 50,000,000
Total 1,155,000,000
Issued and Subscribed Share Capital

329,210,928 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 658,421,856
Total 658,421,856
Paid-up Share Capital

329,209,928 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 658,419,856
Total 658,419,856

Subsequent to March 31, 2021 and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board
of Directors of the Transferee Company, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed
or paid up capital of the Transferee Company.

(h) Details of change of name of Transferee Company during the last five years: There has been
no change in the name of Transferee Company during the last five years.

(1) Details of change in registered office of Transferee Company during the last five years:
There has been no change in Transferee Company’s registered office during the last five
years.
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(j) Details of change in objects of Transferee Company during the last five years: There has
been no change in Transferee Company’s objects during the last five years.

(k) Details of present Board of the Director of Transferee Company along with their addresses :

S. |Name of the Director | Designation Address
No.

1 | Dr. Nikhil Sinha Independent and 2416, Pine ST San Francisco CA,
Non-Executive USA 94115
Director

2 | Mr. Kaushik Dutta Independent and 843, A-Block, Lavy Pinto , Asiad
Non-Executive Village, New Delhi, Khel Gaon,
Director South Delhi 110049

3 [Mr. Pawan Kumar Non-Independent A-17, Dhruva Appartments Plot No.

Danwar and Non-Executive |43 Sector 13 Rohini

Director New Delhi 110085

4 | Mr. Dilip Kumar Non-Independent 241, Deerwood Chase, Nirvana

Srivastava and Non-Executive | Country, Sector 50, Islampur (97),
Director Gurgaon, South City-II, Gurgaon,
Haryana — 122018

5 |Ms. Sangeeta Talwar | Independent and S-373, Greater Kailash - II, New
Non-Executive Delhi 110048
Director

6 |Ms. Ritu Arora Independent and H. NO. -272 Tatvam Villa, Sohna
Non-Executive Road, Sector—28, Gurgaon Haryana
Director 122018

(1) Details of promoters of the Transferee Company - Names of the Promoters of the Transferee
Company along with their addresses:

S. No. Name of Promoter
1 Mr. Shiv Nadar

Address
44, Friends Colony (East) Sriniwaspuri, South Delhi
Sriniwaspuri 110065
44, Friends Colony (East) Sriniwaspuri, South Delhi
Sriniwaspuri 110065
44, Friends Colony (East) Sriniwaspuri, South Delhi
Sriniwaspuri 110065
44, Friends Colony (East) Sriniwaspuri, South Delhi
Sriniwaspuri 110065
44, Friends Colony (East) Sriniwaspuri, South Delhi
Sriniwaspuri 110065

2 Ms. Kiran Nadar

3 Ms. Roshni Nadar
Malhotra

4 HCL Corporation
Private Limited

5 Vama Sundri
Investments (Delhi)
Private Limited

(m) The amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company as on 31 March, 2021
is INR 5,835,880,293/-.

(n) Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the following persons in relation to Transferee
Company:
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S. no

Category of Stakeholder

Effect of the scheme on Stakeholder

Promoter and Non-
Promoter shareholders

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services
Limited and HCL Learning Limited are wholly
owned subsidiaries of HCL Infosystems Limited.

Accordingly, upon the Scheme being sanctioned by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi, and on transfer and vesting of undertaking
of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services
Limited and HCL Learning Limited in HCL
Infosystems Limited, all the equity shares held by
HCL Infosystems Limited and its nominees in these
companies shall stand cancelled and extinguished
as on Appointed Date. There will be no issue and
allotment of equity shares of HCL Infosystems
Limited upon the Scheme being effective.

Therefore, there would not be any dilution of
shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited and the
interest of shareholders (Promoters as well as Non-
Promoters) of the company remains unaffected.

Creditors

The companies do not have any secured creditors.

Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and
on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited and
HCL Learning Limited in HCL Infosystems Limited
the unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystems
Limited shall remain the unsecured creditors of
HCL Infosystems Limited.

Accordingly, the Scheme will not have any
adverse effect on the unsecured creditors of HCL
Infosystems Limited.

Key Managerial Personnel

The proposed Scheme would not impact key
managerial personnel since the Scheme is
between Digilife Distribution and Marketing
Services Limited, HCL Learning Limited and
HCL Infosystems Limited and their shareholders
and creditors, except to the extent of their
shareholdings. As discussed above, there is no
effect of the proposed Scheme on shareholders of
these companies since no shares are proposed to be
issued pursuant to the Scheme.

Depositors/ Deposit
Trustee

No effect. There are no depositors/Deposit Trustee
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S. no | Category of Stakeholder |Effect of the scheme on Stakeholder

5 |Debenture Holders/|e No effect. There is no Debenture Holders/
Debenture Trustee Debenture Trustee
6 |Employees/ e Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble

National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and
on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
and HCL Learning Limited in HCL Infosystems
Limited the employees of HCL Infosystems
Limited shall remain the employees of HCL
Infosystems Limited. Therefore, there shall be no
effect on the employees.

7 | Directors e Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and
on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
and HCL Learning Limited in HCL Infosystems
Limited the Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited
shall remain the Directors of HCL Infosystems
Limited. Therefore, there shall be no effect on the
Directors.

(o) In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of
Transferee Company, has adopted a report, inter- alia, explaining the effect of the
Scheme on their stakeholders. A copy of the report adopted by the Board of Transferee
Company is enclosed as Annexure-VI.

(p) The audited financials for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021 and the un-audited
financials for the period ended 30 June, 2021 of Transferee Company are enclosed as
Annexure-XI and Annexure-XII respectively.

(q) No investigation proceedings are pending in relation to Transferee Company under
Sections 235 to 251 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Sections 210 to 227 of the
Act.

Relationship between the companies

The entire paid-up share capital of Transferor Company-1 and Transferor Company-2 is
held by Transferee Company i.e. Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Transferee Company.

Requirement of obtaining the valuation report and Fairness Opinion are not applicable
to the scheme, since, all the Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Transferee Company and upon the scheme becoming effective, the entire issued, subscribed
and paid up equity share capital of Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and hence no
new equity shares will be issued/ allotted by Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme
of Amalgamation.
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8.

10.

Rationale of the Scheme
That the rationale for entering into the Scheme of Amalgamation are as follows:

(a) Consolidation of businesses into one corporate entity which would result in operational
synergies for the group.

(b) Simplification of the corporate structure and reduction of legal entities; and

(c) Overall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and optimum
utilization of various resources.

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as
expressly otherwise agreed) of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company
arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing this Scheme and matters
incidental thereto shall be borne by the respective companies.

The Scheme is not prejudicial to the interests of the key managerial personnel, directors,
promoters, non-promoter members, creditors, employees of the Transferor Companies and
the Transferee Company, as no sacrifice or waiver is, at all, called from them nor are their
rights sought to be modified in any manner.

Salient features of the Scheme of Amalgamation

(a) The Scheme provides for the amalgamation of Digilife Distribution and Marketing
Services Limited and HCL Learning Limited into and with HCL Infosystems Limited
pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230-232 read with Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 involving inter-alia
approval of National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench.

(b) As per Clause 4.4, the Appointed Date means the 1st day of April, 2020 or such other
date as may be fixed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) of
judicature at Delhi, or such other competent authority, as may be applicable.

(c) “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi or
any other Bench of the NCLT having jurisdiction in relation to both the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee company.

(d) As per Clause 4.7 of the Scheme, Effective Date means the later of the dates on which
certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme is filed with the
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana by the Transferee company and the
Transferor Companies, as required under the provisions of the Act. Any references in
the Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or “effectiveness of the Scheme”
or “Scheme coming into effect” shall mean the “Effective Date”

(e) Asper Clause 7.1 of the Scheme, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with
effect from the Appointed Date (after giving effect to the clause 7 of this Scheme),
the Amalgamated Companies shall, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Companies Act, 2013 and sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunal and other
applicable provisions of the law for the time being in force and without any further
act, instrument or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to have been
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(2

(h)

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company on and from the Appointed Date,
on a going concern, in such a way that from the Appointed Date, the assets and liabilities
of the Transferor Companies along with all the rights, title, interest or obligations of the
Transferor Companies therein become that of the Transferee Company.

As per clause 15.1 of the Scheme, Since the Transferor Companies are the wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Transferee Company, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
all the equity shares held by the Transferee Company and its nominees in the Transferor
Companies shall stand cancelled and extinguished as on Appointed Date. Accordingly,
there will be no issue and allotment of equity shares of the Transferee Company to the
shareholders of the Transferor Companies upon the Scheme being effective.

Asperclause 16 ofthe scheme, with effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall account for the amalgamation of the
Transferor Companies in its books of accounts as per accounting treatment prescribed
under Indian Accounting Standard 103 — ”Business Combinations” specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, and any amendments issued thereunder and in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. M/s BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, the Statutory auditors of the Applicant Companies have certified that
the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme of Amalgamation is in conformity
with the provisions of the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

On the Scheme becoming effective, all employees, if any, of the Transferor Company
in service on the Effective Date shall be deemed to have become employees of
the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date without any break,
discontinuance or interruption in their service and on the basis of continuity of service,
and the terms and conditions of their employment with the Transferee Company shall
not be less favorable than those applicable to them with reference to the Transferor
Company on the Effective date.

This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

e The Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majority in number and value of such
classes of persons including the respective shareholders and secured and unsecured
creditors of each of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company except
to the extent exempted by the Tribunal;

*  The Scheme being approved by the Tribunal;

*  Suchothersanctions and approvals including sanctions of any statutory or regulatory
authority, as may be required in respect of the Scheme, being obtained;

» filing of the certified copies of the Order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme
under the applicable provisions of the Act with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi
and Haryana.

() All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as

expressly otherwise agreed) of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company
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11.
12.

13.

14.

arising out of or incurred in carrying out and implementing this Scheme and matters
incidental thereto shall be borne by the respective companies.

(k) The Scheme also provides for:

i. the manner of vesting and transfer of the properties of the Transferor Companies
to the Transferee Company;

ii. the transfer of all contracts, deeds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, insurance
policies, and other instruments of whatsoever nature, of the Transferor Companies
to the Transferee Company;

iii. the transfer of all legal proceedings by or against the Transferor Companies to the
Transferee Company;

iv. the manner in which the business is to be carried on by the Transferor Companies
until the Effective date.

The features set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme of
Amalgamation, the Equity Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors of the Company
are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme of Amalgamation to get themselves
fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

The proposed Scheme does not contemplate any corporate debt restructuring exercise.

The Pre scheme shareholding of Transferor Company-1 as on 30 September, 2021 would
be as detailed below:

Category of Shareholder No. of Shares held | Total Shareholding as a % of
total no. of Shares
Pre Scheme Pre Scheme
Promoters and Promoter 56,050,000 100%
Group
Total 56,050,000 100%

The Pre scheme shareholding of Transferor Company-2 as on 30 September, 2021 would
be as detailed below:

Category of Shareholder No. of Shares held | Total Shareholding as a % of
total no. of Shares

Pre Scheme Pre Scheme
Promoters and Promoter Group 75,274 100%
Total 75,274 100%

The Pre and Post amalgamation shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited shall be same as
the scheme provides for the merger of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
and HCL Learning Limited, into and with HCL Infosystems Limited and no shares are being
issued as part of the consideration. The Pre scheme shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited
based on 30 September, 2021 shareholding would be as detailed below:
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Category of No. of Shares held Total Shareholding as a % of
Shareholder total no. of Shares
Pre Scheme | Post Scheme | Pre Scheme | Post Scheme

Promoter and 20,70,31,161 | 20,70,31,161 62.89% 62.89%
promoter group
Total Shareholding 20,70,31,161 | 20,70,31,161 62.89% 62.89%
of Promoter &
Promoter’ Group (A)
Public Shareholding | 12,21,78,767 | 12,21,78,767 37.11% 37.11%
Total Public 12,21,78,767 | 12,21,78,767 37.11% 37.11%
Shareholding (B)
Total (A)+(B) 32,92,09,928 | 32,92,09,928 100% 100%

15. Details of Approval from regulatory authorities:

16.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Since the Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of Transferee Company
in accordance with Clause 7 of the SEBI Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March
10, 2017, the provisions of Regulation 37 and 94 of Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements shall not be applicable on the merger.

In terms of Proviso to Regulations 37(6) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, HCL Infosystems
Limited has filed the draft Scheme with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
and BSE Limited on September 08, 2020 for the purpose of intimation. A copy of
intimation sent to the relevant stock exchanges with respect to the Scheme is attached
herewith as Annexure-II1.

The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company have jointly made an application
before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench for the sanction
of the Scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

A copy of the Scheme along with the necessary statement under Section 230 read with
Rules 6 and 8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016, will be forwarded to the Registrar of Companies, in terms of the order
dated September 17, 2021 (date of pronouncement) along with rectification order dated
September 24, 2021 and order October 7, 2021 of the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, New Delhi Bench.

The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company are required to seek approval
/ sanction / no-objection from certain regulatory and governmental authorities for
the Scheme such as a concerned Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Official
Liquidator, Income Tax department and will obtain the same at the relevant time.

The Directors of the Company may be deemed to be concerned and/ or interested in the
Scheme only to the extent of their Shareholding in the Transferee Company or to the
extent the said Directors are common Directors in the Transferor Companies/ Transferee
Company, or to the extent the said Directors are the partners, directors, members of
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the Transferor Companies/ Transferee Company, firms, association of persons, bodies

corporate and/or beneficiary of trust, that hold Shares in Transferor Companies/ Transferee
Company.

17.

The Board Meetings of Transferor Companies were held on 05" August 2020 and Transferee

Company on 06" August 2020. All the directors present in the Board Meetings, voted in the
favour of the Scheme. (for details refer point nos. 18, 19 and 20)

18.

Details of Directors of Transferor Company 1 who voted in favour/against/did not participate

on resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors of Transferor Company 1 on
05" August, 2020 are given below:

S.
No.

Name of Director

Voted for the
Resolution

Voted Against
the Resolution

Did not Vote or
Participate

Kaushik Dutta

Dilip Kumar Srivastava

Pawan Kumar Danwar

Sundarajan Mahalingam

Rita Gupta

2212122

N ENS

Nikhil Sinha (did not

attended the meeting)

19. Details of Directors of Transferor Company 2 who voted in favour/against/did not
participate on resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors of Transferor
Company 2 held on 05" August, 2020 are given below:

S. Name of Director Voted for the | Voted Against | Did not Vote
No. Resolution |the Resolution | or Participate
1. |Dilip Kumar Srivastava \
2. |Sundarajan Mahalingam \
3 | Vikas agarwal \
4 | Nikhil Sinha (did not attended the
meeting)
5 |Neelesh Agarwal (did not attended
the meeting)
6 |Nina Puri (did not attended the
meeting)

20. Details of Directors of Transferee Company who voted in favour/against/did not participate
on resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors of Transferee Company on
06" August, 2020 are given below:

Name of Director

Voted for the
Resolution

Voted Against
the Resolution

Did not Vote or
Participate

Nikhil Sinha

Dilip Kumar Srivastava

Kaushik Dutta

Pawan Kumar Danwar

Ritu Arora

Sangeeta Talwar

22|22 |2 |2 |




21. The details of the directors / and Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Transferor
Company 1 and their shareholding in the Transferor Company 1, Transferor Company 2
and Transferee Company as on 30 September, 2021 are as follows:

S. | Name of Address Position Shares in Shares in Shares in
No. | Director / Transferor | Transferor | Transferee
KMP Company 1 | Company 2 | Company
1. |Kaushik 843-A, Block Director NIL NIL 4000 shares
Dutta Lavy Pinto, Asiad
Village, New
Delhi, Khel Gaon,
South Delhi -
110049
2. | Dilip Kumar | Deerwood Managing NIL NIL NIL
Srivastava  |chase, 241, Director
Nirvana Country,
Southcity 11,
Gurgaon
3 |Pawan A-17, Dhruva Director NIL NIL NIL
Kumar Apts,PL-43, Sec-
Danwar 13, Rohini, Delhi
4 |Sundarajan |P-403, Omaxe Director NIL NIL NIL
Mabhalingam | Twin Towers,
F-21, Sector-
50, Noida, UP-
201301
5 |Rita Gupta |B-101, Sector-14, |Director Holds 1 Holds 1 3698 Shares
Noida, 201301 share as the | share as the
nominee nominee
sharcholder | sharcholder
of HCL of HCL
Infosystems | Infosystems
Limited Limited
6 |Nikhil Sinha | 2416 Pine ST San | Director NIL NIL NIL
Francisco CA
94115 US
7 | Gunjan D-3/10, (G.F), Company NIL NIL NIL
Khanna Sector — 16, Secretary
Rohini — 110089
8 | Anuj K-32, 2" floor, Chief NIL NIL NIL
Minocha Kirti Nagar, Delhi | Financial
(resigned - 110015 Officer
wef 11®
December,
2020)
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S. |Name of Address Position Shares in Shares in Shares in
No. | Director / Transferor | Transferor | Transferee
KMP Company 1 | Company 2 | Company
9 |Gaurav 136, Gagan Vihar |Chief NIL NIL NIL
Bhalla Extension, East Financial
(appointed | Delhi — 110051. | Officer
w.e.fom
June, 2021)

22. The details of the directors / KMP of the Transferor Company 2 and their shareholding
in the Transferor Company 1, Transferor Company 2 and Transferee Company as on
30 September, 2021 are as follows:

S. [Name of Address Position | Shares in Shares in Shares in
No. |Director Transferor | Transferor | Transferee
Company 1 | Company 2 | Company
1. |Dilip Kumar |Deerwood chase, |Director NIL NIL NIL
Srivastava  |241, Nirvana
Country, Southcity
11, Gurgaon
2. |Sundarajan |P-403, Omaxe Director NIL NIL NIL
Mabhalingam |Twin Towers,
F-21, Sector-50,
Noida, UP-201301
3 |Vikas 77, Engineers Director NIL NIL NIL
agarwal Estate, Plot No.
(resigned 21, I. P. Extension
w.e.f30% Patparganj,
June, 2021) |Shakarpur New
Delhi 110092
4 |Nikhil Sinha {2416 Pine ST San |Director NIL NIL NIL
Francisco CA
94115 US
5 |Neelesh B-140, Sector-19, |Director NIL NIL NIL
Agarwal Noida, 201301
6 [Nina Puri 21-D, Friends Director NIL NIL NIL
Colony (West),
New Delhi, 110065,
Delhi, India
7 |Komal Bathla|49/6, Lal Quarters, |Company NIL NIL NIL
(Resigned Lohia Nagar, Secretary
w.e.fon Ghaziabad, Uttar
February, Pradesh - 201001
2021)

23. The details of the directors and KMP of the Transferee Company and their shareholding
in the Transferee Company and Transferor Companies as on 30 September, 2021 are as
follows:
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S. |Name of |Address Position Equity Equity Equity
No. | Director/ Shares Shares Shares
KMP Held in Held in Held in
Transferee | Transferor | Transferor
Company | Company 1 | Company 2
1 | Nikhil 2416 Pine ST San | Director NIL NIL NIL
Sinha Francisco CA
94115 US
2 |Sangeeta |S-373, Greater Director NIL NIL NIL
Talwar Kailash, Part-
II,New Delhi
-110048, Delhi
3 | Kaushik 843-A, Block Director  |4000 Shares NIL NIL
Dutta Lavy Pinto, Asiad
Village, New
Delhi, Khel Gaon,
South Delhi -
110049
4 | Pawan A-17, Dhruva Director NIL NIL NIL
Kumar Apts,PL-43, Sec-
Danwar 13, Rohini, Delhi
5 | Dilip Deerwood chase, |Director NIL NIL NIL
Kumar 241, Nirvana
Srivastava | Country, Southcity
11, Gurgaon
6 |RituArora |H. No. 272, Director NIL NIL NIL
Tatvam Villa,
Sohna Road,
Sec-48, Gurgaon
122001
7 | Sushil D-166/44, Sector | Company NIL NIL Holds 1
Kumar 50, Noida, Uttar Secretary share as the
Jain (Super | Pradesh — 210301 nominee
anuuated shareholder
w.e.f. 31¢ of HCL
March, Infosystems
2021) Limited
8 | Kapil A-21, Sector-19, | Chief NIL Holds 1 Holds 1
Kapur Raghunathpur, Financial share as the | share as the
(resigned | Gautam Buddha |Officer nominee nominee
w.ef31 Nagar, Noida, shareholder | shareholder
May, 2021) | Uttar Pradesh - of HCL of HCL
201301 Infosystems | Infosystems
Limited Limited
9 | Vinod B 3/338, Paschim | Manager NIL NIL NIL
Pulyani Vihar, Delhi -
(resigned 110063
w.e.f30"
April, 2021)
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

S. |Name of |Address Position Equity Equity Equity
No. | Director/ Shares Shares Shares
KMP Held in Held in Held in
Transferee | Transferor | Transferor
Company | Company 1 | Company 2
10 | Komal 49/6, Lal Quarters, | Company NIL NIL NIL
Bathla Lohia Nagar, Secretary
(appointed | Ghaziabad, Uttar
w.e.f 1% Pradesh - 201001
April,
2021)
11 |Raj C-155, Sector 72, | Manager NIL NIL NIL
Sachdeva |Noida, Gautam
(appointed | Buddha Nagar,
w.e.f 1% Noida, Uttar
May, 2021) | Pradesh — 210304
12 | Alok Sahu | 107, G.F,, Chief NIL Holds 1 Holds 1
(appointed | Ashiana Greens, |Financial share as the | share as the
w.e.f 15 Ahinsa Khand-2, |Officer nominee nominee
June, 2021) | Indirapuram, shareholder | shareholder
Ghaziabad, uttar of HCL of HCL
Pradesh — 201014 Infosystems | Infosystems
Limited Limited

None of the Directors, Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel, their relatives, Creditors and
Employees of the Transferee Company respectively have any material interest, financial
or otherwise, in the Scheme, save to the extent of shares held by them in the Transferee
Company, if any.

This statement may also be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230-
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if
any.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, the
Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority in number representing 75% in value of
the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company, attending the meeting and voting by
e-voting, agree to the Scheme.

On the Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the Shareholders and Unsecured
Creditors, the Companies shall file a joint petition with the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench for sanction of the Scheme under Sections 230-232 read
with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other
applicable provisions of the Act.

It is further provided that there are no other contracts or agreements that are material to the
proposed scheme.

It is confirmed that the copy of the Scheme, as approved by Board, is being filed with the
Registrar of Companies, New Delhi and Haryana and other requisite authorities.
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30.

31.

32,

33

In compliance with the requirement of Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016,
notice in the prescribed form and seeking approvals, sanctions or no-objections shall be
served to the concerned regulatory and government authorities for the purpose of the
proposed Scheme.

No other approvals from regulators or governmental authorities are required at this stage
nor any have been received or are pending in respect of the proposed Scheme.

No winding up petition is pending against the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Companies.

. The following documents are available for inspection by the Equity Shareholder or
Unsecured Creditors of the company at the Registered Office from the date of this notice
up to and including the date of the Meeting between 9.00 A.M to 5.00 P.M on all working
days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays)

(a) Copy of the Company Application No. CA(CAA)-90/230/232/2020.

(b) Copies of Order dated September 17, 2021 along with rectification order dated
September 24, 2021 and order dated October 7, 2021 of the National Company
Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench passed in Company Application No. CA(CAA)-
90/230/232/ 2020 directing the convening of the Meetings of the Equity Shareholders
and Unsecured Creditors of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited,
Meetings of the Equity Shareholders of HCL Learning Limited and Meetings of the
Equity Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors HCL Infosystems Limited.

(c) Copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation between Digilife Distribution and Marketing
Services Limited and HCL Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors

(d) Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and
Transferor Companies.

(e) Copy ofthe audited accounts of the Transferee Company and Transferor Companies for
the financial year ending 31 March, 2021 along with un-audited accounts (provisional)
for the period ended 30 June, 2021.

(f) Copy of the extracts of the Board Resolution dated August 05, 2020 and August 06,
2020 of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company respectively approving
the Scheme;

(g) Copy of certificate issued by M/s BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, the
Statutory auditors of the Applicant Companies certifying that the accounting treatment
proposed in the Scheme of Amalgamation is in conformity with the provisions of the
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(h) Copy of Board report adopted by the Applicant Companies in accordance with the
provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

32



(i) Register of Director’s and Key Managerial Personnel’s shareholding in Transferee
Company

(j) The soft copies of the Notices of the meetings, explanatory statements and other
relevant documents are also uploaded on the following websites —

Particulars Website
HCL Infosystems Limited https://www.hclinfosystems.in/investors/
BSE Limited https://www.bseindia.com
National Stock Exchange of India Limited https://www.nseindia.com/
NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com

Dated this October 18, 2021

Sd/-

Komal Bathla

(Authorized Signatory)

Place - New Delhi

Registered Office: 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019
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Annexure-I

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

OF

DIGILIFE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING SERVICES LIMITED
(TRANSFEROR COMPANY 1)

AND

HCL LEARNING LIMITED
(TRANSFEROR COMPANY 2)

WITH

HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED
(TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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PREAMBLE

DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES AND THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as “DDMS” or
“Amalgamating Company 1” or “Transferor Company 17) was incorporated on the 19" day
of March 2008 as a company limited by shares. The Corporate Identification Number of the
Transferor Company 1 is U72900DL200SPLC175605.

The Registered Office of the Transferor Company 1 is situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place.,
New Delhi — 110019 and having permanent account number (‘PAN") as AACCHOOTS]. Email id

of its authorized representative is sushiljain@hcl.com.

Transferor Company 1 is primarily engaged in the business of value-added distribution of

technology. mobility and consumer electronic products.

HCL Learning Limited (hercinafter referred to as “HCL Learning” or “Amalgamating
Company 27 or “Transferor Company 27) was incorporated on the 28" day of September 2012
as a company limited by shares. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferor Company
2is US0900DL2012PLC242907,

The Registered Office of the Transferor Company 2 is situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019 and having PAN as AADCHO304E. Email id of its authorized representative

is sushiljain{@hcl.com.

Transferor Company 2 is primarily engaged in selling of digitised educational content & leaming

solutions,

HCL Infosystems Limited (hereinafter referred to as “HIL” or “Amalgamated Company” or
“Transferee Company™), was incorporated on the 17" day of April 1986 as a company limited
by shares. The Corporate Identification Number of the company is L72200DL1986PLC023955,
The equity shares of HIL arc listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter
called *“NSE’) and BSE Limited (hercinafter called *BSE”)

The Registered Office of the Transferee Company is situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place.
New Delhi — 110019 and having PAN as AAACH2420C. Email id of its authorized

representative is sushiljaini@hcl.com.

Transferee Company is primarily engaged in value-added distribution of technology, mobility and

consumer electronic products.
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PURPOSE AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

This scheme of amalgamation (*Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme™) provides for the
amalgamation of Transferor Company 1 and Transferor Company 2 {Collectively referred to as
“Transferor Companies™) into and with Transferece Company in the manner set out in the
Scheme. in accordance with sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 and the rules or regulations framed thereunder.

The Transferor Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Transferee Company. The
Scheme seeks to undertake the amalgamation and conselidation of DDMS and HCL Learning
with HIL.

The proposed amalgamation of Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company is driven by

the following objectives and is likely to result, inter alia, in the following advantages:

{a) Consolidation of businesses into one cerporate entity which would result in operational

synergies for the group.
{b) Simplification of the corporate structure and reduction of legal entities; and

(e} Ovwerall reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure and optimum

utilization of various resources.

The Scheme would, thus, have beneficial results for Transferor Compantes and Transferee
Company, their shareholders, and all concerned and will not be prejudicial to the interests of any

concerned sharcholders or creditors or general public at large.

Accordingly, to achieve the above objectives, the Board of Directors of Transferor Companics
and Transferee Company have considered and proposed to make requisite application(s) and/or
petition(s) before the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi under sections 230 to 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as may be in force) for the sanction of

this Scheme to amalgamate the Transferor Companies into and with Transferee Company.
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PARTS OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:

Part I, which deals with the definitions and interpretations of the terms used in the Scheme; the
Effective Date of the Scheme; and the Share Capital of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company.

Part I, deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with HIL, by absorption, in
accordance with Section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be applicable.

Part I1, which deals with the consideration and matters relating to accounting,

Part IV, which deals with the general terms and conditions that would be applicable to the
Scheme.

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally

connected herewith.
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4.1

4.3

44

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

PART -1
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following words and

expressions shall have the following meaning:

"Accounting Standards" means the accounting standards as formulated by the Central

Government as recommended by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

“Act™ or “The Act™ mcans the Companics Act, 2013, to the extent applicable, including the
rules and regulations made thereunder and will include any statutory modifications, re-enactments

and / or amendments thereof for the time being in force.

“Applicable Laws™ mean any statute, law, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, rule of law,
order, decree, ruling, bye-law, approval of any governmental authority, directive, guideline,
policy, clearance, requirement or other governmental restriction or any similar form of decision
of or determination by, or any interpretation or administration having the force of law of any of
the foregoing by any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the matter in question,

whether in effect as of the date of this Scheme or at any time thereafter.

"Appointed Date" means the 1% day of April, 2020 or such other date as may be fixed by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) of judicature at Delhi, or such other

competent authority, as may be applicable.

"Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Transferor Companics or
the Transferee Company, as the case may be and includes any committee thereof or persons

authorised by the Board or committee thercof,
“BSE” shall mean BSE Limited.

"Effective Date” means the later of the dates on which certified copy of the order of the NCLT
sanctioning this Scheme is filed with the Remstrar of Companies. NCT of Delhi and Haryana by
the Transferee Company and the Transferor Companies, as required under the provisions of the
Act. Any references in the Scheme to "upon the Scheme becoming effective” or "effectiveness of

the Scheme" or "Scheme coming into cffect” shall mean the "Effective Date”.

"NCLT™ or "Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal., New Delhi or any other
Bench of the NCLT having jurisdiction in relation to both the Transferor Companies and the

Transferee Company.
“NSE” means the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

"Scheme of Amalgamation™ or "Scheme" means this scheme of amalgamation involving the

amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferce Company as approved, with or
z s = Wil kg =
without any amendments/modific /g_%
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4.13

415

“SEBI" means Sccurities and Exchange Board of India.

“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

“Transferee Company™ or “Amalgamated Company™ or “HIL™ means HCL Infosystems
Limited having its Corporate Identification Number L72200DL1986PLC0O23955, and registered
office situated at 806, Siddharth 96, WNehru Place, New Delhi — 110019 and having PAN as
AAACH2420C and Email id of its authorized representative is sushiljain@hcl.com .

“Transferor Company 17 or “Amalgamating Company 1”7 or “DDMS”™ means Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited having its Corporate Identification Number
UTZ900DLZ008PLC175605, and registered office situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place,
MNew Delhi — 110019 and having PAN as AACCHO076J and Email id of its authorized

representative is sushiljain@hel.com.

“Transferor Company 2" or “Amalgamating Company 2" or “HCL Learning™ means HCL
Learning Limited having its Corporate Identification Number US0900DL2012PLC242907, and
registered office situated at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehmu Place, New Delhi — 110019 and having
PAN as AADCHO304E and Email id of its authorized representative is sushiljain@hcl.com.

“Transferor Companics™ or “Amalgamating Companies™ means DDMS and HCL Learning

collectively, which are proposed to be amalgamated into HIL.

EXPRESSIONS NOT DEFINED IN THIS SCHEME

The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme, shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them
under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, or any

statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

DATE OF COMING INTO EFFECT

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) approved or imposed or
directed by the Tribunal or any other appropriate authority shall come into legal operation from

the Appointed Date, but the same shall become effective on and from the Effective Date.
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6.

6.1

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Transferor Company 1 as on March 31, 2020 iz ag under:

Particulars {Amount in Rs)
Authorised Share Capital

60,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 600,000,000
Total 600,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

56,050,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 560,500,000
Total 560,500,000

Subsequent to March 31, 2020 and ull the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Transferor Company 1, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed or paid
up capital of the Transferor Company 1.

The share capital of the Transferor Company 2 as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Particulars (Amount in Rs)
Authorised Share Capital
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
75.274 Equity Shares of Rs,10/- ¢cach 752,740

| Total 752,?40];

Subsequent to March 31, 2020 and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Transferor Company 2, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed or paid

up capital of the Transferor Company 2.

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Particulars | (Amount in Ks)
Authorised Share Capital :
$,52.500,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each 1,105,000,000
500,000 Preference Shares of Ks.100/- cach 50,000,000
Total 1,155,000,000
Issued and Subscribed Share Capital
I 329,210,928 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- cach 658,421 856
|' Total 658,421 856

fl Paid-up Share Capital
|

i 329.209.928 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- cach 658.419,.856
| Total | 658,419,856

Subsequent to March 31, 2020 and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of

Directors of the Transferee Company, there has been no change in the issued, subscribed or paid
up capital of the Transferee Commnm

: § ()
2 qf
%0 o
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The entire paid up share capital of the Transferor Companies is held by the Transferce Company

and its nominees.

PART —1II

AMALGAMATION OF DIGILIFE DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING SERVICES

7.1

LIMITED AND HCL LEARNING LIMITED WITH AND INTO
HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date (after giving
effect to the clause 7 of this Scheme), the Amalgamated Companies shall, pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and sanction of this Scheme by the
Tribunal and other applicable provisions of the law for the time being in force and without any
further act, instrument or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company on and from the Appointed Date, on a going
concern, in such a way that from the Appointed Date, the assets and liabilities of the Transferor
Companies along with all the rights, title, interest or obligations of the Transferor Companies

therein become that of the Transferee Company.

Without prejudice to sub-clausc 7.1 above. upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and with

effect from the Appointed Date. the transfer and vesting shall be effected as follows

(a} All the movable assets including investments, cash in hand, bank balances and
deposits any, of the Transferor Companies capable of being transferred by delivery,
shall be handed over by physical delivery to the Transferee Company along with such
other documents as may be necessary towards the end and intent that the property
therein passes to the Transferee Company on such delivery, without requiring any
deed or instrument of conveyance for the same and shall become the property of the

Transferce Company accordingly.

(b) All debts, loans and advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received. if any, with Government, Customs, Port, local and other authorities and
bodics, customers and other persons, outstanding and receivables of the Transferor
Companies other than the movable assets specified in sub-clause (a) above, shall on
and from the Appointed Date stand transferred to and wvested in the Transferee
Company without any notice or other intimation to the debtors (although the
Transferee Company may, if so deems appropriate, give notice to the third party that
the debts, outstanding and reccivables do stand transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company), and the debtors shall be obliged to make payments to the

Transferce Company on and after the Effective Date.

(c) All immovable properties including land together with the buildings and structures

standing thereon or under construction (whether free hold. leasehold, leave and
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thereto and all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and interest in connection
with the said immovable properties of the Transferor Companies, if any, shall be
vested in and transferred to and/or be deemed to have been and stand transferred to
and wvested in the Transferec Company and shall belong to the Amalgamated
Companies in the same and like manner as was entitled to the Transferor Companies.
The mutation of the title to the immowvable properties shall be made and duly
recorded by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme and
upon the Scheme becoming effective, in accordance with the terms hereof, in favour
of the Transferee Company. Any inchoate title or possessory title of the Transferor
Companies shall be deemed to be the title of the Transferee Company.

All the licenses, permits, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives (including
service tax refunds and accumulated Cenvat credit), tax deferrals and benefits
(including income tax, sales tax. customs duty, advance tax, withholding tax
reccivables, brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation both under books
and Income Tax Act, other tax exemptions and/or deferments, amount of tax
deposited under protest, bonds with the custom authorities), concessions, grants,
rights, claims, leases, tenaney rights, special status and other benefits or privileges
enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by the Transferor Companies and all
rights and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue te the Transferor
Companies, whether before or after the Appointed Date, shall, without any further
act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and or be deemed to
have been transferred to and vested in and be available to Transferee Company so as
to become as and from the Appointed Date licenses, permits, approvals, permissions,
registrations, incentives (including service tax refunds and accumulated Cenvat
credit), tax deferrals and benefits (including income tax, sales tax, customs duty,
advance tax, withholding tax receivables, concessions, rights, claims, leases, tenancy
rights, special status and other benefits or privileges) of the Transferee Company and

shall remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions.

All assets and properties including licenses, registrations, copyrights, patents, trade
names, trademarks, any other intellectual property. whether registered or otherwise,
of the Transferor Companies as on the Appointed Date, whether or not included in
the books of the Transferor Companies, shall be deemed to be and shall become the
assets and properties of the Transferee Company by virtue of and in the manner
provided in this Scheme without any further act, instrument or deed, and stand
transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in

the Transferee Company upon the coming into cffect of this Scheme.

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties, indemnifications given pursuant to
any agreement entered into by the Transferor Companics and obligations of every
kind, nature and description of the Transferor Companies shall also, without any

further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the

Transferee Company so as to become as and from th
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who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts,
liabilities, contingent liabilitics, duties, indemnifications and obligations have arisen,

in order to give effect to the provisions of this subclause.

a) The transfer and vesting of the Transferor Companies as aforesaid, shall be subject to
the existing securities, charges and mortgages, if any. subsisting over or in respeet of
the property and assets or any part thereof of the Transferor Companies. Provided
however that the securities, charges and mortgages (if any subsisting)} over and in
respect of the asscts or any part thereof of the Transferee Company shall continue
with respect 10 such assets or part thercof and this Scheme shall not operate to
enlarge such securities, charges or morigages to the end and intent that such
securities, charges and mortgages shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of

the assets of the Transferor Companies vested in the Transferee Company.

Provided further that this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any
loan., depesit or facility created by the Transferor Companies which shall vest in the
Transferee Company by virtue of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies
with the Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged to
create any further or additional security therefore after the Scheme has become

operative.

All assets, of whatsoever nature, acquired by the Transferor Companies after the Appointed Date
and prior to the Effective Date shall also stand transferred to and vested in the Transferce

Company, upon the Scheme becoming effective without any further act, instrument or deed.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations of the Transferor Companies as on the Appomnted
Date. deemed to have been transferred to the Amalgamated Companies have been discharged by
the Transferor Companies after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such
discharge shall be deemed to have been for and on account of the Transferee Company and all
loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Transferor Companies for
the operation of the Transferor Companies after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective
Date shall be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of the Transferce
Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any
further act or deed. be and shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company and shall become its

liabilities and obligations from such date.
BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST

Upeon the coming into effect of the Scheme and from the Appointed Date and up to and including

the Effcctive Date:

{a)  The Transferor Companies shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on the business
and activities and shall stand possessed of all the assets and properties, in trust for the

Transferee Company and shall account for-the same to the Tr. Company.
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'/qw%"




9.1

(b)  Any income or profit accruing or arising to the Transferor Companies. as the case may be,
and all costs, charges, expenses and losses or taxes (including deferred tax balances, if any})
incurred by the Transferor Companies shall for all purposes be treated as the income,
profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses or taxes (including deferred tax balances, if

any), as the case may be, of the Transferee Company.

(¢)  Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or related or pertaining to and
exercised by or available to the Transferor Companies shall be deemed to have been
exercised by the Transferor Companies for and on behalf of and as agent for the Transferee
Company. Similarly. any of the obligations, duties and commitments attached, related or
pertaining to the Transferor Companies that have been undertaken or discharged by the
Transferor Companies shall be deemed to have been undertaken or discharged for and on

behalf of and as agent for the Transferee Company.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL THE EFFECTIVE DATE
With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

(a) The Transferor Companies shall carry on their business with reasonable diligence and in

the same manner as it had been doing hitherto.

(b)  The Transferor Companies shall not alter or substantially expand the business except with

the written concurrence of the Transferce Company.

(¢} The Transferor Companies shall not, without the written concurrence of the Transferee
Company, transfer, alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber any of its assets or properties,
except in the ordinary course of business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation
undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of the

Transferor Companies.

(d) The Transferor Companies shall not undertake any additional financial commitments of
any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts or incur any other liabilities or expenditure,
issue any guarantees, indemnities, letters of comfort or commitment either for itself or on
behalf of its group companies or any third party, save and except, in each case, in the

following circumstances:

i If the same is in the ordinary course of business as carried on by the Transferor
Companies as on the date of filing this Scheme with Tribunal; or

il If the written consent of the Transferee Company, as the case may be, has been
obtained.

() The Transferor Companics shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme by the
Tribunal, to apply to the Central Government and all other agencies, departments and

authorities concerned as are necessary under any law for such consents, approvals and

sanctions which the Transfe
Co
the Transferor Companies.| 3?
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10.

11.
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On the Effective Date but with cffect from the Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall be
authorized to carry on the businesses carried on by the Transferor Companies.

The Transferee Company may be allowed to alter its capital structure. either by fresh issue of
shares or convertible securities on a rights basis or otherwise or by any reclassification, sub-
division, consolidation, re-organisation or in any other manner with the consent of Board of

Directors of the Transferee Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

This provisions of this Scheme as they relate to the amalgamation of Transferor Companies into
and with Transferee Company, have been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to
“Amalgamation”™ as defined under the income-tax laws, specifically section 2(1B) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961, If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be
inconsistent with any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result of any amendment
of law or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the aforesaid
provisions of the tax laws shall prevail. The Scheme shall then stand modified to the extent
determined necessary to comply with the said provisions. Such modification will however not
affect other parts of the Scheme. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Scheme, the power
to make such amendments as may become necessary shall vest with the Board of the Transferee
Company. which power shall be exercised reasonably in the best interests of the companies and
their stakcholders, and which power can be excrcised at any time, whether before or afier the

Effective Date.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor Companies pending and/
or arising on or after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date and relating to the
Transferor Companies or its properties, assets, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations, shall be
continued and/ or enforced until the Effective Date as desired by the Transferor Companies and as
and from the Effective Date shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferce
Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and
enforced by or against the Transferor Companics. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferce
Company shall and may, if required, initiate any legal proceedings in its name in relation to the
Transferor Companies in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been

mitiated by the Transferor Companies.
CONTRACTS AND DEEDS

Subject Lo the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts. deeds, bonds, agreements, insurance
policies and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Companies is
a party and subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date shall be in full force and effect
against or in favour of the Transferce Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced by or
against the Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor
Companies, the Transferee Company had been a_part ereto. The
enter into and/ or issue and/ or execute deeds, \g@’;&ﬁ%mm' :

arrangements, confirmations or novations, to ‘: g
VA
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14.

i4.1

also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so required or if so
considered necessary. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any
such deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf of the Transferor Companies and to implement or
carry out all formalities required on the part of the Transferor Companies to give effect to the
provisions of this Scheme. It is clarified that any inter-se contracts between the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company, as on the Effective Date shall stand cancelled and cease

to operate in the Transferee Company.

STAFF AND EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme coming into effect, all staff and employees of the Transferor Companies in
service on such date shall be deemed to have become staff and employees of the Transferee
Company without any break, discontinuance or interruption in thetr service and on the basis of
continuity of service and the terms and conditions of their employment with the Transferce
Company shall not be less favourable than those applicable to them with reference to the

Transferor Companies on the Effective Date.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the existing balances of Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund,
Leave Encashment scheme and/ or other schemes, created by the Transferor Companies for its
emplovees shall be transferred to the Transferee Company. The Transferor Companies shall take
all steps necessary for the transfer of balances, where applicable, of the Provident Fund, Gratuity
Fund, Leave Encashment scheme and/ or other schemes, to the Transferee Company. All
obligations of the Transferor Companies with regard to the said fund or funds as defined in the
relevant rules shall be taken over by the Transferee Company from the Effective Date to the end
and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Transferor Companies in relation
to such Fund or Funds shall become those of the Transferee Company and all the rights, duties
and benefits of the employees employed in the Transferor Companies under such Funds shall be
fully protected, subject o the provisions of law for the time being in force. It is clarified that the
services of the staff, workmen and employees of the Transferor Companies will be treated as

having been continuous for the purpose of the said Fund or Funds.

TREATMENT OF TAXES

Any tax liabilities under the Income-tax Act, 1961, Customs Act, 1962, State Sales Tax laws,
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956, Central Excise Act 1944, Service Tax laws or other applicable laws/
regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies (hercinafier in this Clause referred to as “Tax
Laws™) allocable or related to the business of the Transferor Companics to the extent not
provided for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the Transferee Company., Any surplus in the
provision for taxation/ duties/ levies account including advance tax, withholding tax, service tax
and any tax credit entitlements as on the date immediately preceding the Appeinted Date will also
be transferred to the account of the Transferee Company. Any refund under the Tax Laws due to

the Transferor Companies consequent to

for which no credit is taken in the acc

Date shall also belong to and be recei
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All taxes (including income tax, sales tax, customs duty, service tax, VAT, etc) paid or payable
by the Transferor Companies in respect of the operations and/or the profits of the business before
the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferee Company and, insofar as it relates to
the tax payment (including, without limitation, sales tax, custom duty. income tax, service tax,
excise, value added tax, et¢.). whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax, duty under
protest or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor Companies in respect of the profits or activities
or operation of the business after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the
corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company, and, shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with

accordingly.

The Transferee Company is expressly permitted to file/ revise its income tax, wealth tax, service
tax, VAT, sales tax, excise, CENVAT and other statutory rcturns, consequent to this Scheme
becoming effective, notwithstanding that the period for filing/revising such returns may have
lapsed. However, upon the Scheme becoming effective subsequently. the Transferee Company
shall have the right to revise and consolidate its financial statements and rctums along with
prescribed forms. filings and applications/ annexures under the Income Tax Act, 1961, indirect
taxes and other tax laws. The Transferce Company is expressly permitted to amend TDS/ TCS
and other statutory certificates and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance tax credits,
foreign tax credits, set offs and adjustments relating to its respective incomes/ transactions from
the Appointed Date. It is specifically declared that all the taxes/ duties paid by the Transferor
Companies shall be deemed to be the taxes/ duties paid by the Transferce Company and the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to claim credit for such taxes deducted/ paid against its tax/
duty liabilities notwithstanding that the certificates/ challans or other documents for payment of

such taxes/ duties are in the name of the Transferor Companies.

All tax assessment proceedings / appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Companies pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor
Companies shall be continued and/or enforced until the Effective Date as desired by the
Transferee Company. As and from the Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and
enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as

would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Companies.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall neither abate or be discontinued nor be in any way
prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the

Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

Furthermore. on or after the Effective Date, all rights, entitlements and powers to revise returns
and filings of the Transferor Companies under the Tax Laws, and to claim refunds and/ or
credits for the taxes paid. etc. and for matters incidental thercto, shall be available to and vest

with the Transferee Company.

Transferor Companies on or after Appai'_iit
Company. 1
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16.

16.1

16.3

PART - 11T

CONSIDERATION

Since the Transferor Companics are the whelly owned subsidiaries of the Transferee Company,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, all the equity shares held by the Transferee Company and
its nominees in the Transferor Companies shall stand cancelled and extinguished as on Appointed
Date. Accordingly, there will be no issue and allotment of cquity shares of the Transferee

Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Companies upon the Scheme being effective.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the share certificates, if any, and/or the shares in
electronic form representing the shares held by Transferee Company in the Transferor Companies
shall be deemed to be cancelled without any further act or deed for cancellation thereof by

Transferee Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee
Company shall account for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company 1 and Transferor
Company 2 (“Transferor Companies™) in its books of account in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard 103 *Business Combinations’ (‘Ind AS 103") specified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
and any amendments issued thercunder and in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles such that:

Transferee Company shall record all assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Companies
vested in Transferce Company pursuant to this Scheme, at the carrying valucs as appearing in the

books of Transferor Companies, as per Para 9 of Appendix C of Ind AS 103,

The amount of investment, if any, in the Transferor Companies, appearing in the books of the

Transferee Company shall stand cancelled.

The inter-company balances, if any, appearing in the books of account of Transferor Companies
and Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation/

outstanding in this respect.

The difference. if any, between the carmying value of assets and liabilities including the reserves
and surplus of Transferor Companies recorded as per Clause 16.1 above and after effecting
adjustments mentioned in Clause 16.2 and Clause 16.3 above shall be adjusted as per Appendix €
of Ind AS 103,
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COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme becoming effective. the authorized share capital of Transferee Company in
terms of its Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association shall avtomatically stand
enhanced without any further act, instrument or deed on the part of Transferee Company by the
authorized share capital of Transferor Companies as on the Effective Date and the Memorandum
of Association and Articles of Association of Transferee Company (relating to the authorized
share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified
and amended, and consent of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for
the purposes of effecting this amendment and no further resolution(s) under Sectien 13, 14 and 61
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013, would be required to be separately
passed and for this purpose the stamp duties and fees paid on the authorized share capital of
Transferor Companies shall be utilized and applied to the increased authorized share capital of
Transferee Company and no payment of any extra stamp duty and / or fee shall be payable by
Transferee Company for increase in the authorized share capital to that extent.

The filing fees and stamp duty already paid by the Transferor Companies on its authorized share
capital shall be utilized and applied to increased share capital of the Transferce Company, and
shall be deemed to have been so paid by the Transferee Company on such combined authorized
share capital. Further, the Transferee Company shall pay the requisite fee, if any. that arises due
to the difference in maximum statutory fee as per the Act payable on such combined authorized

share capital.

It is hercby clarified that the Transferce Company through its Board, if required. would be
entitled to make appropriate reclassification/ combination of its Authorized Share Capital and
provide suitable clarifications to the Registrar of Company with regard to the ¢lubbing of the

Authorized Share Capital of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company.

Pursuant to this Scheme, Transferee Company shall file the requisite forms / documents with the
Registrar of Companies, Delhi or any other Applicable Authority for such increase of the

authorized share capital.
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19.

20.
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21.

PART -1V

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and liabilities under Clause 7 and the continuance of proceedings by or
against the Transferee Company under Clause 11 shall not affect any transaction or proceedings
already concluded by the Transferor Companies on or before the date when the Transferor
Companies adopts the Scheme in its Board meeting, and after the date of such adoption till the
Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts,
deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor Companies in respect thereto as done and

exccuted on behalf of itself.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES

On the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferor Companies shall, without any further act or
deed, stand dissolved without winding up.

APPLICATIONS TO THE TRIBUNAL/ OTHER AUTHORITY

The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make
applications to the Tribunal, seeking orders for dispensing with or convening, holding and
conducting of the meetings of the sharcholders and/ or creditors of the Transferor Companies and

the Transferee Company as may be directed by the Tribunal.
The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch, apply

to the Tribunal for sanctioning the Scheme under the applicable provisions of the Act, and for

such other order or orders, as the said Tribunal may deem [t for carrying this Scheme into effect.

CONDITIONALITY OF SCHEME

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

(a} the Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majority in number and value of such classes
of persons including the respective sharcholders and secured and unsecured creditors of
each of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company except to the extent
exempted by the Tribunal;

(b}  the Scheme being approved by the Tribunal;

(c)  such other sanctions and approvals including sanctions of any statutory or regulatory

authority, as may be required in respect of the Scheme, being obtained;

5

=.
v

%

(dy filing of the certified copies of the of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme under the
Wark, - e
applicable provisions of the = strar of C i S T*b:;-
7 \ fes >

i)
8

\%};@.

8
48

AN



22

AN

t-d
IbJ
(]

24.

24.1

242

24.3

EFFECT OF NON-APPROVALS

In the event the Scheme is not sanctioned by the Tribunal for any reason whatsoever or for any
other reasons the Scheme cannot be implemented, the Scheme shall become null and void and
shall be of no ¢ffect and in that event no rights and/or liabilities shall accrue to or be incurred
inter-se by the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company and each of the Transferor
Companies and the Transferee Company shall bear and pay its respective costs, charges and

expenses for and/or in connection with the Scheme,

It is expressly clarified, for the removal of doubt that if any of the components of this Scheme
cannot be implemented or effected for any reason whatsoever, the remaining component(s) shall
not in any way be affected or impaired and the Scheme with the remaining component(s) shall be

implemented.
MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEME

The Beard of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company may assent to any
modification(s) or amendment(s) in this Scheme which the Tribunal and/ or any other authorities
may decm fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for
settling any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise for implementing and/ or carrying out
the Scheme and the Board of the Transferor Companies and the Transferce Company and after
the dissolution of the Transferor Companies, the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company
be and are hereby authorised to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be
negessary, desirable or proper to give effiect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties
or questions whether by reason of any orders of the Tribunal or of any directive or orders of any
other authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of, under or by virtue of this Scheme and / or
any matters concerning or connected therewith. The Board of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company may assent 1o withdrawal of the scheme at any stage even alter sanclioning
of the scheme.

REVOCATION AND SEVERABILITY

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals not being obtained and/or complied with
and/or satisfled and/or this Scheme not being sanctioned by the Tribunal or such other appropriate
authority and/or order or orders not being passed as aforesaid within such period as may be
mutually agreed upon by the respective Board of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee
Company, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect,

In the event of any of the conditions that may be imposed by the Tribunal or other authorities and
which the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company may find unacceptable for any
reason, then the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company are at liberty to withdraw the
Scheme.

The Board of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee

withdraw. revoke. cancel and declare the/Sef
¥
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25.

26.

into effect of the Scheme could have adverse implications on the Transferor Companies and the

Transferee Company.

In the event of revocation under Clause 24.1, Clause 24.2 and Clause 24.3 above, no rights and
liabilities whatsoever shall acerue to or be incurred inter se to the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company and their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any other
person save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated
hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto
and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out in accordance with the applicable
law and in such case, each of the Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company shall bear

and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and/or in connection with the Scheme.

COMPLIANCE WITH SEBI REGULATIONS

As the scheme solely provides for amalzamation of wholly owned subsidiaries with its holding
company as regards to the listed company, no formal approval, no objection certificate or vetting
is required from Stock Exchanges or SEBI for the Scheme, in terms of provisions of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2015, SERI Circular No. CFD/ DIL3/ CIR/ 2017/ 21 dated 10th March, 2017, SEBI
Circular No. CFDY DIL3/ CIR/ 2018/ 2 dated 3rd January 2018 and other applicable provisions, if
any,

In terms of SEBI Regulations, this Scheme is only required to be filed with Stock Exchanges for

the purpose of disclosure and dissemination on their website.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Except in the circumstances mentioned in Clause 22 and Clause 24 above, all costs, charges, taxes
including duties {including the stamp duty and/ or transfer charges, if any, applicable in relation
to this Scheme), levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise agreed) of the
Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company arising out of or incurred in carrving out and
implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto shall be bome and paid by the

Transferee Company.
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Annexure-I1

THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, COURT-V, NE
Company Application No. CA (CAA) -90/230/232/NBD/2020

W DELHI

U/S 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Item 512 of 09.09.21

In the Matter of:

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-11001%

.... Transferor Company- 1
And
HCL Learning Limited

806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
.... Transferor Company-2

With

HCL Infosystems Limited
206, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Dethi-110019

.... Transferee Comnpany

Order Delivered on 17.09.2021

Coram:
llon’ble P.S.N Prasad, Member (1)
Hon'ble K.K. Vohra, Member (T)

Present:
For the Petitioners: Advs Mahesh Agarwal, Rishi Agarwal, Rajeev Kumar

ORDER

Per: K.K. Vohra, Member (T}

1. This is an Application filed jointly by the Petitioner Companies (Cos) named above
under Section 2306-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other applicable
provisions of the Act read with Companics {Compromiscs, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 {thc Rules) in relation to the Scheme of’ Arcangement by
way of Amalgamation (Scheme) involving two Fransferor & one Transferee Cos. The
said Scheme is anncxed (pg 45) to the Petition. AfMidavits in support of this
Application sworn for and on behalf of the Petitioner Cos by Mr Sushil Kumar Jain has
been filed, being the Authorized Signatory of the Petitioner Cos.

CA (CAA) -90/230/232NDI2020) f M
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2. The Petitioner Cos in their main Petition CA (CAA)-90/230/232/ND/2020 prayed for
dispensation of meeting of Shareholders. Subsequently, an application CA-161/2021 has
been filed under Rule 155 Riw Rule 11 of National Company Law Tribupal Rules, 2016
(NCLT Rules) for convening meeting of the Shareholders of the Petitioner Cos duly
approved by Board of Directors. On 08.04.21, this Court allowed to amend the prayers in
the main Petition. During the course of hearing on 09.09.21 the Ld Counsel for the
Petitioners agreed to convene meetings of Unsecured Creditors of Transferor Co 1 and
Transferee Co. The Petitioner Cos have made, among others, the following final prayers:

a) Convene separate meetings of Shareholders of the Transferor and Transferee Cos

b) Dispense meetings of Secured Creditors of the Petitioner Cos

¢) Convene meetings of Unsecured Creditors of Transferor Co 1 and Transferee Co

d) Grant exemption from sending individual notices to Unsecured Creditors of the

Transferee Company having debt value up to Rs 2,00,000 each

¢) Direct service of notice of the present Petition on Statutory Authorities

3, It is represented that a Joint Application filed by the Petitioner Cos (Petitioners} is
maintainable in view of Rule 3(2) of the Rules. It is also represented that the registered

office of Transferee Co is situated within the territorial jurisdiction of this Tribunal.

4. The Petitioner Cos have furnished {as on 31.3.21) the number of the Shareholders,

Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors as follow:

S.No. | Company Shareholders Secured Unsecured
Creditors Creditors

1. Transferor Co | 7 0 27

2. Transferor Co 2 7 0 10

3. Transferee Co 96,477 0 1198

s

5. Perusal of the Application indicates the details of the capital structure of the Cos as on

31.3.21 as follow:

CA (CAA)Y-90/230/232/ND/2020
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5. |Company Date of Authorized Share Cupital | Paid up and subscribed CIN No.,
No. incorporation | (Rs} sharc capital {Rs)
1. | Transferor | 19.03.2008 Rs 60.00,00,000 divided | Rs 56,05,00,000 divided ; U729 00DL
Col into 6,00,00,000 equity into 5,60,50,000 equity | 2008 PLCI
shares of Rs 10 each shares of Rs 10 each 75605
2. | Transferor | 28.09.2012 Rs 10,00,000 divided into | Rs 7,52,740 divided U209 00DL
Co2 1,00,000 equity shares of | into 75,274 equity 2012 PLC2
Hs 10 each shares of Rs 10 each 42907
3. | Transferee | 17.04.1986 Rs 110,50,00,000 divided | Rs 65,84,19,856 divided | L.722 0001
Co into 55,25,00,000 equity into 32,92,09,928 equity | 1986 PLCO
shares of Rs 2 each and shares of Rs 2 each 23955
Rs 5,00,00,000 divided
into 5,00,000 Preference
L Shares of Rs 100 each

6.1t is stated that the present Scheme is it the form of amalgamation of Transferor Cos with
Transferee Co. The Petitioner Cos have filed their respective Memorandum and Articles of
Association, inter alia, delineating their object clauses as well as Audited Annual Accounts
for the year ended 31.03.2021. The Transferor Co 1 is engaged in the business of value-
added distribution of technology, mobility and consumer electronic products. Transferor Co
2 is engaged in the business of seliing of digitised educational content and learning
solutions and Transferee Co is cngaged in the business of valuc-added distribution of
technology, mobility and consumer electronic products. The objective of amalgamation is
te consolidate business into one corporate cntity which would result in operational
synergies, simplification of the corporate structure, reduction of legal entitics, overall
reduction in administrative, managerial and other expenditure for optimum utilisation of

VATIOUS rESources.

7. The Transferee Co has prayed for exemption from sending individual notices to
Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company having debt value up to Rs 2,00,000 each.
In this context, Transferee Co has relied on the Order passed by Principal Bench in the
matter of Relaxo Footwear Limited CA (CAA)-86/(PRY2018 wherein individual nofices to
Unsecured Creditors having outstanding balance below Rs 1,00,000 each were dispensed
with. The petitioners have stated that Unsecured Creditors below Rs 1,00,000 each as on
31.03.21 are 1004 in number and 0.28% in value (Pg 4 of affidavit 23.07.21).
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8. The Petitioners have furnished the Lists of all Unsecured Creditors (with balance of
Rs 1.0 lakh each and above as well as with balance of below Rs 1.0 lakh each) totalling Rs
583 crores. Further, there are other Creditors on account of Statutory dues elc included in
Balance Sheet as on 31,03.21. Petitioners are dirccted to ensure that the total of creditors to
whom the notices are sent should tally with the amount of Creditors in the Balance Sheet as
on 31.3.21. In view of large number of Creditors and prayer to dispense with notices to
very small value Creditors, Transferee Co is directed to send individual notices to all
Unsccured Creditors and other credifors having an outstanding batance of Rs 1.0 lakh or

more each as per audited balance sheet as on 31.03.21, as per Rules in prescribed formats.

9. The Board of Directors of Transferor Cos have unanimously approved the proposed
Scheme on 05.08.20 and Board of Transferee Co approved the Scheme on 06.08.20.
Copies of resolutions have been placed on record (pg 150, 305 and 451 ).

10. The appointed date as specified in the Scheme is 1% April 2020 subject to the
directions of this Tribunal.

11. The Petitioners have stated in the Affidavit dated 23.07.21 (pg 2-6) that there are no

pending investigations or proceedings against the Petitioners.

12. In respect of Secured Creditors, it is stated that Transferor Cos 1, 2 and Transferee Co
have Nil Secured Creditors. In respect of Transferor 2 Co, there are 10 Unsecured
Creditors out of which 1 in number has given Consent affidavit which constitutes 97.7% in
value of total Unsccured Creditors (Pg 20 of affidavit dated 6.7.21). Therefore, in light of
provisions of Section 230(9) of the Act, the prayer for dispensaiion of meeting of
Unscoured Creditors of Transferor 2 Co is allowed since more than 90% in value of

Unsecured Creditors have given consent affidavits.
13. Heard the submissions of the Ld. Counsel for the Petitioner Cos.

14. This Tribunal issues the following directions with respect to calling, convening, and
holding of the mectings:

A. Transferor Co 1:

(i) With respect to Equity Shargholders:

\L.
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The Meeting of the Shareholders of the Transferor Co 1 shall be convened on 5™ November,
2021 at 10:30 AM ai 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 through Video
Conferencing or as per the extant Regulations/Circulars of MCA including refevant
Secretarial Standards. The quorum of the meeting shall be as per the number provided under

Section 103 and 75% in value as provided in Section 230 (6) of the Act.

(i) With respect to Secured Creditors:

Since it is represented that there is no Secured Creditor, the necessity of convening a meeting

does not arise.

{iii) With respect to Unsecuregd Creditors:

The Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor 1 Co shall be convened on st
November, 2021 at 11:30 PM at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 through
Video Conferencing or as per the extant Regulations /Circulars of MCA including relevant
Secretarial Standards. The guorum of the meeting shall be as per the number provided under

Section 103 and 75% in value as provided in Section 230 (6) of the Act.

B. Transferor Co 2:

(i) With respect to Equity Shareholders:

The Meeting of the Shareholders of the Transferor Co 2 shall be convened on 5™ Novenber,
2021 at 12:30 AM at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 through Videa
Conferencing or as per the extant Regulations /Circulars of MCA including relevant
Secretarial Standards. The quorum of the meeting shall be as per the number provided under

Section 103 and 75% in value as provided in Section 230 (6) of the Act.
(ii) With respect to Secured Creditors:

Since it is represented that there is no Secured Creditor, the necessity of convening a meeting

doss not arise.

(iiiy With respeci to Unsecured Creditors:

It is represented that 97.7% in value of total Unsecured Creditors have given their consent

affidavite in favour of the Scheme. Hence, the request for. dispensing with the meeting is

accepted.
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C. Transfereg Co:

(i} With respect o Equity Shareholders:

The Mecling of the Shareholders of the Transferee Co shail be convened on 5% November,
2021 at 3:30 PM at 806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110¢19 through Video
Conferencing or as per the extant Regulations [Circulars of MCA including relevant
Secretarjal Standards. The quorum of the meeting shall be as per the number provided under

Section 103 and 75% in value as provided in Section 230 (6) of the Act,

(i) With respect fo Sccured Creditors:

Since it is represented that there is no Sccured Creditor, the necessity of convening a meeting

does not arise.

(iii) With respect to Unsecured Creditors:

The Mecting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Co shall be convened on 5%
November, 2021 at 2:30 PM at 806, Siddharth 96, Nchru Place, New Delhi-110019 through
Video Conferencing or as per the extant Regulations/Circulars of MCA including relevant
Secretarial Standards. The quorum of the meeting shall be as per the number provided under
Scction 103 and 75% in value as provided in Section 230 (6) of the Act.

D. The Petitioner Cos may organize the aforementioned meetings with remote e-voiing
facility if needed, or in person in strict compliance with the circulars/guidelines issued by the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and other Rules/Regulations in this regard,

E. Mr. Pushpendra Surana CA (Email: psurana@suranaca.com) is appointed as the common
Chairperson and Mr. Suman Kumar Verma CA (Email: ipskverma@gmail.com) is appointed
as the Alternate Chairperson and Mr Ramkripai Sharma, CS (Email: iprksharma@gmail .com}
is appointed as common Scrutinizer for the aforementioned meetings as directed to be

convened.

F. In case the quorum as noted above for the meetings are not present at the meetings in the
first round, the mestings shall be adjourned by half an hour, and thercafier the persons

present, and voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum; |

wever, the requirement of
gfcgr,fmnt to the Scheme by

g
-

Section 230 (6) of the Act shall be complied with regard”
S5
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majority of persons representing 75% in value. For the purpose of computing the quorum, the
valid proxy shall also be considered, if the proxy in the prescribed Form, duly sigaed by the
person entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, is filed with the registered office of the
Petitioner Cos at least 48 hours before the meetings. The Chairpersen and Alternate
Chairperson appointed herein along with Serutinizer shall ensure that the proxy registers are

properly maintained.

G. The fee of the Chairpetson for the aforesaid meetings shall be Rs 50,000 and the fee of
the Alternate Chairperson shall be Rs 40,000. The fee of the Scrutinizer shall be Rs 40,000,
All these fees will be in addition to incidental expenses. The Chairperson will file reports

within a week from the date of holding of the meetings.

H. Individua! notices of the meetings shall be sent by the Petitioner Cos through speed
post and email, 30 days in advance of the date of meetings, indicating the day, date, place,
and the time, together with a copy of Scheme and explanatory statement etc., required to be
sent under the Act and relevant Rules, The prescribed Form of proxy shall also be sent, along

with any other docuiment as may be prescribed under the Act or Rules.

I. The Petitioner Cos shall publish advertisement at least 30 days befove the date of
meetings in the Form preseribed, indicating the day, date, time and place, to he published in
Dethi editions of *Business Standard’ both English and 1lindi stating that the copies of
Scheme, the explanatory statement required to be furnished pursuant to Section 230 of the
Act and the Form of proxy shall be provided free of charge at the registered offices of the
Petitioner Cos. Such publication will also serve the purpose of notice to small creditors
having outstanding amount below Rs 1.00 fakh each fo whom the individual notices are not
being sent. Voting shall be allowed on the proposed Scheme by Video Conferencing or in
petson or by proxy, through postal ballot as may be applicablc for the respective meetings of
the Petitioner Cos under the Act, Rules and circulars/guidelines issued by the MCA framed

there under.

1. In addition to the public notice, the Petitioner Cos are also directed to serve the notice of
the Application by all modes (Emai, Speed Post etc,) in Forms preseribed under the Act/

relevant Rules on the following Authorities:

\L
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e Central Government through Regiona! Director (Northern Region), Ministry of
Corporate Affairs at MCA, B-2 Wing, 2nd Floor, Paryavaran Bhavan, CGO
Complex, New Defhi-1100 03; Email: rd notth@mea.gov.in
e Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs at 4th Floor, TFCI Tower, 61 Nehru place, New Delhi-11009; Email:
roc.delhi@mea.gov.in
e Income Tax Departmem, at DCIT (HC Cell), Lawyer’s Chamber Block No.1,
Room 428, Delhi High Court, New Delhi-110503; Email:
delhi.dcit.judicial. he@incometax.gov.in
e Official Liquidator attached to the High Court of Delhi at Lok Nayak Bhavan,
gth Floor, Khan Market, New Delhi-110001 Email: ol.delhi@mea.gov.in
e SEBI at NBCC Complex, Office Tower-1, $th Floor, Plate B, East Kidwai
Nagar, New Delhi - 110023, Email: sebinro@sebi.gov.in
e Such other Sectoral Regulatory Authorities who are likely to be affected by the
Scheme within 7 days from the date of this order. The said authorities are
directed to send their representations if any, within 30 days from the date of
receipt of such notice as per the provisions of sub-section 5 of Section 230 of
the Act.
K. Further, notices shall also be served to the Objectors or to their rcpresentative, if any, as
contemplated under Sub-Section (4) of Scction 230 of the Act who may have made
representations and who have desired to be heard in their representations along with a copy of
the Petition and the Annexures filed therewith at least 15 days before the date fixed for

hearing,

L. The authorized representative of the Petitioner Cos shall furnish an affidavit of service of
notices of meetings and publication of advertisement and compliance of all directions
contained herein or as provided under Act/ Rules/ Circulars at least a week before the

proposed meetings.

M. If any affidavit annexed with the Petition is found to be false/ dubious at any stage,
necessary action for committing fraud under Section 447 and 448 of the Act shall be initiated

against the Petitioners and all its Directors for punishment under Section 449 of the Act.

L.

CA (CAAY-90/230/232/ND/2020

60



N. All the aforesaid directions are to be complied with strictly in accordance with the
applicable law including Forms and Formats contained in the Rulcs as well as the provisions

of the Act by the Petitioners.

15. Further, the Registry is directed to serve notices to the above-mentioned statutory

authorities [para 14(3)] through email.

16. The Applications CA (CAA)-9D (ND) of 2020 stands allowed to the extent as stated

VA

above and on the aforesaid terms.
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(K. K. VOHRA) (P.S.N PRASAD)
MEMBER (T) MEMBER {J)

e YT O

ot tud (RN

AL
50 Coy

[ 954

CA (CAA) -90/230/232/ND/2020

61



THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, COURT-V, NEW DELHI
Company Application No. CA (CAA) -90/230/232/ND/2020

U/S 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Item 512 of 09.09.21

In the Matter of:

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019

.... Transferor Company- 1
And
HCL Learning Limited
806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
.... Transferor Company- 2

With
HCL Infosystems Limited
806, Siddharth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019

... Transferee Company

Order Delivered on 24.09.2021

Coram:
Hon’ble P.S.N Prasad, Member (J)
Hon’ble K.K. Vohra, Member (T)

Present:
For the Petitioners: Advs Mahesh Agarwal, Rishi Agarwal, Rajeev Kumar

Rectification of Order dated 17.9.21

In exercise of the powers conferred under Rule 154 of NCLT Rules, 2016, the Order
dated 17.09.21 is rectified as follows:

1. In Line 5 of Para 14 A (i) and (iii) line 5 “and 75% in value as provided in Section
230 (6) of the Act” is deleted.

2. In Line 5 of Para 14 B (1) and of Para 14 (C ) (i), (iii) line 5 “and 75% in value as
provided in Section 230 (6) of the Act” is deleted.

3. The Para 14 H, is replaced with following para “Individual notices for meetings of

Unsecured Creditors and Shareholders shall be sent by the Petitioner Cos through
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Speed post or Email, together with any other documents applicable as per provisions

of law/relevant Rules/Circulars™

y W
4. Para If line 5, the following may be added “For the purpose of computing the

quorum, the valid proxy shall also be considered as per applicable
Rules/Regulations/Circulars of MCA.”

The Order dated 17.09.21 is rectified to the extent as stated above.

2 P,

5/~ T
(K. K. VOHRA) (P.S.N PRASAD)
MEMBER (T) MEMBER (J)

CA (CAA) -90/230/232/ND/2020 2

63



IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, NEW DELHI
COURT-V
(Special Bench)

Item No.-102
CA(CAA No) No- 90/230/232/ND/2020
New CA/463/2021

IN THE MATTER OF:

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Service Ltd. And HCL Infosystems Pvt. Ltd.  ....Applicant
SECTION

U/s 230-232 Order delivered on 07.10.2021
CORAM:

SHRI P.S.N PRASAD,
HON’BLE MEMBER (JUDICIAL)

SHRI K.K. VOHRA,
HON’BLE MEMBER (TECHNICAL)

PRESENT:

For the Applicant : Rajeev Kumar Adv for Applicants
For the Respondent :

ORDER

CA/463/2021

This is an application filed under Rule 11 of NCLT Rules, 2016 seeking for
extension of the date of meeting as fixed by the Tribunal vide order dated

17.09.2021 to convene the meetings of the equity shareholders and unsecured

creditors.

We have heard the submissions made by the counsel for the applicant. The
applicant has prayed for extending the date of meetings from 05.11.2021 to
30.11.2021 or any other date as the Tribunal may deem fit, so that the applicant

gets sufficient time so as to give 30 clear days’ notices to all the equity

A ¥
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shareholders. Prayer is allowed. The date of meeting is extended from 05.11.2021
to 30.11.2021 and the petitioners are directed to take necessary steps as per law.

Application allowed. IA stands closed.

sd] - =
ol
(K.K. VOHRA) 7 (P.S.N PRASAD)
MEMBER (T) MEMBER (J)
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HCL INFOSYSTEMS LTD, Annexure-IT1
Corporate Otfice: E-4, Sector 11, NOIDA 200 301, LLP. India
Tel- +81 1202520077, 2526518, 2526519 Fax: +91 120 2523791
Registared 0ftice: 306 Siddharth, 96, Nehru Flace, New Dalthi-110013. Indea.
Corporate igentity Number - L722000L1986PLC023955

i o Iraysiin=.con 8" September, 2020
wiwi el com TO
The General Manager The Vice President ]
Department of Corporate Relations Listing Department
BSE Limited The National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Sir Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Exchange Plaza
Dalal Street Bandra Kurla Complex
Fort, Bandra (East)
Mumbai - 400 001 Mumbai 400 051

Sub: Intimation Under Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 (“Listing Regulation")

Symbol; NSE : HCL-INSYS
BSE (For Physical Form): 179
BSE (For Demat Form) : 500179

Dear Sir / Madam,

We hereby inform you that the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 06 August 2020 have
approved Scheme of Amalgamation between Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
("DDMS" or “Transferor Company 1") and HCL Learning Limited ( “Transferor Company 2"),
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company with HCL Infosystemns Limited ( “Transferee
Company"), subject to the approvals of National Company Law Tribunal, shareholders and creditors of
the Company and such other approvals as may be required in this regard.

The Provision of Regulation 37 of the Listing Regulations are not applicable to schemes which solely
provide for merger of a wholly owned subsidiary with its holding company. Hence "No Qbjection
Letter” or "Observation Letter” on the Scheme is not required to be obtained from the Stock
Exchanges on which equity shares of the Company are listed.

However, in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 37(6) of the Listing Regulations read with
the provisions of SEBI Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March 2017 and
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated 3rd January 2018, such draft scheme shall be filed with the Stock
Exchanges for the purpose of disclosures and the Stock Exchanges shall disseminate the scheme
documents on their websites.

Accordingly, we are enclosing the following documents for the purpose of disclosure and
dissemination to the website:

a) Certified true copy of Board of Director's resolution approving the draft scheme of
amalgamation of DDMS and HCL Learning Limited with their holding company ie. HCL
Infosystems Limited.,

b} Certified true copy of scheme of amalgamation of DDMS and HCL Learning Limited with their
holding company, HCL Infosystems Limited.

This 1s for your information and record please.

Thanking You,

Very Truly Yours, =
For HCL Infosystems Limited, C} STEy,
o /‘h iy
u =
%/ | =

=1
=

\ i
Sushil Kumar Jain (DM*%
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Repoit as per the provisions of Section 232{21(- c) of the Corﬁpantes Act, 2013

A meeting of Moard of Directors of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Seivices Limited was hald on
August 05, 2020 through video conferencing wherein the board approved the Scheme of Amalgamation
between Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited (DDMS) and HCL Learning Limited and HCL

Infosystems Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

In terms of Section 232(2){c) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), a report from the board of Digilife
Bistribution and Marketing Services Limited explaining the effect of the scheme on each class of creditors,
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promaters and non-promoter shareholders has to be appended

with the notice to shareholders. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

1. Shareholders

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems

Limited.

+  Accordingly, upan the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi, and on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services
Limited in HCL Infosystems Limited, all the equity shares held by HCL Infosystems Limited and its
nominees in the Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited shall stand cancelled and
extinguished as on Appointed Date. There will be no issue and allotment of equity shares of HCL
Infosystems Limited upon the Scheme being effective.

*+ Therefore, there would not be any dilution of shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited and the

interest of shareholders (Promoters as well as Non-Premoters) of the company remains unaffected.

2. Creditors

*  The companies do not have any secured creditors.

*  Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by tne Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and
on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited in HCL
Infosystems Limited the unsecured creditors of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
will become unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited.

* Accordingly, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the unsecured creditors of Digilife
Distribution and Marketing Services Limited.
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3. Key managerial Personnel

The proposed Scheme would not impact key managerial personnel since the Scheme is between
Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, HCL Leamning Limited and HCL Infosystems
Limited and their shareholders and creditors, except to the extent of their shareholdings. As
discussed above, there is no effect of the proposed Scheme on sharehaolders of these companies
since no shares are proposed to be issued pursuant to the Scheme.

4, Adoption of the report by board of directors of Digilife Distribution and Marketing
Services Limited

The board of directors of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited has adopted this report after
noting and considering the information set farth in this report.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited

/51“/:‘.3’::”)
Hame: Pawan Kumar Danwar
Designation: Director
DIN: 06847503
Address: 17-A Dhruva Appartments
Plot Mo. 43 Sector 13 Rohini
New Delhi 110085,
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WCLLEARNING LIMITED
(A subsdiary of HOL IRFOSYSTEMS LT0)

Corporate Office: A-11, S220ar 3 NDIDA 201 301, U P, India

Tel' +91 120 8320977 Far +31 2523790

Registered Offce: &05 S daharth, 96, Nehru Place, Naw Delti-110018, Indig
Corporale ientity Numbar - US0900DL2012PLC24230T

www helinfasystems in

Report as per the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

A meeting of Board uf Directors of HCL Learning Limited was held on August 05, 2020 through video
conferencing wherein the board approved the Scheme of Amalgamation bebween Digilife Distribution and
Marketing Services Limited (DDM=5) and HCL Learning Limitéd and HCL Infosystems Limited and their

respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), a report from the board of HCL
Learning Limited explaining the effect of the scheme on each class of creditors, shareholders, key
managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders has to be appended with the notice to

shareholders. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of Section
232(2){c) of the Act.

1,
.

Shareholders

HCL Learning Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of HCL Infosystems Limited.

Accordingly, upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi, and on transfer and vesting of undertaking of HCL Learning Limited in HCL Infosystems
Limited, all the equity shares held by HCL Infosysterns Limited and its naminees in the HCL Learning
Limited shall stand cancelled and extinguished as on Appointed Date. There will be no issue and
allotment of equity shares of HCL Infosystems Limited upon the Scheme being effective.

Therefore, there would nat be any dilution of shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited and the
interest of sharehalders (Promoters as well as Non-Promoters) of the company remains unaffected.

Creditors

The companies do not have any secured creditors.

Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and
en transfe: and vesting of undertaking of HCL Learning Limited in HZL Infosystems Limited the
unsecured creditors of HCL Learning Limited will become unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystems
Limited. .

Accordingly, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the unsecured creditors of HCL Learning
Lirnited.

f o [ == &
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HELIE%HHIHU LIMITED
lA suusiciary of HOL INFOSYSTEMS LTDL)
Lotporate Cifce: A-11, Baclor 3, NOIDA 201 301 U P, India
Tel +07 120 2520017 Fax: +01 2523791
Fegistered Office: BI5 Siddrarth, 38, Rebru Place, Naw Deibl-11001%. India.
Carparale eentity Number - UBQODI0L 201 2PLC242907
waw helinfogystams.in

3. Key managerial Personnel

The proposed Schemea would not impact key managerial personnel since the Scheme is between
Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, HCL Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems
Limited and ther shareholders and creditors, except to the extent of thzir shareholdings. As
discussed above, there is no effect of the proposed Scheme on shareholders of these companies
since no shares are proposed to be issued pursuant to the Scheme.

4, Adoption of the report by board of directors of HCL Learning Limited

The board of directors of HCL Learning Limited has adopted this report after noting and considering the
information set forth in this report.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of HCL Learning Limited

Mame: Dilip Kumar Srivastava

Designation: Director

(DIN: 06847137)

Address: 241, Dearwood Chase,Nirvana Country Sector 50,
Islampur(97),South City-Ii Gurgaon 122018 Hr In
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HCL INFOSYSTEMS LD, Annexure-VI
Coyporate Ofice: A-11, S&ctor & NOIDA 201 301, LR, Inta
Tel 491 120 2520977, 2526518, 2526519 Faw: +01120 2523781

Registesed
Cerparate I
waw hilind
W el com

Officer 806 Sigdharth, 98, Nehn Plzce, Hew Deini- 110013 india.
bty Humber - LE2200 301 SEEPLE0ERSSS
053RS in

Board Report

£ meeting of Board of Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited was held on August 06, 2020 through video
conferencing wherein the board approved the Scheme of Amalgamation betvieen Digilife Distribution and
Marketing Se-vices Limited (DDMS) and HCL Learning Limited and HCL Irfosystems Limited and their

respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 2013,

In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), a report from the board of HCL
Infosystems Limited explaining the effect of the scheme on each dass of creditors, shareholders, key
managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders has to be appended with the notice to

shareholders, This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of Section
232(2)(c) of the Act.

1. Shareholders

* Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited and HCL Learning Limited are whally owned
subsidiaries of HCL Infosystems Limited.

*  Accordingly, upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, New
Delhi, and on transfer and vesting of undertaking of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services
Limited and HCL Learning Limited in HCL Infosysterns Lirited, all the equity shares held by HCL
Infosystems Limited and its nominees in these companies shall stand cancelled and extinguished as
on Appointed Date. There will be no issue and allotment of equity shares of HCL Infosystems Limited
upon the Scheme being effective.

s Therefore, there would not be any dilution of shareholding of HCL Infosystems Limited and the
interest of shareholders (Promoters as well as Non-Promoters) of the company remains unaffected.

2. Creditors
¢ The companies do not have any secured creditors.

+ Upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi, and
on trarsfer and vesting of urdartaking of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Servicas Limited anc HCL
Learning Limited in HCL Infosystems Limited the unsecured creditors of HCL Infosysteras Limited
shall remair the unsecured creditors of HCL Infosystams Limited,

e Accordingly, the Scheme will not have any adverse effect on the unsecured creditors of HCL
Infosystems Limited,

| o [ o =
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3. Key managerial Personnel

*  The proposed Scheme would not impact key managerial personnel since the Scheme is between

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, HC!. Learning Limited and HCL Infosystems
Limited and their shareholders and creditors, except u» the extent of their shareholdings. As
discussed above, there is no effect of the proposed Scheme on shareholders of these companies
since no shares are proposed to be issued pursuant to the cheme,

4. Adoption of the report by board of directors of HCL Infosystems Limited

The board of directors of HCL Infosystems Limited has adopted this report after noting and considering
the information set forth in this report,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited

Name: Pawan Danwar
Designation: Director

(DIN: 06847503)

Address: 17-A Dhruva Appartments
Plot No. 43 Sector 13 Roduni

New Delhi 110085.
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Annexure-VII

B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building Mo. 10,1 21h Ploor Tower-8 Telephons: +01 124 7191000
OLF Gyber Clty, Phased| Fax: +31 124 235 86132
Gurugram — 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standafone financial statements of Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
{“the Company™), which comprise the balance shect as at 31 March 2021 »and the statement of profit and
loss {inchuding other comprehensive income), statenient of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the ycar then ended, and notes to the financial statements, mcluding a spmmary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) in the manner so
reqiired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the aceounting principles generally aceepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021 , and loss and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specitied under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the duditor s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
cthical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a bagis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information inchuded in the Company’s annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not caver the other information and we de not EXpress
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility-is to read the other information
and, in doing so, congider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledgs obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we ate required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's and Beard of Directors® Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5}
of the Act with respect 10 the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profitloss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Comipany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation und maintenance of adequate intenal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial staterments that give a true and fair view and are fiee from material
migstaternent, whether due o frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management-and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue a5 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing
coneetn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends fo
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realigtic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or ertor, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes cur
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statetnents, :

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not deteciing a material
migstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal controd,

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circomstances. Under section 143(3)(() of the Act, we are aiso responsible for
expressing eur opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to
evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclugions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cauwse the Company to cease to continue as a
going coneern.
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+ Evzluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manmner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inchuding any significant deficiencies in imernal contro)
that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relaled safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial staterments of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be comumunicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government it terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A} Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

€) On the basts of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualifisd as on 31 March 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to finaneial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in fhe Auditors® Report in agcordance with Rule |1
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in onr opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

oy

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 28 to the financial statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foresecable losses

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the peried from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
31 Mareh 2021 .

(C) With respect to the mateer to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, during the current year, the
Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The remuneration to any director is
paid by HCL Infosystems Limited (‘Holding Company’) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by ns.

For B 8 R & Assoclates LLF
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: | 1623 1 W/W.100024

U

Sandeep Batra
Place; New Delhi Partner
Date :24-June-2021 Membership No.: 059320

UDIN:21093320AAAABET7367
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Anditor’s Report to the members of Digilife Distribution
and Marketing Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(i} (@) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assels.

(b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by which all
fixed assets are verified by the mansgement in a phased manner over a period of fhree years. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification by management is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nahwe of its assets. As informed to us, no physical
verification was required as per the aforesaid phased programme.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company does not own any immovable propertics. Therefore, the
provisions of Clause 3(i}c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iiy The physical verification of inventory have been conducled at reasonable intervals by she
management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not material.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any Joans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and limited liability partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained vnder Section (89 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable ic the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan,
or provided any guarantee or security or made any investment as specified under Section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

(v} As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the tules framed there
under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the-
Order is not applicable to the Company,

(vii)  {a} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted? acerued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutery dues including Income-tax, Goods and Service tax, Cess and other material
statutery dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
Provident Fund, Eniployees' State [nsurance, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of
excise and Value added tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

; ]7) respect of Income-tax, Goods and Service tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears
f as at 31 March 2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, setvice
tax and duty of customs and Good and Service Tax as at 31 March 2021 which have not been
deposited on account of a dispite. The particulars of sales tax and other material statutory dues as
at 31 March 2021 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Added Tax
Act 2003

Amount Peric?d 1o .
Name of Statue | Nature of Dues . Demand deposited which Forum wher.e dispute
raised (in lacs) amount is pending
(in laes)
relates
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 9.59 - 2012-13 Commercial Tax
Act, 1956 Tax Officer - Raipur
(Chhattisgarh)
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 29.04 3.40 2011-12, Asgsessing Officer,
Act, 1956 Tax {Delhi} 2012-13 Department of Trade
and Taxes, Delhi
Ceniral Sales Tax | Central Sales 20.42 - 2013-14 Assessing Officer,
Act, 1956 Tax (Delhi) Department of Trade
and Taxes, Delhi
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 0.45 - 2013-14 Excise & Taxation
Act, 1956 Tax (Haryana) officer, Haryana
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 0.71 - 2001-12 Ioint Commissioner
Act, 1956 Tax (Tharkhand) Appeal
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 393 - 2013-14 Joint Commissioner
Act, 1956 Tax Appeal
{Maharashtra}
Central Salez Tax | Central Sales 20.49 1.30 2012-13 k0 Assistant
Act, 1956 Tax {(Rajasthan) 2014-15 Commissioner of
Commercial tax,
Jaipur
Centra] Sales Tax | Central Sales 922 3.20 2011-12 and | Additional
Act, 1956 Tax {Uttar 2012-13 Commissioner
Pradesh) {Appeals) of
Commercial Tax
Notda
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 1.63 041 2013-14 Office of Assistant
Act, 1956 Tax (Assam) Commercial Tax -
: Assam
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 5.29 1.59 2014-15 Assistant
Act, 1956 Tax (Kamataka) Commissioner of
commercial tax
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 0.78 - 2013-14 Commercial Tax
Act, 1956 Tax (Telgngana) Officer - Hyderabad
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 0.B8 0.88 2015-16 Additional .
Act, 1956 Tax (Uttar Commissioner
Pradesh) (Appeals) of
. Commercial Tax
Noida
Delhi Value Sales Tax 1.29 - 2010-11 Departmient of Trade
Added Tax Act- & Taxes - Delhi
2004
Entry Tax Act, Entry Tax 0.22 - 2012-13 Commercial Tax
1976, Officer - Raipur
Chhatﬁsggrh i
Karnataka Valve | Sales Tax 44 .47 3L9%0 2014-15 Assistant

Commissioner of
commercial tax

78




B S R & Associales LLP

Act, 1956

Tax
{Maharashtra)

Amount Peri'!d o .
Name of Statue | Nature of Dues .Demand deposited which FO“"E‘ wher? dispute
raised (in lacs) . amount is pending
{in lacs)
relates
Kerala Value Sales Tax 1.18 1.18 2015-16 Commercial Tax
Added Tax Act, Officer
2003
Kerala Value Sales Tax 4.32 0.22 2011-12, Deputy Commissioner
Added Tax Act, 2014-15, Comnaercial Tax,
2003 2015-16 Kochi
Maharashira Sales Tax 58295 41,71 2012-13 to Joint Commissioner
Walue Added Tax 2014-13 Appeal
Act, 2002
Rajasthan Value | Sales Tax 15.60 - A13-14and | Commercial Tax
Added Tax Act- 2016-17 Officer, Jaipur,
2003 Rajasthan
Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 4.05 9.27 2009-10 to Deputy Commissionsr
Value Added Tax 2013-14 [{Appeals} of Sales Tax
Act, 2006 : Chennai
Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 14.02 572 2010-11 to Deputy Commissioner
Value Added Tax 2013-14 {STHFAC) Chenna
Act, 2006 :
Telangana Value | Sales Tax 12.06 2.89 2014-18 Deputy
Added Tax Act, Commissicner,
2005 Telangana
U.P.Value Added | Sales Tax 87.15 20,90 2012-13 and | Additional
Tax Act-2008 2014-15 Commissioner
{Appeals) of
Commercial Tax
. Noida
LLP. Value Added | Sales Tax 1548 526 2013-14 Commercial Tax
Tax Act-2008 Tribunal
U.P.Value Added | Sales Tax 550 312 2015-16 The Assistant/ Deputy
Tax Act-2008 Commissioner
(Appeals), Uttar
Pradesh
Central Sales Tax | Central Szies .17 - 2014-15,15- | Assessing Officer,
Act, 1956 Tax (Delhi} 16 Department of Trade
and Taxes, Delhi
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 0.00 - 2009-10 Assessing Officer,
Act, 1956* Tax {Delhi) Department of Trade
and Taxes, Delhi
Central Saleg Tax | Central Sales 0.00 - 2017-18 Assistant
Agt, 1956% Tax (Gujarat) Commissioner of State
) Tax
Gujarat Value Sales Tax 0.02 - 2017-18 Assistant
Added Tax Act, Commissioner of Sate
2003 Tax
The Central Sales | Centrzl Sales 0.00 - 2013-14 Deputy Commissioner
Tax Act, 1956* Tax (Kerala} Commercial Tex,
Kerala
The Central Sales | Central Sales 0.00 0.27 2012-13 Joint Commissioner
Tax Act, 1956% Tax (Madhya Appeal
Pradesh) :
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 52.30 - 2015-16 Joint Commissioner

Appeal

79



B 3 R & Associates LLP

Amount Period to -
Name of Statue | Nature of Dues Dem.a nd deposited which Forum where dispute
raised (in lacs) X amount Is pending
(in lacs) relates
The Central Sales | Ceniral Sales 049 0.14 2014-15 Agssessing Officer,
Tax Act, 1956 Tax (Odisha) Sales Tax
(Bhubaneswar)
Central Sales Tax | Central Sales 23,55 - 2013-14 to Assistant
Act, 1956 Tax (Rajasthan) 2016-17 Commissioner of
Commercial tax,
Jaipur
The Central Sales | Central Sales 0.01 - 2016-17 Deputy Commercial
Tax Act, 1956 Tax {Telangana) Tax Officer,
Telangana
The Central Szles | Central Sules 8.63 - 2016-17 and | Additional
Tax Act, 1956 Tax (Uttar 2017-18 Commissioner
Pradesh} {Appeals) of
Commercial Tax
Noida
Goa Value Sales Tax 032 - 2012-13 Commissioner
Added Tax Appeals .
Act.
Jharkhand Value | Sales Tax 3.04 - 2011-12 Joint Commissioner
Added Tax : Appeal
Act, 2005
M.P. Value Sales Tax - 5.28 1.75 2013-14 Joint Commissioner
Added Tax Act Appeal
2002
MP. Value Seles Tax 61.60 1.23 2016-17 Commissioner Sales
Added Tax Act Tax
2002
Crissa Value Sales Tax 0.10 - 2014-i5 STO (Bhubaneswar)
Added Tax Act,
2004 :
U.P Value Added | Sales Tax 518 - 2016-17, STO (UP)
Tax Act-2008 2017-18
The Uttaranchal | Sales Tax 0.02 - 2016-17 Assistant
Value Added Tax Commissioner,
Act-2005 Comimercial Taxes
Delhi Value Seles Tax 13.15 - 2013-14 Deputy Comimnissioner
Added Tax Act- (Appeals) of Sales Tax
2004 Delki

* Represents demand below Rs one lac. .
As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of duty of excise,

{viii}

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company doesn’t have any loans
or borrawings from any bank or financial institution. Further, no loans or borrowings were taken

trom govemment and there were no debentures issued during the year oroutstanding as at 31 March
2021. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any tnoneys

by way of term loans, Also, the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3ix) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

1
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)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Gv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xii} of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
tecords of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered any non- .
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingty, the provisions of
Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required (o be registered under Section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For B 5 R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

\yiEe-

Sandeep Batra

. Place: New Delhi Partner
Date :24-Tune-2021 Membership No.: 099320

UDIN:21093320AAAABET367
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of Digiﬁfe
Distribution and Marketlng Services Limited for the period ended 31 March 2021,

Report on the internal financial controls with reference fo the aforesaid standalone fnancial
statemenits under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A}f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinien

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Digilife Distribution
and Marketing Services Limited (“the Company™} as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matetial respects, adequate intemal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2021,based on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statemenis criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, cluding adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act™).

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our andit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respecis.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financia) statements included ebtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a marerial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the nssessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the anditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matecial misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or émor,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit apinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial staterments.

/
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Meaning of Internal Financlal controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staternents for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inchide those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded s necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. :

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or iraproper management override of controls, material misstatemenis
due to error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Finn Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

W~ '
Sandeep Batra i
Place; New Delhi Partner

Date :24-Tune-2021 Membership No.: 099320
UDIN:21093320AAAABE7367
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Digilife INgtribu thon and Marketing Fervices Limited
Ealance Shect as at Marzh 31,2021

As at ’ Asat
30032081 F1.03.2020
Notes ¥/ Lacs Eilacs
1. ASSETS
Non-curvent assets
Eroperty, plaut and equipment ala)y - -
Right of use agders ah) - -
Financial Assets
([} Othecs finewneial nseets 4 .76 -
Advanee Lo e tax (net) 5 11284 155
Ol nON-CUITENT st ] 23L56 42205 292 68 35723
Current assets
Inwvenrories - - .12
Financial agsets
(i3 Trade receivables 8 - 1220
{ii] Cash and cash equivalents ] 2968 =H_ B
(i) Banb balances other than (i} ohove i - 2,31
(iv}Otier Gnavwis] aszetz 11 - E.54
Other current assets 1 1470 44.36 492 56 683.54
Total Assets o634 L,041.07
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equty share capital 13 BHOGO0 5000
Oulier eqqalty 14 igm1.10) (106.10) {5,650.96) (45.06}
Liahilitica
Non-corrent llablides
Provislong n - .41
| Current linbilities
TFiwncial liabilitles
(i} BorLowings 16 43599 -
[id} Trade paysbles w
(8] Total outsianding dues of micrs cnterprises and smell - R
enlerptizes
1) Total ing dues of credn ther than aricro
enterprises and small enterprises 9056 o
(i} Other finianetal liabilities 18 2.64 577
Ocher carrant Liabillties w 5.58 B5.06
Provsions 20 47.48 ETEG8 17.82 1,0B6.62
Totel Equiky and Liahiliries L041.07
P A ing Polici 2
The notes referred to sbove fore an Lntegrol part of tha finaneial statements.
As per our repatt of even dave aitachad
For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Daesters
Climizred Acomrntants Digilifc Distritrution and Marketing Sexvices Limited
Regisiration Munber-116231W,/ W-100024 =
a / Dilip Kumar Srivastava Fawan Komar Danwat
Frrtner Mariaging Director Thirectar
Mewbership Mumber - 043529 TINH - 06B47137 DIN - ¢h8ar503

x G2 o
Owraﬁ’.(-l;’:‘ Ganjan 3

Chief Finarial Officer Company Secretary

Hew Dellid, Jwne 24, 2021 Modda, June 24, 2021

W\
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Trigilife Dirtribution and Marletl dees Timlned
Slatemanl of Profit amd Loss for the perked ended March at,20m1

Year ended Year ended
31.0%. 2021 ;03200
Maotey Flaca ¥fLocs

Tricones
Tevenne from operations a1 1,273.35 226208
Othec Incone 2a 150.45 7311
Total tncome 233500
Expeases :
Purehoras of stack-intrade Lou0.BG 1EETGE
Changes L1 inventories of stock-ln ~trede 23 2332 Axapl
Other direct expense 24 018 %17
Emplcyes benafits expece 3 .25 5659
Finance costs ak 255 oz
Depeeckation and amontization axpenge six), 30b) - 7.61
Cther txpenaes a7 43075 FoLAR
Tatal gXpensen . 1,485,685 2,286.64
Profilflass) brtore exoeprinnal items pad lax (50.85) 40.45
Bxpoplional Rems - -
Profit/{luss} beforetax (0. BE) 4645
Lo laux expense: (refer onle 363

nCurrent tax .39 Bz

-Deferrad tax - 2% U733 125,43
Loss fur the year 160.14) {70.00)
ther comnprehensive income
[tats that will net be reckaasified te profit or loas
Galn/0s) e remvasuement of delived bewedit plan - g7
Leas: Incorne Lax relaling o ilems that will not be redlassilied o .
profit o lese -
B (i) Hems that will be reclaczifed to proficor lass - -
Lii} Inemme Lex relating Lo ems that will he ceclassied w profk or . . - o
Ty
Toal eomprehensive loss for the year (B4} (FAa4)
Earnduge per shae fin 7) 29
{iy Bazle (of 2 10/- enchy {ena1) (o)
{if} Diluted fof  10/= each) {913} (oad)
Slgnifiennt Accotnting Policies z
The notes referrad to dbave forn a7 ittegeel part of the financial setemeats.
Ax peror repnrt of even rats pHAched
For BER & Asscriotes LLF F and on behaif of tha Board of Directors
m:mmmﬂum Digilife Dastribution axd Mirketing Services Linilted

Regiotr oo Ruml 25TV 24 -
%@Q\\ W
San Rtro / THlip Kumar Srlvasiavs, FPawmn Kumnnr Dacivar
Pormer Managing Direrine Tirecioe
Mambership Humber - rg3320 DI - DEB4T7IS7 DIN - 0RE{TRS
BGHM
Chisf Financial Cfficer

New Dulhl, June ¢4, 2021 Noide, June 24, 2021
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Digilife il and Marke! Lim¥ted
Cash Flirw Statement for the period anded March $1,2081

1. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profir/{loes) before tax

Adjusiments For:
Drepreciatten snd snortisanen expense
Fnance cast
Tnbeest intome
Het prafil on gale of property, plont & squipment
Deposit/advanoes written ¢f
Provision for doubtfol debts
Frovishon for doabfol loans amd advances and other current asselz
Gain  Jois on foreign exchange fluctuiion
Provishors fo1 other current assats
Brovishons/Haldiktios no longer required wyitten back
Operating profit bofore changes in operating accets and liabhilitios
Cheunges in operating asscts and Dahilites:
- Daetense i trade raceivables
+ Decrapsef(incrence) bn corvent gtleer assets
= Intreass in i corrent other agsets
- Bectase in Inventorics

- Decrasse in oyrent [iabillbes
= (Decreasz)/ increase in not cucrese Liabllnies

Net cash (uved in} [ gai d from op g activith
= Taxes received /{pabd} (et
Net rash (nzed in), wed from operating activit

Lol flow from Investing Activities:

Tnterert racelved
Broceeds from sl of fized aesets
Redamption In argtn mossy accaunt

Net eash g d from i ting activiti

3. Carh Flow from Finaneing Activities:

Proceeds from short term bomrowings.
Lease abligatlon padd

Rapaymant of short berm barrowlngs
Tnlerest paid

Netcash used in financing activitles
Net (decrease) { Increase bn cash snd cash equivalents

Opchiitig hal: f ool and cash oq
Closimg balanes of cosh wnd cash equivabests

Cazh and eash equivalenis comprice of
Talances witls banks in currenl dcoounts

Notas:
Flgores In brackeds indlcate cazh sutflew.

The above cosh flow from operating activitias has been prepared under the “Indirect Bethad™ ax sel out in Tndian 4

Az par our repeont of #ven date atrached

For B S R& Associntes LLP
riered Aceotmionts
Regislmtion Mumber-nbagi ¥ /W-1mnnzg,

S

Pariner
Mambarchip Numler - 0g3320

New Dedhi, June 24, 2021

(A}

(B

[L8]
(A+E+C}

Year ended Year ended
31-08.2081 1405 2020
Lilack
(50.85) 4645
- 7.61
355 saz
[b.19) (38.52)
{0.03) -
- 1165
026 a7
5868 -
(0.61) 132
221,88 -
{145.82) z38.80 110 86 221y
188 py 24-34
[EX-T3 14%.25
.17 34944
12 {717}
z9.12 a3368
{3.74) (43022}
(0410 {6z 80} (.24, (tom 26}
{a44.76) {586.90}
(r.58) 95.09
J— T L Gmdy
6,10 g3z
.08 -
[L¥L] 0T 6.9 G5
—_—TT Lo
59300 -
- (7s7)
{170.29) o)
0. 422.44 (6.3} (13.84)
Lz fg)
45653
5851
29,68 =B.A1
dard (Tnd A%} & of cash flows

Foa el on behalf of the Board of Direviars

Digilife I)Jwilrtﬁnn dl Marketing Services Limited

Dillp Kumitr Scivastava

Managlng [Hrector
TN - 06847137

L

Taurav 2
Chief Finanrial Officer

Noida, June 24; 2021
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Digilife Disoribution and Marketing Services Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31,2021

a. Equity Share Capital

T/Lacs

W‘ = -
[Eauity share capital
shares

Balange as at 01042019 56,050,000 £,605.00
Balance as at 31.03.2020 58,050,000 5,805.00
Ealance as af 01.04.2034Q 50,050,000 5805.00
Balapee as at 31032021 56,050,000 5,605.00
b. Other Equity

E/Lacs
Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance ag at 01.04.2019 (5.572.72) (5,572.72)
Loss for the year {Fo.00} {Pr.00)
Other comprehensive income Far the year a.76 076
Ealance gs at 31.03.2020 (5.650.96) {5.660.96)
Balance as at 01.03.2020 {5.650.06} (5,650.96)
Loss for the year (60.14} (60.14)
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Balance as at 31.03 2021 ] (B0} (5:713.10)]

The notes referrad to above form an integral pact of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attachied

For BS K & Associates LLP Far and an behaif of the Board of Directors
rigred Accountants Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Lirnited

D ool G

& i Dilip Knmar Stivasteva Pawan Kumar Danwar
Fartner . Managing Director Director
Membership Number - 093320 DIN - 06847137 DI -« 06847507
GM /x -
halla Gunjan ina
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
MNew Delhi, June 24, 2021 Noida, June 24, 2021

AN
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

i. Corporate information

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited (‘the Company’) is domiciled and incorporated in India.
The registered office of the company is situated at 866, Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019.

The Company is primarily engaged in value-added distribution of technology, mobility and consumer
electronic products.

The fnancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24.06.2021,

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation and measurement
() Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified nnder Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (#) which is the functional currency of the
Company.

(if) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention
and on accrual method of accounting, except for the certain financials assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies below.

2.2 Recent Indian Acecunting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There
is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

2.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses disclosure of contingent labilities and contingent assets at the date of
the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. The actual results
could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in
current and future periods.

S,

Ly
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statemenits

2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
estimates,assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statement:

a) Property, plant and equipment

Management engages external adviser or internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives
and residual value of property, plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful
Jives and residual value are reasonable.

b} Intangibles

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of intangible assets. Management
believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

¢) Income taxes

Management's judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferrad
tax assets and Habilities. The Company reviews, at each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and amount of unreeognised deferred tax assets, in view of availability of future
taxable income to realise such recognised and unrecognised assets. The Company has significant
business losses which are available to be set-off against the future taxable income, at each reporting
date, the management evaluates whether it is reasonably certain to recognise deferred tax assets on
such business losses, considering the future outlock of business. The factors used in estimates may
differ frorn actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the
financial statements.

d) Contingencies

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in
respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

e) Allowance for uncoliected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the
present vahie of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets,

2.5 Correntversus non-current classification

All assets and Habilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating eycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III 1o the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the
pature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and eash equivalents, the Company has aseertained its operating eycle as 12 months for the purpose
of current-non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

2.7

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the aequisition of the items. The gain or loss arising en the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to statement of
profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of
assety as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed
under Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013,

Assets residual values, depreeciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end
considering the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusted
residual life prospectively. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in staterent of profit and loss within other income.

Intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that
future economic benefits attributed to the asset will fow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets that are acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. Gains ot
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Sgftwaies

Softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised
over the petiod of license.

Intangible Assets (other than goodwill} are amortised at straight line basis as follows:
Software 1-5 years

7,
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

2.8 Leases

As alessee

As a lessee, the Company leases many assets including properties and office equipment. The Company
previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
mransferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company. Under IND A8 116, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease labilities for most of
these leases — i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.

At commencement or on madification of a contract that contains a lease compenent, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone price.
However, for leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account
for the lease and associated non-lease components as a single lease component

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases whete the Company is a lessor Is recognised as income cn & straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to Increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in
the lease. Inventories given on finance lease are recognised as deemed sale at fair value. Lease income is
recognised over the period of the lease so as to vield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the
lease,
2.9 Financial instruments
A. Financial instruments - initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets and liabilities
are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs in case of financizal asseis
and liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and labilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair valne, and transaction costs are expensed in the
statemnent of profit and loss.
B. Financial assets
1. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Debt instrument

]

b
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Digilife Distribution and Maxketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

a.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss when the same are managed by the Company on the basis of their feir value and their
performance is evaluated on fair value basis in accordance with a risk management or investment
strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair value through profit or lass are carried in the
balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other income in the staterent
of profit and loss.

. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans and receivables are mon-derivative financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial asseis is included
in other ineome.

. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these
finaneial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the eontractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inierest on the
prineipal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

1.

Subsequent measurement

The Company subsaquently measures all equity investments at fair value. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss as other incoine when the Company's
right to receive payments is established.

. Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset explres ot it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset.

C. Financial liabilities

1.

J})/

Subzequent measurement
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Finaneial Statements

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Financial liabilities measured at amotised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate method. The effective intevest rate method's amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2. Derecognition

A financial Hability is derscognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

D. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

E. Derivative financial instruments - current versus non- current classification

Derivative insirnments will be held for a period beyond twelve months after the reporting date,
ave classified as noncurrent (or separated into current and non-current portions) consistent with
the classification of the underlying item. These are classified as current, when the remaining
holding period is up to twelve months after the reporting date.

F. Fair value measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unchservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2- Valnation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unohservable.

2.10Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1

based on the applieable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable
income, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax anthorities.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised of carried forward tax losses and tax credits

Deferred tax agsets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognised a deferred tax assets only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised, Deferred tax assets-unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforcesble right to offset current tax
labilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or no different tax entities, but they intend to seitle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and labilities will be realised simultaneously.

Inventories

Stock-in-irade is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Costs of inventories also include all other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on the
basis of weighted average. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deduneting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Goods in-transit is valued inclusive of custom duty, where applicable.

2,12 Cash and cash equivalents

/a{
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.13 Impairment of assets
a. Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses asscciated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVQCL. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in cradit risk.

For trade receivables cnly, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

b. Non-financial assets
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit
and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there
has been a change in the estimates nsed to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have heen determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation)
had no impairment loss heen recognized for the asset in prior years.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss cver the period of the
horrowings using the effective interest method. Pees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down oecurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a finaneial lizbility that
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2,15

2.16

ii.

has been extinguished ot transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as other
gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability hbecomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
llability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to derand payment as a consequenca of the breach.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or eonstructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amouilt can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting pericd. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessients of the time value of meney
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannct be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occarrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (2 the functional currency”). The Company's
operations are primarily in India. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR),
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

=52
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transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss within finance costs, All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.17 Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an

amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
products or services.

Sale of products
f r ition
The Company is engaged into the business of —

¢ Purchase/ sale and distribution of IT products, including computer hardware and mobile
handsets. .

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is trangferred to the
customer

Measurement of Tevenue

Revenue is measured based on the transaction priee, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level eredits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified
in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Interest income

Interest income from loans and receivables (debt instruments) is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When
caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

A
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2.18 Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the

end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by diseounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms
of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net belanee of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Remmeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailroents are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Provident fund

In respect of certain employees, provident fund contributions are made to a multi-employer Trust
administered by the holding Company. The Company’s liability is actnarially deterrnined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of the year and any shortfall in the fund size maintained by the
Trust set up by the holding Company is additionally provided for. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Defined eontribution plans

Contributions to the employees' state insurance fund, administered by the prescribed government
authorities, are made in accordance with the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and are recognised as
an expense on an accrual basis.

Company’s contribution towards Superannuation Fund is accounted for on acerual basis.

The Company makes defined contributions t¢ a Superannuation Trust established for the purpose. The
Company has no further cbligation beyond the monthly contributions.

Other benefits
Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from
the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is

98



Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements '

measured at the expected cost of accumvulating compensated absences as & result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumnulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term empleyee benefits. The Company’s liability is
actunarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/
gains are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Long term employee benefits

Employee benefits, which are expected to be availed or encased beyond 12 months from the end of the
year are treated as other long termn employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined
(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each vear.

2.19 Earnings per share

(i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing:

+ the profit attributable to owners of the Company
+ by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financiat year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
talce into aceount:

+ the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

+ the weighted average number of additiona] equity shares that would have been cutstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Exceptional items

Ttems which are material either because of their size or their nature, and which are non-recurring, are
highlighted through separate disclosure. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better

picture of the Company’s underlying performance.
)
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4 Other non-current financial assets

Considered Good

Balance with bank- margin money

o
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Advance income tax asset {nel of proviaions)

Advance income tax
[Provition for lncome tax of T 126.81 lacs (2020 - ¥ 127.52 laca) ]

TOTAL

Other non-corrent assets
Unsecured, considered good
Balznces with government autharifies

TOTAL

Taventories
Srork-in-trade
[incheding poads-in-ransit Nl (2020 - € 3.45 lacs)]

TOTAL

Asat
FLOX.2021

EfLacs

11284

—T

20186

22356

Asat
3LG3.2020

I Lacs

114.55

242.68

24268

2012

2412

Write - downs of inventoties to net Tealisable value amoants to T Ml lace (2020 - 2 0.2 lacs). These were incduded in thanges in value of inventories of

stock=in-trade in staterment of profit and loss.
Trade veceivables (refer note 3x)
Unsecured:

Considered good

Cradit impaired

Total
Less: Allowance for doubtfal debts

Cash and cash equivaletits

Balancas with banks

= emrrent aecoant
Cheques In Hand
TOTAL

Other bank balances
Ealances with banke

= On margih aecouut

TOTAL

Qﬁ! ;
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13

6]

{ii)

Other curtent fmanciel assets

Security depoaits
Others (fnelwd gl h and 1 claim ble)

TOTAL

Other cortent assets
Unsecured

Considered good

PRalances with customs, povt trust, excize and sales tax, goode and services
ey aythorilies

Advances to creditors

Deposits with tax authoritics

Prepeid expenses

Congidered doubtful

Deposits and other advences

Lass: Allowance fou doubtful other current asaets

TOTAL

Shate caphtal

Autherlsed

0,000,000 Equity sheres (2020 - 60,000,000) of ¥ 10/- each

TOTAL
Jesued. Bubseribed and Paid

56,050,000 Equity shares of (2080 -56,050,000) ¥ 10/- each (Fully paid
L

TOTAL

Hoies:

Rights attached to Equity shures:

As at Asat
91.03.2021 FLOGZO20
—E — Ml
- L3
- 781
—_— B.Alg
10.67 408,21
z.0¥ 83.33
- 087
108 013
- 3L
- - {164} -
14.70 52-55
G.000.00 6,000.00
£,000.00 6,000.00
5,505.00 sbo5.an
5,605.00 S05.00

‘The Company hag only one class of equity share having a face value of € 10/~ each. Each holder of quity shares ic entithad to one vote per share held. The
Coenpany declares and pays dlvidend in Tndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Boerd of Directars s subject to the approval of the Shareholders in

enzuitg Annnal Getreval Mesting, excopt In case of intarim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Campany, the holdars of equity shares will be antitled to receive the remiaining sssets of the Comparry after disteibotion of
all prefevential amounts. The disteibution will be in proportion to the number of eguity shares hdd by Shaveholders.

. As at .
Shareholders holding more than 5% of the agygrepate shares in As at gLog 2021 JLog om0
the Company No. of shares % of sheres No. of sharas % of shares
HCL Tnfosystems Limited {Halding Company) 56,040,004 0.09% 56,049,994 9.99%
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138

"

Other equity

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Heat lpss for tha year

Orther comprehensive inceme for the year
Closing balance

TOTAL

Mon-current provisions

Provision for gratuity and other employee benefits (refer note 31)

TOTAL
Current borrowings
Loan from related pacty=

TOTAL

Asat
3103.2021

2/Lacs

(8.,550.96)
(60.14>

o Goutoy

(3,711.10)

425.99

425.90

Agat
31.03-2020

3/Lacs

(5.572.72)

(70.00)
U . I
[5.650.06)

B50.96

*Jnsecured Loens from HCL Infosystems Limited, the Holding Company, amournting to € 425.9¢ Crores (2020 - € MIL) ia repayable on demand and

carries an Inlerest @ 3.56% to 4.00% per annum, (vefer note 35).

Trade payables (refer note 35)

(=) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer
note 3¢) and

(b) Tota] omtstemding dues of eteditors other than miero enterprises and
small anteprises

TOTAL

Crther corvent financial liabilites
Employee benefits payable

TOTAL
Other curvent fiabilithes

Advances recetved from customenrs
Statuvory dues payalble

TOTAL
Ourrent provisions

Provision for gratuity and othet employes benefits
Provision for litigation {Refer note 22(b)}+
TOTAL

104

264
2.64

503
0.54

2.58

¥To7

577

Bz
2.05

.31

17.82
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21 Revenue from operatdons

Fabe of products
Other Operating Reveanue
- Sevap Sale

TOTAL

2z Gther meowne
Tnterest income from financial agses at amortised cost
=0 fixed deposits
~0n othera
Ner profit/Ckoes) on atle of property, plam & squipnicnt
Gain/floss) onaccount of Fareign exchange Auctuation
Provisivns,Tidb/lies 1o longer required written back
Miseallaneous income

TOTAL
23 Changes n imveniories of stockin-trade

Cloging balanee
- Stock-in-trade

Cpening balence
- Hock-in-trade

Changes in inventories ot siocksin-rade
24 Other direct expense

Furchage of services

TOTAL
a5 Employes Benefits expense

Balaries, wages, bonus and gratuity {refer note 30
Cantribudon to provident and sther funds (refer note g1}
Btaff welfara axpenaw

TOTAL

26 Fmamce costs
Inteogt expens: on finaneial Gabilitles at anortised cost
‘TOTAL

27 Qther cxpenscs

Fent (refor note 373

Fates and taxes

Printing and sletionery

Communicatinn

Travellng end converance

Packing, fredght and foews;

Legal, prrofesslenal and conaubwney charges (refer note 30)
Tnsurance

Depacitsfadvanees written off

Bank cl.

Allosrance for dowbiful debis

Allowramee for doubtful lnans end advancss and other corrent sesets
Crainf{loce) ot account of foreign echange fuctuation

Cenntiot edt alb d from HCL Indf Limibed, the halding company
Miscellaneous

Year ended
31.03.2021

127335

002

599
025
a.0g
.61
14852
7.00

a1z

29,12

0.8

$.00
0.26

28953

105

Year ended
31032020

!E,_acs

2,26208

8,265,968

3832

1456
2183

70,11

2512

36270

333.58

L1217

£5.59
062
oo

56,22

44q.12
123-54

.18
013
2.41
4811
7.5
11.65
1074
0.7

132
3145

ll.g
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20

4) Contingent Babdlities :
laiims agaluat the Company vot acknowledged as debts:
£/Lacs
Asat Asat
31.02.2021 31.02.2020
Balca tax* 1,025.53 219.23
Indugtrial Dsputes, Civil Suits and Conumer Disputes . 136 136
*Includes swm of ¥ 200.41 Lacs (a5 at 31.05.2020 - ¥ 177.26) deposited Ly the Commpany agminst the abowe.
The amount shown above rep the best posib) i arrived at on twe basis of avalsble information. The uoeertainties and pessible
reimbuoraements are dependent on the outt come of the different legal pmceem whieh have been initiared by fhe Company or the daimants as the case
may be and 1hemﬁ)m canmot be pr Iy, 10 i3 not practicable for the O o the timing; of cash outflows, If any, in respect of the
above p 12 resolution of the regpactiva pi di
by Orther litigatons

The Company has certain sales ¥ax =nd other related Ftigation amounting te T 47.48 lacs {2020~ ¥ 17,51} agamst which pravision have been made.
Provision amounting to ¥ 30,52 lacs (2020~ % 17.58) was provided and provision amounting to I ©.85 lacs (2o20- Nil) was uiilised during the year.

Earnings per share (EFS)

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing ke net profitiloss) for the year attrbutabls to equity shareholders by the weighted sverage numbst of

equity shares outstamdmg during the year. The pmﬁtﬁloas} considered in ascartaining the Company EPS reprasent pmﬂt;{loss) for the year after tax,

Diluted EFS is puted and disslosed wsing the weighted average number of equity and ditutive equivalent shares ontetanding during the yenr except

when results would be anti-dilitive

Particnlars Year ended Year ended

Lags after tax (¥ Lacs) {60.14) (79.00)
: N . 56,050,000 56,050,000

Weighted average number of shares considered as oatstanding in computation of Basic EPY

YWeighted average number of shares consicered as ontstanding in cormputation of Diluted EPS 56,050,000 56,050,000

Bosic FPS {of ¥ 10/~ each) (0.11) fo.14)

Diluted EPS {of ¥ 10/~ aach (oay) (514}

Thete a1w no dilutlve equty shares as at year end.

Remuneration to avditors®
LA ]
Year endded Yesr ended
41.0).203¢ 31.03.2620
a) Btatutory Audit 3.00 450
b} Tax andit fees / Certifications 418 2,00
<) Qut of packet expenses - .65
Total 7A8 215

+ exchuding GST as applicable
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{a)

B}

\0]
{a)

‘The Campany has culculated the varions benefits provided to employees as wnder:

Defned contribanion
During the year, the Company has ised 1he following Ln the
Lacs
Year cnded Year ended
JLOZ.2021 F1L03.5030
(1) Bmployers eontribution to Enyoyes’s Pension Scheme 1005 0,17 0.40
+ [neluded in Contributon be Prowident and Gther Funds under Employes beneflts expens: (Refer Note 25).
DPefined benefit
Gratuity
Pravident fund#

Since thers was o aclive tﬁnnpwrer Jeft a8 2t Miarch 31, 2021, therelore in accardance whh Tnd A% 19, 0o actuarial veluation was carried oul in the respect f the
aforesald defined benefit plan. However information for previous year ending as at March 31, 2020 was based oo the following sssumptions:

¥ilacs
Cratuity
As at An ot
_JL05.30%1  FLAOG.2020

Diseount rate (per anuam) - 5.66
Rate of inerazge in compeneation levels - 5400
Expected average remaining working lives of employees {years) - 10.48
The estimates of fuare saary | ilered in actuarial val take account of infl sentority, ion and other relevant factors such 23 sapply
and demnand jn the employrment macket,

T/hacs

Qratully
Agat Ag at .
AL0Z 2021 21032050
Reconciliation of openlng and closing balances of the present vahue of the defined benefit obligation:

Present vakue of chligation «t the begluning of the year -39 0.9
Currcnt servics cost : - 0.00
Interast cost - Q.07
Total ameunt recognised in profit or loss 0.39 LI
Actuarial {gai)/loss from chauge in demographie assumptions (.10}
Actuazial {gainkfloss from change in financial assunptions 0.05
Experience {gam){losa B RV
Total gmized in other prehensive 1 - {o.76)
Eienefits (paid) / adjusted (0.30} -
Present value of obligation at the cod of the year - 0.3%
/Lo
Graimi

Year cuded Year anvded

31.03.2021 31032020
Coat recognksed for the year:
Current seroe eost - .09
[ntérest cost - 0.07
Acturial {gaiu)floss . (o6

(0.60}

* Included in Salarizs, Wazes, Bonus and Gratuity for Gratuity and Contribution ta Provident and Other Fonds for Provident Fand under Ernplogee benefits
axpense (Rafar Nots 25) and other comprehensive income.

Net rost vecognised for the year™

Reconcillation of the present valuc of the defined benetit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

Tlacs
Cranaey
Asat As#t
JLO0F.2021 FLOZ 2020
Present value of the obligation as ot the end of the year - 099
Fairvzlue of plan assets al the =nd of the year - -
Assels/(Liabilities) recogniged T the Balance Sheet - (o.a9)
Exparience adjustment in plan lkabilities - -
Expariente adjustiment in plan assats b h

# Tn respest of certain eligibla employess, the Company i participant under a provident fund plan which s adninistered throngh 2 multi employer trast, The
perticipants have an abligation io malie good any deficiency in the interest o be paid by the Trusd to iF's members and the ineotne carned by - Accordingly the plan
i 53 a defined benefit plar. The trust hoe obtained an actuzriz) valuation of the Prevident fund liability =5 at the Belance Sheet date and as per valuation report,
ihers 1z no shoroiall as o1 31.03.2021. The valuation report cantained details for the dlselosare requirernent of the Ind A8 19 "Empleyes Benefits” for the ret 452

whale, however breskup into respective entities is nat available and dingly the diseh for prowi fund Hability ag required by Ind A5 19 P
Benefits hag not been made in theee fi 1] ‘The Company's ibutian to pravid $ |3 ¥ 0,08 Laca (2020 - T 0.22 Lacs) which has
been inclus der Contribaticn to Provident and Other Punds (refer nove 253

*D%‘
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Flrewelal Inedinaments and Risk Manage meot

A2 Fair value measurements
The arlaving value of financial instroments Ly crtegories are ns wnder =

4lacs
- Fakr vpbue
i Fairvaine . Total
FParticukara ] Al eoat h ROCT lh%hvﬁt Amertised Cost oo rape TRl Fadr Valne
Finencinl naacis
Current assets
() Teade recelvables B - - - - - -
. . - (12 20} (rz.20) (32 20}
tii}>gch mnd cash equnmleanle o - - . 20,68 20.68 20,68
_ _ - (5A.81) (58.81} {5B.A1Y
() Bank balanees ather thom (1) abows 0 - - - u - -
. - - (B2.31) (82.31) {82.31
(i) Cther fnancial assets 1 . - - - - -
- - - {884} (28q) {8890
- - - 20.68 =350 %9.68
- - - fi8z 16 {16263 {162 18]
Finomcial liebilities
Current Habilitiay
(i} Barrowings % - - - 43890 42509 42509
) Trade pryables 17 - - - 4085 Q006 $0.05
- - - farr.ag) (577.07) igrron
{imi) Othez finansia] liakilities i - - - b4 abd Bg
. - - 537 15770 {577}
- - - S50 ng.ae 519.5¢
- - = itz fa) (532 84) igzaBa)

Hote: Previens year figumes a1 gised in bracksts.
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1 risk

33 Fi

The Conpaty's activities axpose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit rigk. The Company's nanclal risk management is an

integral part of how to plan and

Fte its b strateg

In order to minimize any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, dervative financial instruments, such
as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered bo hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively
for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculativa instruments,

This note explains the sourees of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure Arising from M t B t
Credit risk ‘Trade receivables Ageing Analysis and  |Diversification  of  bank]
Cash and cash equivalents Credit Appraisal deposits, investments, credit]
Bank balances Limits and letters of credit
Other current assets
Other financial assets
Liquidity risk Borrowings, Trade payable and|Rolling  cash  flow|Availabiiy of commitied
Other Liabilities forecasts credit  lines, borrowing|
facilitles and liquid
imvestments
Markat risk - foveign exchange Future coramercial transactions Positjon of not foreign|Forward  foreign  enchange|
exchange risk based|contracts
Recognized financial assets notfon relative assets and|
denpminated in Indian rupee (¥) liahilities
Markaot risk - intevest vate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis | Replacement of high cost debt
with low cost debt

The Company's risk management is carried out by the treasury & eredit control depertmant under policies approved by the
senjor management and Board of Directors.
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements

Credit risk

Credii risk arise from poseibility that costomer may default on iis obligation resulting into financial 1oss. The maximum expesars
to the credit risk ig primarily from trade receivable.

Credit risk on bank balances is not significant as it majorly includes balances with bank with high credit ratings assigned by
interpational and domestic eredit rating agencies.

The credit risk js managed by the Company throngh credit approvals, establishing fhe finaneial reliability of the customers
taking inte account the A ial condition, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of secounts raceivables. Individual limitg
are set accordingly by the Company credit control department.

The Company nses 2 provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss for trade receivable, the provision matrix takes into
consideration histotleal cradit loss experience and other relevant available extornal and internal eredit risk factors.

Following table agewise breakup of trade recefvables:

¥/ Lacs
- - As at As at

Ageing (in days) 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Not Due - 180
o-30 days past due - -
91-180 days past due - -
181-365 days past due - -
1-2 years past due - 19.2G
HMore than 2 years past due 40.41 14133

40.41 162.42

Fmancial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debior failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Company. The Compeny categorises a trade receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractmal payments greater than 3 years past due. Where doans or receivables have been written off, the Company contines to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where Tecoveries are made, these are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

The summary of life ime expected credit Joss allowance made on customer balnces during the year and
balance at the year end is given below:

¥/lacs
Asat As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Opening balance 15022 - 201.79
Provided during the year .26 o.o7
Provision writben back during the year - -
Trade receivables writtan off {110.07) {5164}
Closing halanes 441 150,
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Dhigilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes to the Finaneizl Statements

Liguidity risk:
Liguidity risk is the riak that the Company will not be able to settla or meet its obligetions on time or ata | ke price. The Compeny's treasary
department is sesponsible for liquidity, funding as well as sattlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are
a by seniot t. Maragy t monitors tha Company’s net liguidity position through rolling fovesasts on the basis of expected eash
Hows. -
The table below ises the ity profile of the Company's financial liabllities bazed on contractual undiscounted
payments.
T/Lacs
- 3 Carrying Less than 1 Moxe than 5
Particulars Value On demand year 1to2Years atoj;Years Years
(Non-derivatives
BorTowings
-From others 445.99 425.99 M - - -
Trade payables 90.06 . - 90.96 - - -
(977.07) - {977.07) - - -
-Employee benefits payable .64 - 2.64 - - -
(597} - {577 = - =
Total non-derivative liabilities 519.59 425.99 93.60 - - -
{982.94] - (082 843 d hal -

HNote: Previous year figures are given in brackets,

it
L
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Digllife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Notes o the Finencial Staternents

Market rigk:

Foreign coorency vislks

The Company's primary operations are in Tndia and therefore, fmetional currency of the Company Iz congidered a¢ INR. The Company evaluates
the exchange rate expusnre arising from forelgn earcency transnctmns aud the Compainy follows established elsk management policies which are
approved by the senfor management and the Finanee i quding the use of 4 like foealgn eschang w hedge
enposure to foreign curreney risk.

Foreign currency risk exposure
The Company’s exposure to foreign curreney visk at 2103 20 exprassed in MR are 4 follows

ush
Financial liahilities
Trade payables -
[18.84)
Net exposure to forelgn currency risk (liabilitkes) -
[18.84)

Mate: Previpus year figures are given in brackets.

Sensitivity
The Company's foreign curtency exposure as at the nepomng date not being significant, hence, seusu-mty analysis has not bean repoted.

Market risk:
Interast rate risk

The Compamy's main interest rate risk arise from borrowings with veriable interest rates, which expose the Company to Casl flow interest mte risk,
As at 31.03.2021, the Comnpray has ¥ 426.00 Lakhs (2020~ MIL) of borrowings with variable interast rates. In order to optimize the Company's
position with regards to interest sxpenses and to manage the interast e sk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate fmerest mte sk
management by balancing of fixed rate and floating rate financial instrvments in its wial portfolio.

(&) Interest rate risk exposure

Tl expasure of the gronp's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting year/period are as follows:
¥/Lacs
As at Asar
3L.03.2021 31.03.2020

Vatiable rate borrovangs 435.99 -
Fined rate boveowings - -
Tote] borrowings 425.99 -
As at the end of the reporting period, the eompany had the following variable rate borvowings:
JLOT.202L 31032000
Weighted Weighted
e el Bl =i S ELC
interest rate interest rate
Variable rate borrowings 2.78% 42500 10HL00 NA - NA
(b) Sensitivity
Frofit orloss is zensitive to higher / Jower interast expense from borowings as 4 result of changes In Interest tatas.
¥Filacs
Impact on other
Tmpact an profit after tax components of equlty
Yearended|  Yeor ended As at As at
31.03.2021 21032020 31.03.2021 | 3L03.2028
Itiberest vates ~ increasa by 10 basls points {0.29) - (o.29)| -
Interest rates - decrense by 1o bass points LE) - .20 -

)/
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Digidife Di; ion and teew Limited
Hotes Lo the Einandial Salements

3g Caphial manegermemt

Risk munugemeni

The Company's objertive when munzging caplial are 10 safegeard thair ability to continue 62 goung conksenn 56 that they ean continue to pravide teturns for sharsholders and banafita for other

stakehablers and to rantaln & oplimal capital strsctora to reduce the coat of capirl.

Thee Capitel strosurs ap 0F 31032027 amd 2102020 ware a5 followar

A 3t
41,08 0L

42590
(10vh.10)

J19.59
A5 37

'll;a:n}lol.di\gCumpanyi.e.liC]. Litiiad, has ibed the 8905 of tha shace cpil of the Compeny and atso the Company has taken vaseenced Joan from Helding Company

Henee the Coripany is mot subject fo am dby imp capital requi for 1ha year ended 3103 2021 and 3103 2020

a5 Disclosuce of ralatad parrtias and velated perty transactiony:
{a) Eompany baving substantial Interesi:
HOL Cinpocalon Privabe Limiled
(L) Holding campanyt
HCL Injosystems Limited
() Fellow subsidiaries with whom
HCL Infotech Limited
HCL Leatndng Lumited

have taken place during the year for where halances exist s

Eey Manapewent Forsonnel:

L Ao Mireochia (Till Lath Decercber anaoi

s, Gunjon Khanoe (Company Seorstany)*

PIL- Ga rav BlwiEln was appoinded a5 Chisf Financia] Officer (R0 of e Company w1, oih June, 20317

* Renumeratlon has been pail by HCL Infosystems Limited

Xflacs

Partievlas #ul

Company heving Holing Company Fellow Subsidlaries

Bay-g1 Mar-a0 Mar-21 Mar-zo Mar-oL Mar-20

Mrr-a3

Mar-22

) Trangactiong

Purchase of Goods 3,154.88 1.585.05

L154.86

158005

<HECL Infe Llmired L1531 88 1580.05

1,154 .88

1,5849.05

Asapts Sold - La3 -

=HCL Infoeysreins Limited - 103

Net lnker Company Deposite {1CD)Y

Taken 244 B

Jundd

-HCL Inft Limited 42T -

2244

Net Jater Company Deposity (ICD)
Refunded/ Adjusted

“HGL Inksysiemis Linrited - aas

TInterest on inker Coropamy

Dreposits (ICTY) Takoen 2.8 N

“HCL Cirited 358 N

Redmbur-simen of Expemees

) Faid 1y 71.35

L5t

71.48

=HEL Limted 150 71.95

181

nas

i) Amsdumt dus Lo/ From related
partics™

Trada vereivableg - 08 -

o1

634

Trade payatles o7l m:oé -

27,58

[Curvarl borroriugs 425.00

~Amount dwe bo / fraom related A and ars rep 7 1o bie received in cagh

; 9/
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Bigillfe Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Hotes to the Financial Statements

a6 Texakion: .
a}  Provision for taxation has been computed by applying the Ineoma Tax Act, 1061 and other relevant tax reguistions in the jurisdiction whera the Compony
conduats the business to the profit for the yeat, Deferred tex aasets and deferved t Tiabilities are ofiset, if @ legally snforceable right exists bo sat-off currank
tax Azgets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets amd defarred tax Liabilites relates bo the same taxable entity and the same tatation

ruthosity.
bl Deferred tax:
Major compenenty of deferred tox arlsing on aseount of iming differenes along with their movemend as at 31.03.2061 are aa followes:
R F/Lacs
Mavement
Az at Ag at
Particulars sronagag  durinsthe o o com
Year
Peferved tax assets
MAT eradit - - -
Total - - -
Net deferred tev aseets - - -

® During the year, deferced 1ax aspets amounting te 2 Nil {zo2o: * 17.33 Lakhe) hag been written off due o bk of Teasonable certainty of futars tasable
prafits against which such defered tax assete can be utilizsd.

<) Incomne Gax expenss:

Thiz hote prowides an analysls of the company's income tax expense, aud how the tax expenss is affecled by non ble and non-deductible iteas, It also
explains significanl estimatzs made in relation to The company’s tax positions.

Bflacs
Year ended YVaar ended

Particudars

3L03.3081 ALD3.2020
(1) Incotne iax expenss
(Cuzrent bax .20 N -
Total current bx expense 920 Az
Daferred tax
Decrease it MAT cradit - n7.33
Total deferred tax expense/(beneflr} - 1753
Income tax expense 220 | 125,45

d)}  Reconclliation of b expenge and the acconnting profir multipHed by 1ndia's tax rete;
' Y/lacs
‘Year ended Year ended

Farticulars 31032021 | m.03.0010
Profit before income tax expense (50.85) 4721
Tax st the Indian tax rato of 34.20% (z020— 31.20%) (15 86] 14.73
Differensce in tax ratea betwesn ciirrent tax and MAT - .
Adjustments for curvent tax of prior perfods 9.29
MAT paid - .13
Decrease ¢ (increase) in MAT credit - 102.60
Teferved tax assel ol izad in the currert year 15.86 -
Incone tax expense 9.20 12545

2/ Loey

As at As at

Tox losaes sozaoz | 3Loazozo
Unuzed tax Josses for which no deferred tax aszets has been recognized 5,918.20 384553
Potantial tax benefi @ 31.20% 1.20%) 122186 1,199.81
‘Thee wnised tax losams is not likely to generats taxable income I foraseeable fture. The losses can be carrled forwrd ae par details below:

¥/Lace

. Asat Az at
Previous year 31.03.2021 §roz.z2o000
31.09.2022 i) 567.71
31082003 28gz.41 282.41
41032024 143.20 145.20
31.07.2026 18 1821
01.03.9027 1145 151,58
51,00 2028 0.00 [.00
21.03.2030 70,80 .00
Ha limit - 5245 b2.a2
. 3916.22 3845.53

_7}}
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37

Leases:

The Company has taken various residential, office and godown premises under lezge which has been subsequently
surrendered/cancelled till March 31, 2020 . In the current reporting period, the Company has not entered Into any new
lease contracts, therefore the amount of Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities is shown as Nil as at March 31, 20321, For
other leases, yearly lease payments is expensed off on straight line basis over lease term as rent expenses.

¥/Lacs
Particulars Year ended  Year ended
i 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Depreciation expense - Right-of-uze assets (Building) (refer note 3{k)] - .57
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 26) - 0.30
Rent expense - others (refer nete 27) lz.32 44.12

Total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 51 March 2021 is ¥ Nil {2020: % 7.57 lakhs]).

a
g m‘l;- -k
W

At

ot
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
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38 The Company's chiel nperating deciston moker, from a product and geographic parspactive hag identified thal the {Company’s buziness flls within a singls

business sasment, i.¢, valne-added distributisn of rechnelogy, mobility and eleptronie prod ngly, p t Tnclien
Siandard 108 on “Segment Reportng’, nobified under sertion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at 51.05.2001 segroent lnformation 15 Dot required to he
discloged.

3¢ Distlosure of Micte ond small prizes based on. i i ilabla with the Comp
¥/Lacs
Asat As at
10352021 21033020
a. [} Principal amount remaining srpatd to any suppiler as at the end of the year - .
(i} [nterast dua on the aboye amount. -
b. (i) Amount of inlerest paid in terms of sectinn 16 of fha Miera, Small ard Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006 (Act). .
(i} Amptint of prrincpal made to the liers beyond the inted day during the year, 20.00 870
o amount of inerest due and payable for the perivd of deliy n taking payment but without adding the - -
inkereat specified under the Act,
4. Amountof incerest acerued and remaining uopaid at the end of the year. 053 015
e Amount of further iterest remaining due snd payable cven in the succeeding years, amti] such date - -

when the interest dues A8 above are actually pald to the small enterprizes.

2 “The Board of Direttoce of Holding Company ie. HCL Infosyslems Limibed, in its mesting held on Anguet of, 2020, approved the warger of HCL Leaming

4

42

S

Limited and DigiNfe Disiribution zad Macketing Services Limited (DDMS), wholly owned subsidiarizs of the Holding Company, with HCL Infesystems
Limited. The propesed metger ls for the purpose of simplifying the group structure. As part of the sngaing rationalization of the buslness , the lsaming
bustness and the distiibution buginess are bring scaled down, As @ result, separste antities for these businesses, ie. HCL Learning Limited for Learning
business and DDMS for distdhotian business, are no bonger required. An application wes filed Defrre the Honble Hational Company Law Tribunal (HCLT?)

st New Delld Benels oy 31 September 2620 for abtaining the sanetion of NCLT on the propessd mergzr.
$ince, the sfocesaid Scheme is subject to approval fram converned regulatory suthorities which i idered to bo sul ive, e ing effect of the
ebove Scheme has nok been consideced in thece financial

As at Macch 31, 2021, the Company has accumulated josses and its net worth hae been fully eroded, fhe Company bag a nef lost duting the current and
previous year and the Comgany’s sucrent labilitiss exceeded its cucsent nesets by ¥ 528.95 lics (2020 « % qa2 78 lacs) as at the halance sheet date. Tha Toases
a1 primarily as  resull of revtain historical Jow margin and glow-d of distributien b Tle Compauay's managrment if pursning
strategies which Include sealing down of the dstcibution busthess and merger of oparatens with the Holding Compzny. To ensure the necesaary financial
support for its aperations, the Board of Dlrectots of HOL Infosystems Limbed, which in tum has obiained financls] support from a slgnéfleant promaler
shareholder, hes issoed 4 support letter to the Compary. Considering the above support, the Company's managenent and the Board of Diectors are of the
view that the Commpany will be able to reelize its assets and discharge its contractual abligations snd lisbilities 23 they fall due in the near futore in the pormmal
voutse of busi acrordingly, the financal have lisan 1 ot1 2 going concern basis.

Management balieves that it bas taken inte accennt =l the poszible impacts of lnawn evants arising from COVID-19 pandetrde In the preparvaton of these
financial results, In evaluating the impacd of ©0YID-19 on the Company's ability t2 continue as a golog concern, the management Tves agsessed the mpher ofl
k The

[ts businces ond the carrving walue of its major Assels comprising of plant and ip trade bles and ether receivabla b
impact assessment of COVID-19 1= & continuing process wiven the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and wetue] results may differ
meierlally fram these esti The O will inue 10 monitor any matadal changes o fiture i ditions and any signi fmpact of

these changes would be reeagolsed in tye finausial reculls as and when these matetial changes bo econonie conditions arlse.

For B 8 R & Associates LLF For and on behalf of the Board of Divestors
Chartered AcCouRianis For and an bohaif $F the Board of Directors
Regigtration HombersuibaziW /Wa-100024

o —
'
Eans I * Dilip Kiimar Srlvastava Pawan Kumar Danwear
Parine, 4 Kfanaging Dlrector Drector
MembersMip Number - 092520 AN - 06847137 [N - 06847508

Chief Financial Officer Company Sccletary

New Delhi, June 24, 2021 Noida, June 24, 2021
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Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Unasdites Balonee Sheet as at June go,2021 (Provisional)

1.

ASSEIS
Non-current assets

Praperty, plant and squipment
Right of use azpets
Financiz] Assets

(1) Others financipl agats
Advance income tax {net)
Other non-curant assets

Current assets

{1} Tovestments
(1) Trade receivables
(if) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balaoces other than (i) above
{iv) Other financial asseis
Other current assets
Total Assets
EQUTTY AND LIABITITTES
Equity

Exuity share capital
Qther equity

Nen Controlling Interests
Liabilities
Non-current Habllities
Current Habilities
Financial labdlities

(1) Borrowings
(1) Trade: peyables

(2) Total outstanding dves of micra enterprises and small

enterprises

{b) Total owistanding dues of creditors athee then micro

enterprises and small enterpeises
(§i) Other financial liabilities
Cther currant linhifities
Provigions
Linbifities for Curzent Tax (Met)

‘Total Equity and Liabflitles

For and ot behalf of the Beard of Divectors
Digitife Distributi

ibution and Marketing Bervices Limited

(%ﬂh“w -
Pawan Komar Danwar
Director

DIM - 06847505
New Delhi, September 27, 2021

3
3(b)

0

12

EZ

16
17

1%
20
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Asat
20.00.20Z1
. 0fLacs
89.08
nz8q
81,51 423.24
[GE ]
2511
14.68 19.7%
. 463.0
6/605.00
L) {i1g.60)
429.7¢
9L39
2,644
11,43
4748 582.04
46304

Annexure-VIII

As at
31.05.2021
L/Lacs
82,76
1z84
201,56 422.19
2068
1470 q4.38
46654
5.605.00
(573110} (106.10)
42599
9096
[-X.T]
5.58
57265
46654
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Digilife Distribution and heting Services Limiged .
Unandited Statement of Frofit and Logs for the period ended June go,2021(Provigional)

Period ended Year anded
30.00.2021 31032021
Notes X/Lacs TLacs

Tncome ; . .. .
Revenue from operations - - 1,273.85
Other income f-TY i 543 15945
‘Tatal Income 5.42 1,432.850
Bxpenses:
Cost af matejala eonsurmed
Purchases of stock-in-frade - 1,010.80
Changeg In inventrries af stock-in -trade . . x3 . - . 29.12
Giher dlvect sxpenss 24 - %13
Employes beneflts eXpense 25 - B.og
Emance cosks 26 402 355
TDepreelatlon and amortizetlon expense 3(n), 30h) - -
Other sxpenses P 14.83 43175
Totnl expenses ] 1B.0X 1483.65
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax . Gz810 (50.85)
Exreptional tams - . : -
Prafit/(loss} before tax (2351} {50.85)
ncome tax expense: {refer nole 36)

= Clrrent tax - 0.89

-Defered tax _ . - - FET)
(2) Tax related for earlier years
Profit (Loss) for the perod from continuing operaticons {13513 {go.Ax)
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operations
Tax oF di irued aparations
Profit{{loes) from Discontinued
opecations (afber tay) (X-XI)
Loss for the peried . (13.53) . {fioaa) .
Other comprehenslve income
Items that will not be melassified to profit orloss
Bain/(losa} on remeasurement of defined benefit plan - -
Laga: Incotne e telating to iterns that will not be reclagsified to N
profit or less -
B (§) Ttems that will be reclassified to orofit or losa - -
(i) Income 1oy relating to tems that will be veclasaliied to proflt or _ _ _ -
loas
Total comprehensive loss for the year : : {13.51) [CLEZVR
Earnings per share (n 1) 29
(i) Basic (of € 10/- each) {0.02) [e.t1)
[ii) Diluwied {of ® 10/~ sach) (0.02) (o}
Eammings per equity share {for discontinued operation):
(1) Basic
() Diluted
Eamnings per equity share{for discanlinued & continuing
cpaations) :
(1)Basle 0.0x) (o)

(2)DMted . ’ {0} (o.11)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
DHglllife Distribution and Market:

Director
DIN - 06847503

New Delki, Saptember 37, 3021
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Annexure-IX

B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building Mo, 10,12th Floor Tower-B Telephone: +@1 124 T1O1000
DLF Cyber Clty, Phage-Il Fax: +91 124 235 8613
Guragram — 122 002, India .

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of HCL Learning Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HCL Learning Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the

balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
© incomne), standalone statement of changes in equity and  statement of cash flows for the ycar then ended,

and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and

other explanatery information (heletnaﬂcr referred to as “financial statements”™),

In owr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiréments and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
apprepriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
ot our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [f, based on the wotk
we have performed, we conclude that there is a materizl misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regacd,

2y
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B § R & Assaciates LLP

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statemenis

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes i equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section [33 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate sccounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the agsets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making fudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemnal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are fiee from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and-Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accouitting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no reastic altemative but {o do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements cen arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procadures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional cnissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procadures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(D) of the Aect, we are also responsibie for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference o
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

*» Conclude on the approptiateness of the Management and Beard of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a materia) uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a Roing
concem. If we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial stztements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events of conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial stateinents represenl the underlying transactions and
events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance togarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemnal control
that we identify during our audir.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to comrnunicate with them all relationships and cther matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters conununicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters, We describe these matters in our anditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverss consequences of doing so would reasonably be expecied
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirentents

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors® Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Cenual
Government in terms of section 143 (11} of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
maiters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repaort that;

2) We have sought and obtained all the information and eaplanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the putposes of our andit,

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

¢} The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations recejved from the direstors as on 31 March 2021 tsken
on recerd by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1654(2) of the Act,

) Withrespect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, tefer to our separats Report in
“Annexure B,

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Anditors) Rules, 201 4, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given ta us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements- Refer Note 27 to the financial statements,

ii. The Company did not have any long-tenm contracts including derjvative contracts for which
/ there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8§ November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial staterments since they do not pertain to the financial year ended
31 March 2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanation given fo us, during the current year, the
Company has not paid any remuneration to its ditectors during the year, The remuneration to any director is
paid by HCL Infosystems Limited (“Holding Company™). The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197{16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

Far B 8 R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

g

Sandeep Batra

Place: New Delhi FPartner

Date ;:24-June-2021 Membership No.: 099320
UDIN:21093320AAAABDY072
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the mentbers of HCL Learning
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(i) (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v}

i)

(vii)

el
—

details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed agsets, by which

all fixed assets are verified by the monagement in a phased manner over a period of three years,
In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification by management is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the bature of its assets. As informed to s, 1o
physical verification was required as per the phased programme.

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company does not own any immovable properties. Therefore, the
provisions of Clawse 3(iXc) of the said Order are not applicabie to the Company. '

The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management during the year. Based on above verification, no discrepancies noticed.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Cormpany has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, and limited lizbility partnerships or other parties covered
m the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan,
or provided any guarantee or security or made any investment as specified under Section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. :

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companijes Act, 2013 and the rules framed there
under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section {1) of section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragrapl 3¢vi) of the
Order iz not applicable to the Company.

(a} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducied/ acerued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of
Provident Fund, Employees® State [nsurance, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of
txcise and Value added tax.
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According te the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Incomne-tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material statutery dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2021 fora period of more than six months from the date they became payable

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, duty
of excise, service tax and duty of customs and Goods and Services Tax which have not been
deposited by the Company with the appropriate auiborities on account of any dispute as at 31
March 2021. The particulars of service tax, sales tax and other material statutory dues as at 31
March 2021 which have not been deposited on account of dispute is mentioned in the annexure

below:
Demand | Amount
: Raised Deposited | Assessment | Forum where dispute
Name of Act Nature of Dues (Rs. in (Rs. in Year is pending
Lacs) Lacs)
Central Sales Tax, Central Sales Assistant VAT Officer
1956 Tax (Delhi) 15.84 - 2014-15 , Delhi
U.P. Trade Tax Act, Commercial Tax
1048 Sales Tax .1 493 2014-15 Tribunal, Noida
Commissioner
U.P. Trade Tax Act, Sales Tax 7.43 5.38 2015-16 Appeals, Commercial
1948 :
Taxes, Moida
U.P. Trade Tax Act Ieint Commissioner,
15‘,4‘8, " | Sales Tax 0.00 0.00 2M35-16 Commereial Taxes,
Noida
Rajasthan Value Comemial Tax
Added Tax Act, Sales Tax 0.15 - 2014-15 Officer, Jaipur,
2003 : Rajasthan
Tamil Nadu Value Assistant
Added Tax Agt, Sales Tax 038 - 2014-15 Comumissioner of Sales
2006 Tax Chennai
Central Sales Tax, Central Sales Deputy Commissioner
1956 Tex O 2003141 F Sales Tax ~ Mumbai
(Maharashtra)
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Name of Act | Nature of Dues Demand - Amount { Assessment| Forum where dispute is

Raised (Rs. | Deposited Year pending

in Lacs) {Rs. in
Lacs)
Central Sales | Central Sales 18.84 - 2014-15 Assistant VAT Officer ,
Tax, 1956 Tax (Delhi) ' Delhi
UP. Trade Sales Tax 9.86 473 2014-15 Commercial Tax
Tax Act, i ) Tribunal, Noida
1948
U.P. Trade Sales Tax 7.43 5.38 2015-16 Commissioner Appeals,
Tax Act, Commercial Taxes,
1548 Moida .
U.P. Trade Sales Tax 0.00 0.00 2015-16 Joint Commissioner,
Tax Act, Commercial Taxes,
1948 Noida
Rajasthan Sales Tax 0.15 - 2014-15 Commercial Tax Officer,
Value Added Jaipur, Rajasthan
Tax Act, ’
2003
Tamil Nadu Sales Tax 0.38 - 2014-15 Assistant Commissioner
Value Added of Sales Tax Chennai
Tax Act,
2006 .
Central Sales | Central Sales 0.23 - 2013-14 Deputy Commissioner of
Tax, 1956 Tax Sales Tax - Mumbai
(Maharashtra) ]
(vili} According to the information and explanation given 1o us, the Company has not availed any loan

(i)

(x)
(=i}
(i)

(xiii)

{xiv)

or borrowings from any financial institution, banks or government and did not have any outstanding
dues to the debenturs holders during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{viii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to s, the Company has not raised any money
by way of term loan. Also, the Company has not raised any ioney by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given 1o us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3{xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given te us and based vn our examination of the
records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placerment of shares or fully or

partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Ovder are not applicable to the Company

125




B S R & Associates LLP

{xv}  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions
of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Sectioﬁ 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi} of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.
For B S R & Associates LLFP
Chartered Accountanits
Firm Registration No.:11623 1 W/W-100024
c@y

_ \}) ‘
Sandeep Batra

Place: New Delhi Partner

Date :24-June-2021 Membership No.: 099320

UDIN:21093320AAAABDO072
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors® report on the financial statements of HCL Learning Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements nnder
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A){f} under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’
sectton of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have andited the intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HCL Learning
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalene financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the intemal financial controls with reference o financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financisl Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accovntants of
[ndia (the “Guidance Note™). :

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Direciors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based-on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statetents
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internial control stated in the
Guidance Mote. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenaoce of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and ervers, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 {(hereinafier referred
to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143¢10} of the Act, 10 the extent applicable to an audit
of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical réquirements and plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial stalements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all matetial respecis.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their opersting effectiveness. Cur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the sssessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial contrels with reference to financial statemenis.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is & process designed to provide
reasonable assurence regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of tecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the -
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expendituras of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants )
Firm Registration No.: 11623 1W/W-100024

v~

Sandeep Batra

Place: New Delhi Partrer

Date :24-June-2021 Membership No.; 099320
UDIN:21093320AAAABDY)72
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Balinee Sheet a6 at March 31, 2021
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HCL Lenrning Limited
Statement of profit and lass for the period ended Marsh g1, 2021

Year ended Yeur ehided
21.03.2021 91.03.2010
_ Motes Filacs R /1°1=

Ineeme :
Terenue from oparabions E . 53b.75
Ofhet income &1 258.94 00,28
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Expenses:
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Clamges in inventorics of finished goods, stouk-in -trade az {z.a7) &1
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Significant Aceounting Policies . z
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A5 per ouk veport of even date attacled
For B SR & Asspriaics LLP For and on behalf of the Board of D
Chartered Accou niands BECL Leavnlng Limit

Firm Registration Number-136231W/ W-100024

Ak
Foriner Divector Director
Membarehip Nursber - aogaa0 DIM - 046847187 DM - oengoBss
New Delhi, June 24, ¥031 Hoida, June 24, 2021
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Casly Flow Ssatcment for the yoar your anded March 31, 2021
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Statement of changes in equity for the period ended Marels 4, 2021

a. Equity Sharve Capital T/ Lacs
Number of Equity Equity
Shares Sharve Capital

Balance us at 01.04.2019 75,374 JE— '
Balance a8 at 31.03.2020 75,274 753
Balance a8 at 01.04.2020 73374 I -
Balance as ol 31.0%.2021 TERT4 T84
b. Other Equity

¥/Lacs

Reserves snd Surplus
Particulurs m T Total
Securitics Premivm N
Ea:
rve Retained Earnings
Balance as at 01.04.2010 5,007.54 {11,738.10 (5,740.58
Lass frr the year 101010 1,110.10
Gther comprehensive income for the year 0.80) 0.8
Baolanice a5 at 31032020 590752 {10,626.20} {4,6z8.68)
Balance as at 01.04.2020 5,097.52] (10.626.20) [4,628.68)
Profit for the yeor - (B1.03)| (61.93)
Crther comprehensive incone fur the year - - -
Balance as at §1.03.2021 5.007.52 (10,688.13} (4,640.61}
Securitles Premium :
The ageregate diffevence batween the par value of shares and the auhecription amount is recognised as share premium.
Retained Earnitgs:
Remined eamings represeuts the undistributed profies of the Comy an lated 2z on Bel Sheet date,
This is the Statement of Chianges in Equity 88 per aur report of even dute attached
For B 8§ R & Assopeiates LLP For and en behalf of the Board of Directors
Chariered Accounianis HCL Learning Limiled
Firm Registration Number-118231W/W-100024
“

Sandeep Batra Dilip I@;ﬂ\m Meelosh Agarwal

Partner Director Director
Membership Numbet - 093320 DI - ob4ny7 DIN - oo14u8548

New Dathi, June 24, 202, Noida, June 24, 2021
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HCL Learning Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Corporate information

HCL Learning Limited (‘the Company’) is domiciled and incorporated in India. The registered office of the
company is situated at 806, Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019.

The Company is primarily engaged in selling of digitised educational content & learning solutions.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issne on 24.06.2021.

Significant aceounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and measurement
(1)  Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Compardes (Indian Aceounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee () which is the functional currency of the
Company.

(i) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention

and on acernal method of accounting, except for the certain financials assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies below.

2,2 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There
is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021

2.3 Use of estimales

hy

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses disclosure of contingent liabilities and contingent assets at the date of the
financial statements and the results of aperations during the reporting period. The actual results could differ
from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in enrrent and future
periods.
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2.4 Critical aceounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In

the process of applying the Company’s accounting polici¢s, management has made the following

estimates,assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statement:

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

Property, plant and equipment

Management engages external adviser or internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives
and residual value of property, plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful
lives and residual value are reasonable.

Intangibles

Internal technieal or user teamn assess the remaining useful lives of intangible assets. Management
believes that assigned useful lives are reasunable.

Income taxes

Management's judginent is required for the calculation of provision for incomme taxes and deferred tax
assets and liabilities, The Company reviews, at each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets, in view of availability of future taxahle
income to realise such recognised and unrecognised assets. The Company has significant business
losses which are available to be set-off against the foture taxable income, at each reporting date, the
management evaluates whether it is reasonably certain to recognise deferred tax assets an such
business losses, considering the future outlook of business. The factors used in estimates may differ
from actual outcome which could lead 1o significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Contingencies

Management judgement is reguired for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of
pending matters with accuracy. ’

Allowsance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irvecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables ave written off when management deems them not
to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the
cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial agsets.

Revenue recoghition

« The Company’s eontracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and
services to a customer. The Company assesses the products / a service promised in a contract and
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinet performance
obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the enstomer to benefit
independently {rom such deliverables.

DJ/
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2.5

2.6

+ Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price
conld be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements
such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price roncessions and
incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant finaneing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is 2 payment for a distinet product or service from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not oceur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company
allocates the elements of variable considerations to 2il the performance obligations of the contract
unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance
obligations.

+ The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a
performance obligation. In case of wwiltiple performance obligations the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on the bagis of the relative standalone selling price
of each distinet product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not
chservable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction
price to each distinet performance obligation.

s+ The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at
a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indieators such as how customer
consures benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or
existence of enforeeable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product
or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the
customer, ete.

s Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The
Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to
determine the degree of completion of the performance obligation.

Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as ‘per the Company’s normal
aperating eycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule IlI to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature
of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its cperating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current =
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historieal cost less depreciation and impairment loss, if any.
Historical cost incindes expenditure that is directly attribntable to the acquisiticn of the items. The gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of propesty, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and
loss during the reporting period in which they are incirred.

" /s
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2.8

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of
assets as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed
under Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end
considering the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjnsted
residual life prospectively, An asset's carrying amount is written down imimediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable arncunt.

Intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attribited to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured,

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of intangible
assets that are acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
avcumulated impairment losses, if any. -

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit 2nd loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the
amartisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed aceordingly. Gains or
lusses arising from the retirement or disposal of an Intangible asset are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proveeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the

statement of profit and toss. :
Saftwares

Softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over
the period of license.

Intangible Assets {other than goodwill) are amortised at straight line basis as foilows:

Inteilectual Property Rights 7 years
Software 1=5 years
Leases

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Company leases many assets including properties and office equipment. The Company
previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
transferved significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to awnership of the underlying asset to the
Company. Under IND AS 116, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most of
these leases — i.e. these leases are cn-balance sheet.
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At commencement or on modification. of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component en the basis of its relative stand-alone price.
However, for leases of property the Company has elected not to separate pon-lease components and account
for the lease and associated non-lease components as a single lease component

As alessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the receipts are struetured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the expected inflationary cost inereases, The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature,

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in
the lease. Inventories given on finance lease are recognised as deemed sale at fair value, Lease income is
recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the
lease. :

Sale and leaseback

Sale and lease back transaction is recognised if transfer of asset satisfies the requirements of IND AS 115 to
Le accounted for as a sale of the asset. The company shall measure the right-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback at the proportion of the previcus carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of use
retained by the company. Accordingly, the company shall recognize only the amount of any gain or loss that
relates to the rights transferred to the buyer.

Financial instruments
A. Finaneial instruments — initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contraetual provisions of the instrument, The Company determines the clagsification
of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets and liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value plus directly atuibutable transaction costs in case of financial assets and liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair valne, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and
loss.
B. Financial assets

1. Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Debt instrument

a. Financial assets at fair value throngh profit or loss
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Tinancia} assets at fair value through profit or Jogs include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are
classified 85 held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are
managed by the Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair
value basis in accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these
financial 2ssets ave held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ot the principal
amount cutstanding. Movements in the carTying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recoghition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in QCI js reclassified from equity ta statement of profit
and lass and recognised in other gains/ {Josses). Interest income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instraments

1.

Subsequent measurement

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value, Dividends from such
investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss as other income when the Company's right
to receive payments is established.

. Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost in financial statement.

C. Financial liabilities

1,

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
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Financial liabilities measured at amortised eost

After initial recognition, interest besring loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into
aceount any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the
effective inferest rate method. The effective interest rate method’s amortisation is included in finance
costs In the statement of profit and loss.

2. Derecognition

A financisl lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischavged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are subatantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated us a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. :

. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

E. Derivative financial instruments - current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments will be held for a period beyond twelve months after the reparting date, are
classified as noncurtent (or separated into current and non-curtent portions) consistent with the
classification of the underlying item. These are classified as ewrrent, when the remaining holding period is
up to twelve months after the reporting date.

F. Fair value measurement

The Company uses valuation techmiques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and Habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: ’

Level 1- Quoted {Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable :

Level a- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

2,10 Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income

based on the applicabie income tax rate for ezch jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liahilities attributable to temporary differences and to unnsed tax losses.
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“The current income tax charge is calenlated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary difference hetween the carrying amounts of assets and
Kabilities for financial reporting purposes and the eorresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised of earried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recoghised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognised a deferred
tax assets only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable tempotary differences or there is convineing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
Deferred tax assets-unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised /
redueed to the extent that it is probable/ne longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assets is realised
or the liahility is settied based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and
Habilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or no
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Inventories

Stock-in-trade is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Costs of inventories also include all other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and eondition, Cost is determined on the basis of
weighted average. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value jg the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Goods in-transit is valued inclusive of custom duty, where applicable.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

b/
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For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. !

2.13 Impairment of assets

a.

b.

[

Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit Josses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCIL The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Finaneial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables,

Non-financial assets
(i} Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and goodwill

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment, whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill is
tested for impairment aunually. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Tmpairment test for goodwill is performed at the level of each Cash Generating Unit (CGUT) or groups
of CGUs expected to benefit from acquisition related synergies and represent the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, within an operating
segment. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. An impairment loss is
recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. ’

If such assety are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of
profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the asset, An impairiment loss is reversed in the statement of profit
and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised reeoverable amount, provided that this amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is net reversed.

Investment in subsidiary
Investrment in subsidiary is reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circamstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not

Timited to, significant or sustained decling in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the
economic environment.

LY,
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Tmpairment test is performed at entity level. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of Investiment exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use, To caleulate value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction betwean market participants less the costs of disposal. Impairment losses, if any
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Other impairment losses are only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognised.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of tramsaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proeceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss aver the period of the borrowlings
using the efiective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down oceurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a finaneial Hability that
has heen extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-tash
assets transferred or liabilities asswmed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as other
gains/(osses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reperting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on detnand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
lizbility as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the finaneial
statements for issue, not to demand payment as 2 consequence of the breach.

2.15 Provisions, contingent linbilities and contingent assets

a) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects eurrent market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The inerease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense,

142



HCL Learning Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

b) Contingencies

Contingent lizbilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
exigtence of which will he confirmed only by the cecurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the eontrol of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the
finaneial statements.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the accurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2,16 Foreign currency translation
{i} Funetional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (2 the functional eurrency’). The Company's aperations
are primarily in India. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee {INR), which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency iransactions are tramslated into the functione] currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are recogaised in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit and loss on & net basis within other income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foveign currency are tvanslated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
Yabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or lass.

2.17 Revenue recognition

The Company derives revennes primarily from training services and educational content and related
hardware offerings for private schoals, eolleges and other educational institutes and vocational training

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount

that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services.

Revenue from services
Timing of recognition

Service income includes income from training services and educational content and related hardware
offerings for private schools, colleges and other educational institutes and vocational training. Revenues
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relating to time and materials contracts are recognized as the related services are rendered. Revenue in case
of fixed price contracts is recognised on percentage of completion basis. Revenue from a period based service
coniracts is recognised on a pro rata basis over the period in which such services are rendered.

nt of 3

Revenue is based on the price specified in the sales contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. For
separately identified component from multiple element arrangement, pertaining to the sale of services, the
revenues are measured based on fair value allocated to such component within the overall artangement.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change.
Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in statement of profit and
loss in the period in which the cireumstances that give rise to the revision become Imown by management.

Sale of products
ming of ..

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in tfime when control is transferred to the
customer.

Measurement of revenyue

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for velume
diseounts, service level credits, performanece bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in
the contraet with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Interest income

Interest income from Joans and receivables is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The
effactive interest rate is the rate that exectly discounts estimated firture cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calenlating the effeciive
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the preseat value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calenlated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
gbligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
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statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income, They are included
in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligatien resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Provident fund

In respect of certain employees, provident fund contributions are made to a multi-employer Trust
administered by the holding Company. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected
Unit Credit method) at the end of the year and any shortfall in the fund size maintained by the Trust set up
by the holding Corpany is additionally provided for. Actuarial losses/gains are recoghised in the statement
of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to the employees’ state insurance fund, administered by the prescribed government
authorities, are made in accordance with the Finployees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and are recognised as an
expense on an accrual basis.

Company’s contribution towards Superannuation Fund is accounted for on acerual basis,

The Company makes defined contributions to a Superannuation Trust established for the purpose. The
Company has no further obligation beyond the monthly contributions.

Other benefits
Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absenees, which are expected to he availed or encashed within 12 months from
the end of the year end are treated 2s short term employee benefits, The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused entitlement
ag at the year end.

Accumalated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from
the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability s
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each vear. Actuarial losses/
gains are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Long term employee benefits

Employee benefits, which are expected to be availed or encased beyond 12 months from the end of the year,
are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined {using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing:
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«  the profit attributable to owners of the Company
+ by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

»  the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs agsociated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.20 Exceptional items
Jterns which are material either because of their size or their nature, and which are non-recurring, are

highlighted through separate disclosure. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better
picture of the Company’s underlying performance.
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HCL Learning Linited
Hotes to the Ainancial statemients

Other mon-current financlal assets
Considered Good
Becurity Deposits

Balo rwe with banl- marghn wieney

TOTAL

Advance income tax assat (net of provigions)

Advune inceme wx

[Provision foe Incowe tax of ¥ 31.5¢ Lave {2020 - 1 31.5¢ Laes]]

TOTAL
Other Non-Current Aggets

Unsecared, congidaved pood

Deposite with thw aborites

Considered Drvoubiiul

Capiral Advances

less: Provisiom for DyubLiod Loans sl Advuness
TOTAL

Ioventorles

Slock-n-trade

TOTAL

Trade recelvables (refer note aB)

Ungecuved:

- Congdered good
- Credit impaired

Less: Alluwaness for doubtful delns

TOTAL

Agz At
AL.05 2021
F/Lacs
1370
f.40
2240
13716
T gmae
47.07
0.50
0,50
4707
Z.42
2.43
630.0
630.05
—_— 05005 -

149

A ak
A10635020
Ylace
L3
w18
15.86
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ETNT)
47.52
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HCL Learning Limited
Hotes to the flnanclal statements

Cash and cash cquivalenta

Balances with banks
- I cuwrent aceonnt

Cheques on hand
TOTAL

Dther bank balances
Eglances with Banks
=0 Margin Avount
TOTAL

Cdiver financisl asset

Considered Good

Security depositz
Others Cinelud il 1 5 chuiny e, Expence

Other racenuble from related parties (Refer nole 28)
Considered DoubHul

Lease rental recoverable, Secwrity Depoaits, Insuranes cluim
recovershle, amployes advances

Less: Allowance for doubtful Lease vental recoverable, Securlty
Depuosits, Inaurance elsim recoverable, emaployee advances

TOTAL

Other current asacts
Unsecured

Canaidered goad

Balances with custams, part trask, excise and sulea kax authorities
Advances to creditors

Prepaid expenses

Others

TOTAL

202.55

20258

Ax at
31.03.2021

#/Lacs
69.40

5940

0.ag

D47

.85
2.60
LYY
4571
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HCL Lewrning Limited
Motes 1o the finanoial stateruents

Share capitol
Authorized
1,050,000 Bquity Shares (2020 - 1,00,000 } af ¥ 10/~ each
TOFTAL
ssped, Subseribed and Paid up

75.2%4 Equily Shares (2020 - 75,274]) of # 10/- anch
(Fully Prid up}

TOTAL
Hotes:

Rights ottached to Equity Shaves:

As at
‘31.03.20%1
¥/Laco

10.04

10.00

753

A5 Ak
H1.03. 2000

IiLacs

10 00

1000

The Compauy has only gne clazs of equiry share having a2 faee value of # 104- coch, Bacl holder of equity shares bs extitled to one vote par shate held, Tha Company declares
andl pays dividend in Lodian Rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directows is subject to the appuoval of the Shareliolders in ensuing Genera] Meeting, except in

case of interim dividend.

[n the event of lkuiditiun of the Company, the hulders of equity sheres witl be entitled ko 1eceive the remaiving zsets of the Company after distributien of all preferentinl
anounts, The distribubion will be in propertion to tha noumber of equity shares held by Sharahulderes,

i"’:"l‘h"lde“""“"‘“ mote than 5% of the aggregate shaves in | 0\ o or of Shares % of shaves Mumber of Shores | % of slraces
HCL Infosystens Limited, the holding company 75,268 4900 TEL68 3500
{thar Equity

Resgerve and sarplus

{a} Sccurities premium resecve

Opening balance 5.007.52 5.997.52
Clueing balance 5.007.52 5,307:5%
(h) Retained earnings

DOpening balance [10.620.20) {11,738.10)
Met profit/fluss) lor the year (61.03) 1,TLI-10
Owher Comprebiensive Inenme for the year - oBn
Closing balancs [10,68%.13) (10,626 20}
TOTAL (4,600.61) 1,628.68)
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HCL Learning Limited
Hotes to the financial statements

As At Asat
31-05.2021 34002020
Eilocs Pilaes
Carrent borrowings
Unaecured:
Loans repayable on demand
- From relaled porty (vefer note 2EB) 4.8682.80 7TLG
TOTAL 4.882.80 477015

Note:
Unsecured Loans From HCL Infosystams Limited, the Halding Compony, amounting to ? 4,854.80 Lacs (2020 « ¥ 4,770.18 Lucs) 3 repayable on dewvind and cacries an

Teavest (& 7.56% 10 4.00% per anmuon.

Trade payables (refer noto a5}

Trade Puyalies

{a) Total ding dues of ini iges and small enterprigas {refer note 40) [BF] o1k

{h) Teral oukstanding dues nther than e emerpdses and small anerprise: alo.Lg
!122‘

TOTAL

"y
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HCL Learning Limited
Hotas o the finaneial statements

Other financial labilitics
Depuosts

Ernplovee benefits payable
Capital greditors

TOTAL

Other cucrent linbilltes
Deferred vevenue

Advances veceived Bom customes
Statutory dues poyable

TOTAL

Curvent provislons

Provvision for gratuity avd other employes benafits
Provigion for Litkgution {refer nate 27 (b}

TOTAL

\@

153

As at
FLG3.2081

ELows

5.52

Asak
21,07 2020
3lacs

Ba.51
1445
044

728

.0
20,01
525

3L80

290
17.35

2034
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HCL Lenrning Limlted
Notes to the financlal statements

Revenue from operations

Sale of Products
Sale of Services

TOTAL

Other Ineone
1nterest income from financial agsct st nmortised cost

- On leage rental

~ On Fixed Deposits

- 0n [ngome oy refund

et profit/(losz) on 2ale of property, plant and equipment
Met profit on foreign exchange fluctuation

Provizions liabilities no longer required written back
iiecellanecus income

TOTAL

Changes in inventorles of finished goods and stock-in-trade

Cloging balance
- Stpek-in-trade

Opening balance

= Stock-in-trade

Changes In Inventorles of stock-in-trade
Other direct expense

Pnrchase of services

TUTAL

Faunl 5 fitz exp

Salaries, wages, bunus and gratuity (refer note 47}
Contribution to provident snd other fuds
Staff welfare expenses

TOTAL
Finance costs
Interast expense an financial labilities at amortized cost

TOTAL

Year ended Year ended
Year ended Year ended
531.03.2021 IL.02.2020
Filacs Flaes
- 508,91
- 27.84
- 536.7%
- 7.10
¢4 oA
20.82 -
0.20 -
19 -
217.14 at4.74
- 3B.11

L =
—32 -
- .11
i Eﬁﬂ! .11
2,04 2109
2.04 2L09
414 58.12
0,14 Lo4
[ 005
400 3071
15044 1362.50
180.44 1,362.50
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Nates Lo the financial statements

Other expenses

Rent {refer note 34)

Ralles and taxes

Printing and stationery

Cammunication

Travelling and conveyance

Packing. Freight and forwarding

Legal, professicnal and consuitancy charges (refer note 32)
Rotainership expenses

Insurance

Hire charges

Bank charges

Allowanee for doubtful loans E advances and other current assets
Property, plant and equipment written-off

Wal loss/{guin} on foreign exchange Auctuation {other than considered as finance cost)
Miseellaneous

Commieon cost allocated from holding company and fellow subsidiary
TOTAL ’

155

Year endesd Yeuar ended
Year ended Yearended
F1.05.2021 ALO3.2020

¥/Lacs ¥ilnes

o.57 153
55.46 1871
- a.n7
0.04 a.41
0.13 2.15

- 0.01
FLE7 81.82
179 2770

- 0.39

- 002
0.65 065
14.76 115
- LS5

- a5
.80 D.16
112.86 14594
0.3 27.80
112,80 173.64




HCL Learning Limited
Notas to the Financial Statements

27 o} Contingent Linbilities :

Claims against the Company nat acknowledged ae debta:

PLacs
Asat . Asg at
At.o3.2021 31.03.2020
Sales Tax® 19.50 765
Excise, Service Tax and Custoins - 0.96
Industrial Disputes, Civil Suits and Consumer Disputes 112,81 116,51

* Includes sumn of ¥ 13.20 Lacs (21.03.2020 - ¥ 10,10 laes) deposived by the Company agalnst the above.

The above amounts represents the best possible estimates arvived at on the basis of available information. The uncertainties and
passible refimbursements are dependent on the out come of the different legal processes which have been initiated by the Company or
the claiments a5 the case may be and therefure cannot be predicted accuratsby.Tt is not practicable for the Compavy to estimate the
timing of cash outflosws, if any, in respect of the above, pending resolution of the respective procesdings.

b) Other Litigations :

The Company has eertain sales tax and other related litigation amounting to T x7.2g lacs {2020 - ¥ 17.35 lacs) against which provision
have been made. No provision (2020 - T 0.06 lacs) was provided during the year. Provisivn aswuniing to ¥ 0.06 laes (2020 - Nil) was
utilised during the year. .

156



HCL Learning Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements

Takad

28 Disclogure of related parties and « parky tr ctions:

a) Company having substantial interest:
HCL Corporation Private Limited

b} Holding Company
HCL Infosystems Limjted

¢) List of parties where control exists/existad and with whom transactions have taken place during the
year and/or where balances exist:

Subsidiary:
HCL Insys Pte. Limited, Singapore, ceased to be Subsidiary with effect from November 15, 2019

Fellow Subsidiaries:

HCL Infotech Limited

d) Entel'prlses over which, individual having indireet significant influence over the company, has
ignifi and with whom transaetions have taken place during the year and/or where
balances exist:

HCL Comnet Systems and Services Limited
HCL Teaining & Staffing Services Bvt Lid,
HCL Talent Care Pvt. Limited

Key Management Personnel:

M. Komal Bathia- Company Secretary” (Ms. Komal Bathla resigned from the position of Company Secretary
of the Company w.e.f. oth February, an21)

* Renumeretion has been paid by HCL Infosystems Limited
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Summury of Relabed Porty disclosures

tate; ATl trangactions with retated parties hove been entered into in ihe nutasal eonrse of buslnacs,

{#Laesh
A Transuction Holdl Felinw dinrl Oilers ‘Tatal
Mar-z4 Mar-20 War-a1 Mow-za Mar-z1 Mar-z0 Mur-1 Mar-ro
Loans anl Advances Refunded fadjusted (Nab) - AT HTLAL . - - - -
-1ICE Ligied - 7 AL - - - - -
Loans and Adyunecs Taken [Mat) A1Z.05 - - - - 1Lt.65 -
- HOL Infusyslomes Limiled 1265 - - - - T -
luterest ab Loter Company Deprosits (1C00) Taken 180,44 [R5 N rd - - - - 1RO 1 AME
- HCL liforyalems Limilgl [T e 1,370,903 - - - R0 [l Ard
Relmlpurgenants dowards sxpenditore
ay Pald 2.u3 | Ry - - - - W8 24755
-HCL lifugyatems Lipniled [T 44,35 - - - - 0.2 445
B, Amount dwe 0o f Fom related porties*
Trade Receivaliles A.08 636 0,06 D06 ey 10,44 f.0%
Other Revovwsrables - 45,45 iy - - - O A5-4¢
Bazavings FELTET] Fherir8. - - - - 4,BELB0 %
Trade Payoliea - a4.05 - - - - - w05 ]

~Anmeunt dus to f from relsted porties oce unsecured and are repavaldefty be veceved In cash.
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Motes ko the Financial Statements

Fi jall Tngty s and Risk M

2g Fair Volze Meusurements

Tie canying value of finavdal instrumente by categories s as under :

FLaes
FalrValue | FBICYAlIe o vised Total Tatal Fair
L b u: fit Cawr
Partienlavs Notes Al cost throngh OCI mzlﬂo Cost Va?::! Valoc
Financial Asseta
Non-current assets
(i) Other finaneial nzsets 4 - - - 22,10 dd 10 22.10
- - - {1586} {15.86) {15 B6)
- - - PrRTS 22.10 22,10
- - - (15.86] (35.86) {1586
Current asgets
{1} Trade receivables a - - - - - -
(i) Cash and sash wquivalents q - - . 6440 69.40 64,40
- - - (33.89) (33.80) (33.80)
(iv) Bank balanices other than (iil) above 10 - - - - - -
- - - (5.84) (5.84) (584}
(1] Other Bnanckl assets 1n - . . 0.a7 o144 .17
- - - 57,50 {57.60} (57.60)
- - - &69.57 69,57 G9.57
- - - {5733} {97-33] {y7.22)
Finamncint Liabilitics
Current linbilities
(i} Short Tertn Borvowings 15 - - - H88E.80 4,882.490 4,88z2.80
- - - [4,770.15} (4:770.35) {a,770.15)
(i) Trade payables 15 - - . 10513 105.15 105.1%
- - - (31924} (315.24) (314.24)
{iti) Other Ruancrl hobilities 17 - - 374 3.74 374
- - - (77.24) {7p.28) (37.28)
. - - 4,991.67 305167 £,00107
. - - {5.166.67) (5.164.67) {5,166,67)

Mote: Prevdows yeur Ogures are in hracket,

wian
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30 Financlal Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and eredit risk. The Company's financisl risk management is an
integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.
In order to minimize any adverse effects on the finaneial performance of the Company, derivative financial instruments, such
as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively
for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

This note explaing the sources of visk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk,

Risk Exposure Arising from M I 1t Management

Credit Risk Trade receivables, Lease Rent Ageing Analysis and | Diversification of bank
Fecoverable Credit rating deposits, mvestments, credit
Cash and cash equivalents limnits and letters of credit
Bank Belances
Other financial assets

Liquidity risk Borrowings, trade payable and uther | Rolling cash flow Availability of comumitted
financial liabilities forecasts credit lines, horrowing

farilities and liguid
investments

Market visk - foreign exchange

Future commercial transactions

Recognized financial asseis not
dencminated in Indian rupee (INR)

Position of net foreign
exchange rigk, baged
on relative aggets and
liabilities

Forward foreign exchange
contracts

Market rigk - interest rate

Long-term borrowings at variable

raies

Sensitivity analysis

Replacement of high cost debt
with low cost debt

The Company's risk management is carried out by the treasury and credit control department of the holding company under
policies approved by the senior management and board of directors.
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Credit Risk
Cradit rigk avige from possibility that eustomer may default on its obligation resolting into financial loss. The maximum expogire to
the rredit risk is primarily from trade receivable.

Credit risk on Bank balances is not significant ag it majerly includes Balances with Bank with high eredit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies.

The credit risk is managed by the Company through credit apprevals, establishing the financial reliability of the customers taking into
aceount the fAinancial condition, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of aecounts receivables. Individual limits are set accordingly
by the eradit coutrol department of the Holding Company.

Following table provides age wige hreakup of receivables 3/Lacs
As al As ot
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Not Due - -
o-90 days past doe - -
g91-180 days past due - -
180-365 days past due - -
1=2 years past due - -
More than a years past due 630.05 651.51
630.05 551.31

Financial assets are wiitten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing ta engage in 4 repayment
plan with the Company. The Company categorises a trade receivable for write off when a debter fails ta make contractual payments
greater then 3 years past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the company continues to engage in enforeement
aetivity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The summary of life time allowancs made on customer balances ducing the year and halance at the year end is given beiow:

FHLacs
AR at Agat
31.03.20°21 21032020

Balance at the beginning £51.51 o190
Previded during the year - -
Reversed during the year (21.26) (143.00)
Amounts written off - (57.59)
Balance at the end _ 630.05 65131

Weighted Average loss rate is 10098 (2020 - 100%)

/
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Halez to the Finandal Stebemnents
Liguidity rishe:

Liquidly rigk is the risk thet tha Company will not be able to settle or mest its obligations on time or wt 1 reasomalle price, The treasury department of the hokling company is
respongible for liguidity, fumdieg e wall 2a setik it [ nddition, p atnd policles velated to suclh risks are oversesn by denivr manageoeni. Manoganan anlb
the Campany's nel luidin pesition tireugh rolling fvecists on e basis of eupeeted cash lows. .

The talls hekw sumimariaes the migorty profle of he C "w finareeial labiltes based o 1 vid: dp da s at guo.2021
Hilocs
c:{:?:;‘a Ondomand  Legs then © yeat 1L ko 2 Yeors 2 ko 5 Yerrs m;.‘;::“ s
Non-derivatives
Buirovings
-From Related Party 4.8682.80 4,882.80 - - =
{4,770.5) {4,770.:5) . - -
Trade payuabks 10g.13 - 10515 . -
{319.24) - {319.24) . -
Other fnancial liabiities . )
. -Degusits . - . -
{z.51} - 162.51) - - -
-Capital Creditora . . B . . .
[o3a} - (n2z] - - -
-Emplapes benefite papuble 374 - 874 - - -
{L4-45) - (14,45} - - -
Total non-derivatlve Halilitics 4,051.67 458280 108.87 - - -
15.166.57) [4,770.18) {aub52) hl d h

Note: Pravious year figures are bnbracket,

Y
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Market risk
(i) Foterest rate risk

The Cotnpany's main interest vate risk arise from borrowings with variable intersst rutes, which expose the Cornpany 1o cash Row ikterest rate risk. Ag on 31 03,2021 the
Company has £ 4,832.80 Lacs (2020 7 4,770.15 Lacs) of borrawings with varisble interest rates. In order to vptimize the Company's position with regards to interest
expenses and to manage bhe intevest rate sk, treasury perforins a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk managemant by bolanelng of fixed rate and Roating rate

Anancial instruments in its total portiolio.

(a) Intevest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interzst rate changes at the end of the seperting perivd ave as follows:

Pilhes
Asat Asal
1.0 .2021 31,03, 2020
Vaviable rata bovrowings 488280 4, 77005
Fixed rate borrovings - -
[Total borrowings 4,B8z2.80 447015
A5 atthe end of the reporting period, the Company had the folloving variable rate borrowings:
A at 31.03.2021 AS at 31022020
Welghted .
Weighted
average % of total .
futerest Balance loans averagr interest Brolanes % of total loans
rate
rate
Baarkloane and others 3.76% 4,882.80 10.00% 5.74% 4770015 100.00%
Nat axposure to cash fAa teresl cate risk 4,88a.80 4TT0.15
) Sensitivity
Puofit or loss is sensitive to higher £ lawet intevast expense frot bolrowings as s result of changes Ln intevest rates.
Fllacs

Impact on profit after tax

Impact oo other
components of equity

Year ended Year ended As at A5 §t

JLT.O3.8081 31033030 s1.03.2021 | 3lo3.zozo
Interest rates - ineranse by 10 basis polnes {3.97 (3.28) {2.37) (3.28)
Interest vates — decrease by 10 basis points 347 G.28 A7 328

“
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Foreign currency risk

The Company's primary opecations ave in [ndio and therefore, is not exposed to significant foreign currency dak. The Company evaluates the
exchange rate esposure arsing from foreign currency transactions and the Conpany follows established visk management policies which are
approved by the senior managemient and the Aodit Comumittee, including the use of derivatives like fureim exchange forward contracts to hedge
exposure to foretgn ¢urrency risk,

Foreign currency risk exposore
The Company's exposme to forelgn currency rigk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows

HLacs
uso
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 1.48
8.50)
Net exposure to foreign eurrency risk {liabilities) :I::!]

Note: Previous year figures are in bracket.
The Company's foreign currency expogure as at the reporting date is not signifizant, henee, sensitivity analysis has nat been reported.

31 Capital Mavagement
Risl: Management

The Company's objective when managing capital are tv safeguard their ability Lo continue as gaing concern sa that they can eontinue to provide
returns for sharsholders and benefits for othey stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of eapital.

The Capital atructurs ag of 31.03.2021 and 31.03.2020 ware as follows:

FiLacs
As at Asat
51.03.2041 531.03.2020
Total Debt 4,882.80 4, 770,15
Iwﬂv {4,683.08) {4,621.15)
Capital gud net delx 199.72 149.00
Gearing ratio 2444.82% 2901.44%

The Halding Company i.e. HCL Infosystenis Limited, hag subseribed the gu.go% of the share capital of the Company and also the Company has
taleen unzecured loan from Holding Company itsalf,
Hence the Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements for the year ended 31.03.2021 and 31.03.2020

32 Remuneration to Auditor™

¥/Lacs

Year cnded Year ended

31.09. 0021 21.08.2020
Statutory andit 3.00 #.50
Tax audit fees/cartifications 4.67 250
Out of packet expenses - 110
TOTAL 707 12.10
*Excluding GST as applicable.,
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33
&

o

]

Taxation:

Tuenasion fur Gion has been puted by Rpplying the lncume Tax Act, 1961 amd other relavant tox regulations in the jutisdiction whare the Company conducls
Ilie business ta the profit for the year, Deferred 1ax nssets and deferred tax Habilities ave offset, if & legally enforceable right exvists to sat-nff current tiy assets
spainsl curent bas liabilities and the deferred tax sssets and dafiorred tax Nabilities relates o the same 1axable entity and the same taxation authorily.

Deferced Tax:
Major samponents of Deferred tox srising on secount of timing difference along with their moveinent as ot 31.03.2021 prez
¥F/Lacs
Azat Movement during Asat

JLOF.2020 the pear 31.03.2021
Defened Tax Assets
Minirum Alternative Tax - -
Total - - -
Daferved Tax Assats - - . -

¢ During the year, deferred lax assets amounting to NI {2020: * 29.21 Ines) has bean written off due to Yack of reasonable certaingy of future baxabls profits against
which such deferred 1ax assels can be utilized. .

Income Tax Expense:

This note provides an analysis of the comproy's income M axpenss, nnd how the tax expense is gffected by non-assessable and non-deductible itams. Tt ulse
explains significant estimates made In relation to the company's bax positions.

Fflacs
Year cnded Year ended
31.03. 2021 3103 200
(i) Income bax expanse - -
Curreint bax - -
Total current tay eXpense - .
Deferred tax . - -
Decrasse 1n MAT credit - ey 21
[Deerease) in delerred tax labilities - -
Total deferred tax expense /{beneflt) - 20.31
lncoanc tuy expense - 0.2
(i) K iliation of tay exp and the Ing profit multiplied by India’ tax vate:
TiLacs
Yesr ended Year ended
§1.03. 2021 31.03. 2000
Proft/{lass) hefgre income tas expense (L5331 134111
Tax at the Indian tox rate of 31.20% (2020- 31.20%) {19.32)| 356.04
Tax effect of arneunts which are not deductlble £ (raxable) in calculating
tnxable incoume: (260,73
Decreass/ lincrease] in MAT credil EETY
i on sceount of brought forward losses 19.32 (95 79}
[ncome Lax £Xpensse - 20.21
#/Laca
Ad at A at
Tax Losses 31032021 31.0%.2020
Unused tax losses for which na deferred tax assels has been recognized 9,207,006 9.150,09
Potentiol tax beneflt @ 31,208 (20w0- JLL0%) 2,872.60 2B50.46
The nnused tax lassas ks 1ot likely 1 generate tacable income in foresceable future, The lusses can he carried forward as per details balow:
¥ilacs
. Asal Az ak
Fwiry Dore _grogzom | jiogsose |
21.5.2023 15714 157,14
3132084 1,195.33% 1,191.33
21.3.2025 1,155.31 1,155.91
51,.3.2028 268,69 =268.69
9132027 204155 2,844.00
3L.3.2020 181,51 -
He limlt 4, 01151 ,EH G2
Total / 9,207.006 2,136.09

¥,
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Leases:
a} Finanece Lepsox:

Ax Lessors

(i) The Company has given on finance lease certain assets/finventories which comprise of computers and office pquipinents, ete. Thete leazes have a
primary period, which is fixed and noo-cancelable, There ace no exceptivnal/restrietive covenants in the lease agreenients,

(i} The gross investment in the aseats given un finance leases as at 31.03.2021 and its prezent value as at that date are s follows:

¥/Lacs
Interest Present value
Totel mini induded in of mini
lease receivable minimum lease lease
' reccivall

Not later than one year
AS af 31082021 393.03 1271 zBo.gz
A at 41.03.2020 . (393.03) {112.71) (2B0.22)
Later than one year and not later than five yoors
A¥ Ak 31.02.2031 - - -
A3 ot 31.03.2020 - - -
Total
AS 8t 31.03.2021 393.03 11271 aiao.jz
As at31.03.0070 {20303} [ng.71) (a8o.g2)
Natke: Pravious period’s figuces are given in brackets, Financial leases was fully provided in previows year,
b} Cancelable Operating Leases
As Lessee:
{i) The Company has taken various residentialfec igl prarmises under c Jable nperating leases, These leases mre for a peciud uf eleven months

to three years and are normally renewable on explry.

{ii) The rentsl expense In respeet of aperating leases is ¥ 0.57 Lacs (2020 - T 1.53 Lacs ) which is disclosed as vent expense under ‘other expenges’.

As Lesgor: :
The gress black, sceumulated depreciation and depreciation expense i respeet of plant & machinery given on opeieting lease ave as below:
¥/Lacs
AE ak Agat

aLogsos1  arogspee
Gruaa Block 3.34 2.34
Accupilated Depreciation 334 334
Het Block - -
Depreciation Fxp - -
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic enrninge per share is caleulated by dividing the net loss for the year attributable ta equity sharsholders by the weighled avernge number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. The loss considered in ascertaining the Compauy's EPS represent loss for the year after taxe. Diluted EFS3 is computed
and disclosed using the weightad average numnber of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the year exeopt when results wowld he anti-

dilutive.

Particularg Year cnded Year ended
§L.03.2031 1.07.2020

Profit /[loss) after tax (F Tacs) {31.93) 1H1.00

Weighted averapge number of shares considered as : TH2Td 75274

outstanding {n conputation of Basic EPS

Weighted average nurober of shates ling in 75274 75,274

computation of Diluted EPS

Buaic EPS fof Fi0/- ench) (Bz.27) 147607

Diluted EPS (of 10/ each) (Bz.27) 1,476.07

There are oo dilitive enuity shares as at year end.

Segment Reparting

The Company's buginess falls within a single primary business and geogmphleal segment, ie. learning business which includes training services and
educational content and related hardware offerings for private schools, collages end other education institutes and voestional tralning. Accordingly,

o Indian & ing Standard 108, on Operating Segments, segment information is not required to be diselosed.
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37  The Company has caleulsted the varions benele provided o employees as wndet:

(a} Defined Contributivn

Duving the year, the Company haz ised the fpllon: in tha of Profit and Lags:
E/Lavs
Year ended Yearended
ALOZ. 2021 3L.G3.2020
(i) Exmph ibution to Eployes Stae o 0.00 .08
(i) Ewnplovera conlribution W Employee's Pengion Scbeme 1995% ¢.08 051

# Inchuded i Contribulion 0 Provident and Other Funds under Employee benefila expense (Refer Hote4).
{b) Defined Benefit

{i) Cratoity
(i) Provident Fund#

As a parl of Lhe ongoing rativialization of Uie business, the keoming business is being sealed down. Az a result, ne active moopowertwos laft a5 4 Mareh 31, 201
Therefare no actunrial valuation was caxried cul in the mspect of the alresaid definad henafit plan bosed in secordance with [nd AS 19, Hewever, informatisn for Lhe

eomnparilive period is wentioned helow:

Gratuity
Mareh 3, 2021 March 31, 2020

THSCOUNt rate (Pper anmom) X - 566%
Rate of increage in compensatian levels - 5.00%
Rale of return an plan assets - -
Expecied statutony interst cale -
Expecied short (21l in interest eamings - -

- a1t

Bxpecled average renaining working lives of employess (wears)

Deserlption of Risk Exposures:

Valuatlons ave hased on cerlain ssanmptions, vehich are dymamic i natare and vary over time, A sueh company is cxposed to varions visks az follose

A) Salary Inereazes- Actual sulary inereases will inwreage the plan's liskility. Ioeranse ju ealary increase tate foan T fintare valuatious will also increage the liakility.
B) Investmenl Risk — 71 plan 5 funded then asseta liabilities mismateh & artnsl mvestrent retoem on 8ssers lower thap the disepunt rale A at thalasl val
dite can impaet the Hability.

C) Discount Rate : Redietion Iy diseonit rate In subsequent valnations can increase the plan’s Hiahility.

D) Monialiy & disability — Actual desths & disability coses proving loveer or bigher than nssomed in the valoation som impact the Tabdlivies,

E) Witldrawals = Actual withdrawats proving higher ovlower than 3 withdiawals and change of withdinwal rates at sul 1 vahuations can impact plan’s
Healo iy
¥/Lags
Gratuity
21.03.2021 31032020

Reconciliation of apeniog and closing balanees of the present voluc of the defined benefit
abligation:

Present value of obligation at the begnalng of dhe year 14 .46
Anquisition Adjestment - -
Currend se1vice cost - 0.8
latetesl tosL - o048
Total amount recognised in prafit or logs ’ - .36
Artuadal ¢ gain)/hoss from change in demographie sssumptions - (@.n4)
Aranarial (galn)/loss from «lange in financisl assumptions - 0.00
Expetinnce {gain)/loss - {0.76)
Tatal ansaunk vecommised in olber coniprehensive income - (o0.80}
Benedin (pald) Fadinstesd {140} 10,61}
Present valwe of nlligotion at the ewd of the year - 141
Cirabuiky

31.05. 2081 31.02.2020
Cost recogniged for the year ;
Cirvent serice cost - o8
FPast serviee cost -
Interest cost - oad
Acnaial (galindfloss - {0.80)
Mel g3t racagnised ior the yerr® - (0.44)

* Inclnded in Solavies, Wages, Bonus and Graluity for Graluily and Conlrlbation to Provident aod Other Ponds for Provident Fund wnder Emplayne benefits expanse
{Refer Mlole 24) and actuarial {gain)/ loas in other sompreheuztve ot

' ))} / b
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Reconcilintion of the present volue of the deflued benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assats: .. BfLae
Gratuity

4152000 J31.03.2020

Frasent value of Uie abligation as at Hw end of the year - [P

Fairvalue of plan sescrs ot the end of the year .
Assets/{Liabilitiee) recognised in the Balance Shaet - 141
Extpeckenes adjustment in plan liabilities . ’ - {75}
Experiencs adjustment in plan essets - -

# In respect of cerpain efigible emplovess, the Company is 2 parteipant in a provident fand plan which iz ndministered through o ol enplayer trust, The .
partidpants hove an obligation to make good sy deficiency in lha interest to b paid by the Trust to it's members and the income earmed byrit. Accordingly the plan
is 25 & defined bengfit plan. The trust has obtained an actvarial valustion of the Provideat fuud liability as at the Dalance Sheet date und s per valuation report,
Ihere = oo shortfall as an Macch 31, 2021 The Taluation report comtomed detnlls for the dieelasure vequirement of e Ind 45 10 “Emplayee Benefits” fox the frust
as 2 whole, 1 Lrgakigp Lubo respect? titiss i not available and dingly the discl for p dent fund liability 55 reguired by Ind AS 1o "Employes
Benefita™ has not been made in theae fi ial Tl C s eonlribulion to provident fund for the year i3 ¥ 0.07 Laca (3020 - ¥ 0.64 Lacs ) which has
Teets incloded under Cowtributlon to Provident and Cther Fonds (Refer Note 24).

Az per pravisious of Szction 135 of the Companies Aci, 2043, the Cumpany has W provide al least 2% of average net profits of the preceeding thres financial vears
lowarls Corporate SBacial Respansibility ("C5RL The G waE ot vequired ko spand/contribute to CSR Aetivily during the year 28 per Section 135 of the:
Companies Act, 20103 a5 average net profit for the last thiee financisl year is negative.

‘The Buard of Divectars of Holding Company i, HCL Tofoaystems Limited, in its necting held on August 06, 2026, appraved the merger of HCL Learning Limited
and Digilife Distribution and Macketing Secvices Limfted (UDDMS), whelly owned subsldinries of the Holding Comipany, with HCL Infosyalems Limited. The
proposed merger is for Lhe purpese of simplifying the group structure, As part of the ynEping rticnallzatden of the businese , the learaing business and the
Jdistribution bustness ave being sealed down, As a cesult, sopavate entities For Lhese businesacs, be. HCL Learning Limited for learning buginess and DDMS for
disiribulion business, ate no longer requied. An applleotion was Bied before the Hanble National Company Lew Tribunal (NCLT) at New Delhi Beneh on 1
Seplember 2020 for abtaining the sanction of NCLT on the proposad merger.

Eince, the foresaid Scherme s subject to approval from eoncerned regulatory avthovities which is i A tn he suh ive, the ing effect of the :wve
Scheme has not been jdered in these i fal '

HEL Laoming Limlted (the Cranpany) hind entered into 2 agr ¢ with PCCW Salutions Limited v iransfar its invenstment in HCL Insys Pre Ltd after the
transfer of the trading business and the sobsidiary Nucture Techoolagies FZE tv HCL Pre Lid feubsidiary of HECL Infotech Eimited), for s tolal
consideration of ~ %0,335 lakha: The transaction was completed un Movember 15, 2019

True to the above devel in previ ial year, the Conpany had reatised & profit of * 183226 laca wlich was disclosed as exceptional item in Statment of

profit and loas acecaii,

IHsclosure of Miero and small Enterprlses ased on Information available with the Company

IiLacs
Az at 31.03.2021  AS 6t 31.03.2020
a. @1} Principal anioamt remaining unpaid w0 2oy sopplies as ot the end of the year, g [¥1]
{liy [nterest doe onihe sbove amount. .08 0.03
h{iy  Amount of isterest prid in terms of section 16 of the Micra, Small and Medlun Eaterprises Devel - -
Aet, 2006 LAck). :
iy Aamount of privcipal made 1o e suppliers beyoud the appointed day during the year. .24 5.05
€ Amount of interest due and pavable for the pevitd uf delay in making payment but withent adding the . -
nterest specified under e Ack.
L8 o3

d. Amount of interest 2eecued and remaining vupaid at the ewd of the pear.
2 Amaount of further interest remuining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such dote when the
interest dues as nbove ore actuly paid to the sinall enberpuises.

/
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Aa ot Mareh 31, 2021, the Company hus scearulated losses and 1is net worth has been fully eroded and the Company's cuerent linbilities exceeded ity curren assets by ©
AEE0.41 Laes (2020 - T 5,047.99 lacsh, The Company’s management is pursuing stategies which include mergar of company's operatiun with the Rulding Company and
will have access to necessary financkal support for its operations, The Board of Divectors of HCL Infoaystems Limited, which in twn has obtained financlal support foom a
significant promioter sharcholder, has fmied & support letter to the Company. Considering the above support, the Company’s mansyement and Board of Directard are of
tie view that the Cowpany will be able to caallse lia 1asets and dischuge its contractual chligaiions and lighilitles as they Enlk ée in the nesr future in the normal course of

busingss, Accardingly, the fi ial stat ts heve beewn d on o going concern basis,

Management belleves that it has kaken-inta account aft the possible impacts of known events arising from COVID-19 1 demic in the prep of these fimancizl results.,
[n avatuating the impact of COVID-1g on the Company's ability 10 continue ps a going concem, the management has assessed the impact on its bodness and the carmyiog
welue of ibs major aasets eomprising of prop phunt and equip brade ceceivables and vther recelvable bab The impact of COVID-19 is 4 continuing

process glven the uncertaintics associated with its nahuve and durstion and actual remulis may differ msterlaily from these estimates. The Campany will eantinue to
mobikor any meterial changes o futnre economle conditions and auy significant, impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial resalts a8 and when these
wanterial changes to eonoic conditions anse. .

For BS R & Associates LLP Foraud on behalf of the Boged of Divectors
Chartared Accotntants
Firm Registration Number-r1daziW/ W-1o0024

-
Sand. S{Q / Dilip Kuriar Srivastava Neelesh Agarwol
Parinar

Director Diceetor
Membersiup Humber - 063320 DIN - o6E47137 THN - am4ad5h

New Delhl, June 24, 3021 Woida, June 24, 2021
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L

ASSETS
(1) Nan-corremt assets

Froperty, plant and equipment
e assets
Financial assats
{i) Dther financial aseets
Advanre incoms tax (net)
Cither nom-cutrnt assets

{2] Current ansels

Inventories
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
{1i) Cash and cash equivalzots

(i3] Other bank balances other thax {ii) above

(iv) Otber Financial agsets
Other cicrent assets
Totul Asscts
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1} Equity

Equity shara capltal
Other equity
(2} Limbilities
Non-cwarent [abilities
FPingmciad liahilities
(i} Borrowings
(if} Other financial Kabilities
Provisions

Current Ikahilities

Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
{ii) Trade payables

(a) Tedal entstanding dues of micen eaterprises

and sinall snberprises

(1) Total sutstanding dues ether than mirra

T ond smal
(i) Other Anrncial liabilities
Other current liabikities
Provisions

Totul Equity and Linbikties

Forand on belielf of the Bogrd of Directors
HCL Learning Limited

Dilip Knmar Srivastava
Director
DIN - 06847137

New Delhi, September p7; mam1

Ha}
3(b)

R& &84 b

L
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n.obzoss
— Slacs
an.ag
103.16
—_——207 7243
.42
T 1530
.17
44,00 G0
T

1.831.74

10711
374
4.77

17.29 4,964.65

 easan

Annexure-X

As at
#1.03.9021
TfLacs
22.10
12716
707 206,23
2.42
60,40
oap
R 123.08
ge0.d1

kL

53
{4,600 81} (4,683.08)

fad

4,882 Ao

104.99
37

17.29 501249
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Unaudited Statement of profit and Loss for the perfod ended June 3o, 2oz1(Frovisional)

Period ended Year ended
20068031 31.03.2021
_ Nows —Oflacs —_Dilags
Income :
Revenue from operations 20 - -
Other fneams 21 5.4 238.84
Tatal Income .41 298.84
Expernses !
Purchases of stock-in-trade : - 242
Changes In {menteeles of fndghed goods, stock-in -trade 2z - 242}
Ottt direet expence a3 - 2.04
Employee benefits expence 23 - 4.50
Finance cosis . as 46.60 12044
D fatlon and fraitl P 3(a), a(b} - -
Cther expenses 26 £.95 112.89
Totak Expenses 52.55  _avor7
Loss hefore exceptiona items snd tax (47.14) {695}
Exceptional items 40 - .
Frotlt/{loes) before tax (2784} (6193)
Inecome tax expense:
{1) Current tax - -
(2} Deferred tax - . - -
Profit/(lose) for the period (g714) (Gra3)
Other comprehensive income
(i) Ttermg that will Dot be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gain/{loss) on remessarement of defined benefit plan - - - -
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year (4704) {6103]
Earning per equity share: 35 .
(1) Bagie : (bz.62) (8227
(2) Diluted {62.62) (Bz.27}

Dilip Knmar Srivastava
Director
DI - 06847137

New Delhl, Seprember 27, 20210
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B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No. t0,12th Floor Tower-3 Telephone: +91 124 7191000
DLF Cyber City, Phase-ll Fax. 427 124 235 8612
Gurugram — 122 002, Indla

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the Members of HCL Infosystems Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of HCL Infosysterns Limited (“the Company®), which
comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the standaloue statement of profit and loss
{including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement
of cash flows for the year then cnded, and notes to the standalone financial statements. including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the standalone financial statements™)

In our epinion and te the best of our information and according (o the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™ in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other comprehensive
loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities Jor the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial staterments under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient

" and dppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone fnancia! statements.

Maierial Uncertainty on Going Concern

We draw attention to note 57 of the standalone financial statements, which states that the Company hag
accumulated losses and has incurred a net loss of Rs, 204,76 crore during the cuxrent year. Further its net worth
is fully eroded and that the Company’s current liabilitics exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2021, These
conditions, along with other matters set forth in note 58, indicate that 2 material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern i.e., whether the Company will
be able to realise its assets and discharge all its contractual obligations and liabilities as they fail due in near
fisture in the normal course of the business. However, based upon the measures as set forth in the note 57,
inchuding necessary financial support from a significant promoter sharehalder, the management and the Board
of Directors of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to operate as a going
concemn in the near future. Accordingly, management has prepared the standalone financial statements on 2
going concern basis.

Our opinion is ot modified in respect of this matter.

Repiatersd Qe
B* Floor, Lodhak xceius

BS54 7] igr 143n st H

Fiin BABRZEG owvord o B S & Paserione LLF A i od
ta Linwis Lintuaty Patnceshirs s LLR Ragisialinn e o
Mot ARG B wilh: eflar fons Ohtnbear 14, 2013 BB = 400 047
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Key Audi¢ Matters

Key andit matters are those matters that, in our professional fudgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial staterrents of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition 1o the matter described in the Material Uncerrainty

Related 10 Going Concern section, we have determined the matter described beilow to be key audit matter to

be communicated in our report.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of loans given to certain subsidiaries

See note 2.14 (a) and 14 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has given loans to its subsidiarics
amounting to Rs. 2.81 crores (net of impairment
losses Rs. 81.78 crores).

Assessment of the recoverable amount of loans
including interest thereon given to  these
subsidiaries has been identified as a key audit
matter due to:

* Significance of the carrying amount of these
balances and these subsidiaries have been
incurring losses.

* This assessment requires the Company to make
significant estimates and judgements of the future
cash flows, qualitative assessments of the projects
in those subsidiaries and timelines of expected
preject approvals.

* Changes to any of these estimates and
Jjudgements may lead to materiat changes in the
estimated recoverable amount, impacting both the

interest income.

potential impairment charge and the recognition of

In view of the significance of the matter we
applied the following audit procedures in this area,
amongst others to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence:

. Evaluating design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of controls over process
followed for recoverability of principal and
interest.

* Assessing the projections prepared by the
Company and the assumptions used, with
particular attention to the following:

-assessing the reasonableness of the cash flow
forecasts through analysis of past performance vis-
a-vis previous forecasts and our kmowledge of the
business of the Company;

-performing  sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions used in the forecasts to determine the
appropriate level of impairment and interest
income to be recognised;

- understanding the natute and duration of the
ongoing projects in the respective subsidiaries to
detertnine the likely timing of recovery of the
lnans;

+ Assessing, whether disclosures made in the
standalone lnd AS financial statements are in
compliance, with the applicable accounting
standards,

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Direciors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the

financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinjon on the standalone financial statements does not cover the ather

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matetially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have uething to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section [ 34(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alse includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for sufeguarding
ofthe assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection
and application of appropriate Accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

I preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue a5 & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and nsing the gomg concem basis of accounting unbess the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 0.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assutance about whether the standalone financiaj statements as a
whole are free from materia] misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to isstie an auditor’s repor
that includes our opinion. Reasonahie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraittee that an

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 3As, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain professiona
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone finangial statements, whether due
to fraud or emor, design and perfornt audit procedures responsive (o those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ouy opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant 10 the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
€xpressing our apinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controis,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors,
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a rnaterial wncertainty exists related to
evemls or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cottpany’s ability to continue as a ROIng
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa
going concern.

* Evaluate the averall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, melnding
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findin gs. including any significant deficiencies in interna! control
that we identify during our andit,

We also provide those charged with governanee with a statement that we have complied with relevant cthical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with ther: all relationships and other matters that
may reasonabiy be thought 1 bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safegnards.

From the matters comenunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the andit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audiiors’ report uniess law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 50 would reasonably
be expectad to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication, :

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

L As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A™ 3 statement on the
miatters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2. (A)Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a) We have songht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
Ienowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those boocks

¢} The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss {inclnding other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act,

€)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 202) from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The going concern matter described under the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concem

O) paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;
/ and

176



B 5 R & Associates LLP

8) With respect to the adequacy of the interal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i

ii.

dii,

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 Mareh 2021 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 37 to the standalone
financial statements.

The Company has long-term contract for which there were no material foreseeable losses. The
company did not have any long term derivative contracts as on 31 March 2021,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The disclosures in the standalone finaneial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial vear ended
31 March 2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197( 16);

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us .

For B S R & Associates LLP
Charrered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

R

ep Batra
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date :25-June-2021 Membership No.: 099320
UDIN:21093320AAAABG9347
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of HCL Infosystems
Limited on the standalone financial staterent for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report the
following:

(i} (@) The Company has maintained proper records shawing full particulars, including quantitative details

. and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by which all fixed

assets are verified by the management in a phased manner over a period of thrée years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physica) verification is reasonable bhaving regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant o the programme, certain fixed assets wece physically verified during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(i}

(iif)

(iv)

{v)

{vi)

records of the Company, the title deed of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in
the naine of the Company, except for the immovable property mention below:
{Rs. in crores)

Particulars Gross Block Net Block
Land and Buildings at Ambattur, Chennai 5.58] 3.08

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to
books records were not material,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,

- secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iji) of
the order not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, guarantes and security
given by the Company in respect which provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable. Further, provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with
respect to loans given, investments made, guarantees and security given by the Company. Also refer
note 52 to the standalone financial statements,

As per the information and explanations given to s, the Company has not accepted any deposity as
mentioned in the ditectives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 aud the rules framed there under,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for
any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not appiicable to the
Company., '

{vii) (2) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

Ly,

records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service
tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate Authoritics,

According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, lncome-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Goods and service
tax, Duty of customs, Duty of cxcise, Value added tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2021, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us,
Service tax, Duty of custoins, Duty of excise, Value added
not been deposited by the Cotmpany on account of disputes

there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales tax,
tax and Goods and service tax which have
» except for the following:

Demand Amount . Forum where
Name of Act Nature of dues (in deposited Period to why:h the dispute I3
" the amount relates
crores) (in crores) pending
Central Excise Act, | Excise 0.49 0.02 2006-07 to 2003- Commissioner
1944 09, 2010-11 Appeals
Centrzl Excise Act, | Excise 0.21 0.02 2002-03, 2012-13 High Court
1944
Customs Act, 1962 | Customs 0.02 - 2008-08 Commissioner
{Appeals)
Customs Tariff Customs 40.49 5.00 20052009 CESTAT
Act, 1975 _
Finance Act, 1994 | Service Tax 70.94 500 2003-06, 2010-11 High Court
L to 2013.14
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 351.86 13.25 2006-2009, 2010- | CESTAT
2015
(Goods and Services | SGST 0.02 - 2018-19 Deputy
Tax, 2017 : Commissioner
Sales Tax/ Vahie Sales Tax 8.05 226 2007-08, 2008-09, | Additional
added Act under 2009-10, 2010-11, | Commisgioner
various states 2011-12, 201213, | (Appeals)
2013-14, 2014-15
Sales Tax/ Value | Sales Tax 093 017 Hld1s Additional
added Act under ‘ Commissioner
. ‘various states
Saies Tax/ Valus Sales Tax . 6.31 0.00 2007-08,2010-11, ( Assessing
added Act under 2011-12, 2016-17, | Officer
various states* 201718
Sales Tax/ Valye Sales Tax 0.36 (.06 2003-04, 2005-06, | Assistant
added Act umder 2006-07, 2010-11, | Commissioner
various states 2012-13, 2013-14,
2014-15, 2016-17
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 19.06 1.54 2003-04, 2004-05, Deputy
added Act under 2005-06, 2007-08, | Commissioner
various states 2009-10, 2010-1 1,
2011-12, 2012-13,
2013-14, 2014-15,
2013-16, 2016-17,
| 2017-18
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 10,13 1.79 2006-07, 2007-08, Deputy
added Act under 2008-09, 2009-1G, | Commissioner
various states 2010-11,2001-12, | (Appeals)
2012-13, 201314,
2014-15, 2015-16

-
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Act, [956

r_ Demand | Amount Period to which Forum whelr!
Name of Act Nature of dues (in deposited the dispute is
- the amount relatey :
Crores) (in crores) pending
Sales Tax 0.12 0.08 2005-06, 2006-07, High Court
Sales Tax/ Value 2007-08, 2008-09
added Act under
various states
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 11.74 1.34 2007-08, 2009-10, | Joint
added Act under 2014-15, 2¢15-16, Commissioner
various states 2016-17
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 8.02 2.00 2004-05, 2008-09, | Joint
added Act under 2011-12, 2012-13, Comimissioner
Varions states 2013-14, 2014- 5, (Appezls)
2016-17
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 1.37 045 2001-02, 2003-04, | Salzs Tax
added Act under 2005-06, 2006-07, | Tribunal
various states 2007-08, 2009-1g,
2000-11, 2012-13,
2013-14, 2014-15
Sales Tax/ Value | Sales Tax 0.01 0.01 2013-14 Special 4‘
added Act under ' . Commissioner
various states (Appeals)
Sales Tax/ Valge Sales Tax 24,30 53.56 2005-06, 2008-09, | Tax Board
added Act under 2009-10, 2010- 1,
various states 2011-12, 2012-13
Sales Tax/ Vaiue Sales Tax . 0.01 - 2009-10 and 2014- Inielligence
added Act under 15 Ofthicer
various states
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 0.09 - 2008-09, 2009-10 Additional
Commissioner
(Appeals
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 0.34 0.05 2008-11 Assessing
Officer
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 0.25 0.02 2008-09, 2009-10, Deputy
2010-11, 201415, | Commissioner
. 2014-15, 2016-17 {Appeais)
Eniry Tax Act Entry Tax 0.58 0.09 2012-13,2012-14 High Court
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 0.09 0.11 2001011, 2011-12, | Tax Board
2014-15
Central Sales tax CST 144 045 2007-08, 2008-00, | Additional
Act, 1956 2010-11,2011-12, Commissioner
2012-13, 201314, | (Appeals)
2014-15, 20i6-17
Central Sales tax CST 0.07 0.03 2004-05, 2005-08, Assessing
Act, 1956 2008-09, 2009- Officer
10,2010-11, 2011-
12,2012-13, 2013-
14,2014-15
Central Sales tax C5T 0.t 0.03 2003-04, 2013-14, | Assistant

2014-15, 2015-16

Commissioner
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Forum where
the dispute is

pending
Deputy

Cotnmissioner

Amount
deposited
{in crores)

Period to which
the amount relates

Name of Act Nature of dues

2003-04, 2004-05,
2006-07, 2007-08,
2010-11, 2612-13,
2013-14, 2014-15,
201516, 2016-17,
2001-12, 2012-13,
2013-14

Ceniral Sales tax
Act, 1958

2006-47, 2008-09,
2008-09, 2009-10,
2000-11,2001-12,
2012-13, 2012-13,
2013-14, 201518,
2017-1%

Ceniral Sales tax
Act, 1956

Deputy
Commissioner
(Appeals)

2004-05, 2005-06,
2006-07, 2007-08,
2009-10, 2016-17

Centrai Sales tax C8T 0.75 0.47 2005-06, 2011-12, | Joint
Act, 1956 2013-14, 2014-15 Commissioner
Appeals

Central Sales tax CST 2.68 1.43 2001-G2, 2002-03, | Saleg Tax
Act, 1956 2003-04, 2004-05, | Tribuna
2005-06, 2006-07, :
2007-08, 2010-11,
2011-12, 2014-15,
2015-16

Central Sales tax CST 2013-i4 Special
Act, 1956 Commissioner
Appeals
Central Sales tax C8T 0.66 2006-07, 2008-09 Tax Board
Act, 19355
Central Sales tax C8T 037 2004-05, 2013-14, Commercial Tax
Act, 1956 2014-15,2015-16 | Officer
Central Sales tax C3T 1.55 .46 20102-13,2013-14 Depaitment of
Act, 1956 Trade and Taxes
Centra] Sales tax C8T 2010-11,2011-12, [ ETO- Harvana
Act, 1956 2014-15, 2015-16
Central Sales tax 0.04 AVTO- DELH
Act, [958 _
Central Sales tax CST 0.02 2015-16,2016-17 | Sales Tax
Act, 1956 Officer
" | Central Sales tax 2015-16 Commissioner
Act, [056
. 279 -

Sales Tax/ Value 2004-05, 2007-08, Cemnercial Tax
added Act under 2009-10, 2010-11, Officer

various states 201112, 2002-13,
2013-14, 2014-15,
2015-16

Joint
Commissioner

Central Sales tax
Act, 1956
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Demand
Nature of dues (in

Forum where
the dispute is

Amount

deposited Period te which

Name of Act the amount refates

Crores) (in crores) pending
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 4.08 - 2015-16 Commissioner
added Act under i
various states .
Sales Tax/ Valye Sales Tax 2.85 0.13 2010-11,2011-12 Uppar Auykat
added Act under Appeals
various states . :
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 2.25 0.31 2012-13,2013-14, | ETO
added Act onder 2014-15
various states
Bales Tax/ Value Sales Tax {.00 0.01 2015-716 Senior Joint
added Act under Commissioner
various states*
Sales Tax/ Value Sales Tax 0.12 (.04 2012-14 Assistant
added Act under Commissioner
vatious states {Appeals)
Sales Tax/ Value | Salos Tox 321 0.12 2005-10 Tex Officr |
added Act under
various states .
Entry Tax Act Entey Tax 0,09 0.04 2008-09, 2009-10, | Commeroual ‘m
2010-11,2011-12, | Officer
2013-14, 2014-15
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax 0.01 0.01 2009-10, 2016-17 | Joint
. Commissioner
I
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax Q.27 19 201 -2, 2012-13, | Joint
. 2013-14 Commissioner
{Appeals
Entry Tax Act Entry Tax Q.02 0.02 2002-13, 2016-17 Assistant
Commissioner
Income tax Act, Income tax 19.95 - 2006-07 and 2013- Income tax
1961 14 Appellate
L tribunai
Income tax Act, Income tax 10.75 - 2005-2006, 2006- Commissioner
1941 07,2011-12 and of Income Tax
. 2017-18 1 (Appeals)

* Represents demand below Rg one lac,

(viii)  According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defauited in repayment
of loans or borrowings to any banks or financial instimtion. The Company did got have any
outstanding loans or borrowiugs from Government and there were no debentures issued during the
year or outstanding as at 3] March 2021,

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys ratsed by way of term
loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained, The Company has not

raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instroments). :

’}75/
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

According to the information and explanations given o us, ne material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records
of the Company, the managerial remuneration has paid/ provided by the Company in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V 1o the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order ig not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, ail transactions with the related parties are in eompliance with the Section
177 and Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions ave been disclosed
in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

Ascording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debenmures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of
the Grder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Conipany has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:11623 I W/W-100024

e

Sandeep‘Batra

Place: New Deihj FPartner
Date :25-June-2021 Membership No.: 099320

UDIN:21093320A AA ABGO347
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of HCL
Infogystems Limited for the year ended 31 Maich 2021.

Report on the fnternal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Acg, 2013

{Referred o in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements’
section of onr report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalons financial Statements of HCL
Infosystems Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2027 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in ail material fespects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to stand i

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directers are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential compeneris of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemnal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the aceounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, ag required under the Companies Act, 2013
{hereinafier referred to as “the Act™),

Auditers’ Responsibltity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal finagcial contrels with reference to
standalone financial statements based on <ur audit. We conducted our aydit in accordance with the Guidance
Nate and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of interna] financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtajn

ntaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Oyr
audit of intemal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financia controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with veference to standalone financial staternents.
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Standalone Finaacial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed fo provide reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with geeerally aceepted accounting principles, A

only in accordance with mithorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that conld have g material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Tnherent Limitations of Internal Financial cenirols with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
siatements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internai financial controls with reference 1o standalone financial slatements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

For B 8 R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116231 W/W-] (0024

i

Sandeep Batra

Place: New Delhi Partmer
Date :25-June-202 | Membership No.;: 099320

UDIN:21093320AA AABG9347
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for e year ended March 31, k023
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 of Ch in Equity for the period ended March 31, zoz1
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. HCL Infosystemns Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

L

Corporate information .

HCL Infosystems Limited (‘the Company') is domiciled and incorporated in India and publicly traded on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE’) and the BSE Limited ('BSEY) in India. The reglstered office.
of ihe Cumpan}r is situated &t 806, Slddha.rth 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019,

The Company is primarily engaged in value-added d1str1butwn of technology, mobility and consumer
electmmcproducts

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised f'ar igsue on 25.06,2021.

2. Slg:mﬁcant aecountmg poi:c.les

This note prcr\ndes a list of the significant accounting pchcles adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been congistently apphed to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. .

2.1 Basis of preparation and meéasurement

(i} Basis of preparaiion

These financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Compames Act, 2013 (the Act) [Cempames {Indian Actounting
. Standards} Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method. )

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (%) which is the functional
currency of the Company

(i) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem bas)s using historical cost convention

and on acerual method of accounting, except for the certain financials assets and liabilities which have
been measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies below,

2.2 Recent Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)

* Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or smendments to the existing standards. There is

no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021,

T 23 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Genera].lyAmepted Accounting Principles requires
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses disclosurs of contingent liakilities and contingent assety at the date of the financial -
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. The actual resulty could differ from
those estimates, An}r revision' to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future
pericds, . ;
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2.4 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management haz made the fu]lowmg estimates,
assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statement;

a}

b)

c)

d)

¢)

Property, plant é.ncl equipment

Management engages external adviser or internal technical team te assess the remaining useful lives and
residual valuz of property, plant and equipment. Management believes that th.e assigned useful lives and -

residuaal value are reasonable.

Intangibles

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of mtanglble assets. Management
believes that assigned nseful lives are reasonable. .

Income taxes
Management judgment is required for the caleulation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax )

assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual cutcome which could lead to sxgmﬁxant

- adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Contingencies

Management jadgement is required for estimating the possible outflaw of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations ‘against the Cr:m:l]:'anj-r as it is not possible to prediet the ontcome of
pendmg matters with accuracy. .

Allowance for uncollected trade receivable and advanc&i

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by

_appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off

when management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses,
which are the present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets,

Liquidated damages '

Liquidated damages payable are cstlmated and recorded as per contractual terms, estimate may vary
from actual as levied by customer.

Impairment of investments

Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not
limited ta, s:gmﬁcant ot sustained 'decline in revenues or earnings and matenal adverse changes in the
sconomic environment.

Impairment test i5 performed at entity level. An 1mpa1rment loss is recognised whenever the carrymg
amount of investment exceeds its recoverable amount.
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)

The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. To calenlate
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects curent market rates and the risks specific to the asset. The calculation
involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which include turnover and gross margin, growth
rate and net margin used to calculate projected future cash flows, discount rate and long term growth
rate. ’ - : :

Revenue recoghitio‘n . . _ ) )
e The Company’s contracts with customers eould include promises to transfer multiple products and

services to a customer, The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and
identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance
obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit
independently from such deliverables. :

Judgement is alse required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price
could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements
such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, piice concessions and
incentives, The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinet product or service from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted jn the transaction price only to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of camulative revenue
recognised will not oceur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Conrpany
allocates the elernents of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract
unless there is obgervable evidence that they pertain to one or more distingt performance obligations.

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalene selling price for a performance
obligation. In case of multiple performance obligations the Company allocates the transaetion price to
each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct
produet or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the
Company uses the expected. eost plus margin approach to alloeate the transaction price to each

" distinet performance obligation.

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at
a point in time or over a pericd of time. The Company cansiders indicators such as how customer

consumes benefits as services are rendered or who eontrols the asset as it is being ereated or existence

of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such prodnet or service,
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, ete.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Company
uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the centracts which is nsed to determine
the degree of completion: of the performance obligation. :

2.5 Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule INI to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
- equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of enrrent — non-
current classification of assets and liabilities. : : )
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2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Freeheld land is carried at historical cost. All othar 1lems of property, plant and equipment are stated at -

* historical cost less deprectatlon Historical cost incledes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
. acquisition of the items. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant

and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asget and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropnate,
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged te statement of profit and

" loss during the reporting permd in which they are incurred.

2.7

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of
assets as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end
considering the physmal condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusted
residual life prospechvely An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amncunt,

Leasehold land is amortised over a period of lease, Leasehold 1mpmvements are amomsed on straight line
basis over the peried of three years or lease period whichever is lower,

Gainz and losses on disposals are determmed by compering proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in statement of profit and loss within other income.

: Intanglble assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recdgnised when the Company contrals the asset, it is probable that fature
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably

. measumd.

At initial recognition, the separate]y acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. The cost of intangible
assets that are acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
Initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment lossea if any.

Amortisation is recogmsed in statement uf profit and loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the
amortisation methoed are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is

, significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or

losses arising from the retirement or dlspcsal of an intangthle asset are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recogmsed as income or expense in the
staternent of profit and loss.

Softwares

Softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over
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the pericd of license.
Intangible Assets are amortised at straight line basis as follows: '

Software 1-5 years
2.8 Leases.

As alessee . .

As a lessee, the Company leases many assets including properties and office equipment. The Company
previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company, Under IND AS 116, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most of .
these leases = i.e, these leases are on-balance sheet,

At commencement or on modification of a contract that containg a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component en the basis of its relative stand-alone price.
However, for leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account
for the lease and aswociated non-lease components as a single lease component . .

As alessor .

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. :

Asgets given under finance lease are femgnis;ed as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease. Inventories given on finance lease are recognised as deemed sale at fair value. Lease income is
recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the
lease.

2,9 Financial instruments
. A. Financial inetruments — Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. All financial assets and liabilities ave
initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs in case of financial assets and
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs ave expensed in the

statement of profit and loss. i

" B. Financial assets

1. Subseguent measurement
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The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Debt ingtrument
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include finaneial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets are
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are managed by
the Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair valne basis in
accordanee with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are carried in- the balance sheet at fair value with changes in fan‘ value
recognised in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised eost

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in cther income in the statement
of profit and loss. )

o Faﬁ- value thmﬁgh other comprehensive income {(FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI} if these financial
agsets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash - flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, Movements in the carrying amount are taken throuwgh OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in statement of pmﬁt and loss. When the financial sset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recogmsecl in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and reoogmsed in other
gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income wsing the
effective interest rate method.

Investment in subsidiaries
" Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in standalone financial statement.
Equity instirmments
~ The Company subsequently measures all eqmty investrnents at fair value. Dmdencls from such
- investments aye recognlsed in statement of profit and Ioss as other income when the Company's right to
Teceive payments is estabhshed.
2. Derecogmtlon
The Company derecogmses a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash ﬂuws from
the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset.

C. Financial liabilities
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1. Subsequent measurement
The subsequent mea_sui-ément of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:
Financial liahilities measured at amortised cost ' '

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortjsed
cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking Into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate method's amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

"2, Derecognition

A financial Kability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cance]led or
expires. When an existing financial Tiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

®

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to Tealise the assets and settle the liabilities simulteanecusly.

E. Derivative finaneial instruments - current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments will be held for a peried beycmd twelve months after the reporting date,
classified as noncurrent (or separated into current and non-corrent porlmns) consistent with the
classification of the underlying item. These are classified as current, when the remaining holding period is
up to twelve months after the reporting date.

F. Fair value measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appmpnate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising -
the use of unobservable inputs.

All asgets and labilities for which fmr value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level mput that is
significant 1o the falr value measurement as a whole:

Level 1-- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techmques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the ‘falr value
meastirement is directly or indirectly observabla

Level 3= Valuation techniques for which the lowest level jnput that is sx,gmﬁcant to the falr value
measurement is unobservable.

2,10 Income tax

The income tax e:fpense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
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based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. ’

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodlcall}' evaluates positions taken in tax returns with. respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It estabhshes provisions where appropriate on the basis -
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,
Deferred tax is recognised in respeet of temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and . the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is alsc recognised of carried forward tax losses and tax eredits, Deferred tax is not recognised for:
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or labilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable pmﬁt or logs at the time of
transaction; and

- Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit.
may not be available. Therefore in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognised a deferred tax
assets only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
Deferred tax assets-unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised /

‘reduced to the extent that it is probable/nc longer probable respectively that the related tax beneﬁt will be

realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the assets is realised or
the liability i settled based on the laws that have been ermcted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at lhe reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of. its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are oﬂ'set if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or no

- different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Inventories

Raw materials, stock-in-trade and finished goods are stated at the Juwer of cost and net realisable value.

Coit of raw materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of purchases. Cost of finished goods comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also inclides all other costs

-incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on the basis of

weighted average. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after dedueting rebates and discounts. Nét
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
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2.13

completion and the estimated costs necessary te make the sale.

Goods in-transit is valued inclusive of custom duty, where applicable.
Trade receivables

Trade recewables are recognised 1mtlall}r at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

‘For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
-original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to Xnown amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insigmﬁcant rigk of cha.nges in value.

2.14 Impairment of assets

a.  Financial agsets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCL The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables onmly, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recogmsed from initial recognition of
the receivables.

Non-financial assets

’ Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment, whenever events oc
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (j.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Hf such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statemnent of profit
and loss is measured by the amonnt by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the repoverable amount. The carrying amount of the
agset iy increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that thiz amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries ave reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances

-indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. S8uch eircumstances include, though are not

limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the
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economic enviromment.

Impairment test is performed at entity level. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amount of Investment exceeds its recoverable amount. .

The reccéverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell 'and valne in use. To calculate value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. .
Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants less the costs of dispoesal. Impairment Iosses, if any
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Cther 1mpa1rment losses are only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined if no fmpairment loss had previensly been
recognised, .

Non-current asgets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly pmbable The sale is
considered h1gh1y probable only when the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present
condition, it is unlikely- that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one year from the date of
the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised
once classified as held for sale. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented sepal'atel:.lr in the
balance sheet,

If the criteria stated by Ind AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Salg and Discontinued Operations” are no
longer met, the disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be -
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the azset was classified as
held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have heen recognised had that asset not been classified as
held for sale, and (ii} its recoverable amuunt at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified az held -
far sale.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of

finaneial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecared and are usually paid in accordance with the
terms with the vendors. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not

_ due within 12 months after the reposting period: They are recognised initially at their fair value and

2,17

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference hetween the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in staterrent of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees peid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn dowm. En this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent there is no evidence that it is pmbable that

. gome or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised az a prepayment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period af the facility to wh1ch it relates.
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Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial Mability that has been
extinguished or transferred to ancther party and the consideratin paid, including any non-cash assets
transferved or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as other gainsf{losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a

" material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the

T 248

effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
Tiability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. S

Provisions ave measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the réporting period. The discount Tate used to determine the
present valoe is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessinents of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.- _ : 3 .

219

b) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising frem past events; the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cantot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed cnly
by the occnrrence or nan-oecurrence of one of more vncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Foreign currency translation

(i} Functional and presentation currency

Iems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (% the functional corrency’). The Company’s operations are
primarily in India, The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's
funetional and presentation currency, ’ - .
(i} Transactions and balances

Foreign eurrency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
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from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in fomlgn currem:les at year end exchange,

rates are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are présented in the statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other fore:gn exchange gains and losses are presented in the

- statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income.

2.20

MNon-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair vatue gain or loss.

Revenue recognition

" The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable.
Sale of products
The Company is engaged into the busmess of —
«  Purchase/ sale and distribution of IT products, 1ncludmg computer hardware and mobile handsets

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the
castomer ' C

Measurement of revenue
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume

discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if arry, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

E E e

Timing of recognition

" Service income includes income from IT infrastructure managed services, break-fix services, office

automation maintenance services and managed print services. Revenues relating to time and materials
contracts are recognized as the. related services aré rendered. Revenue in case of fixed price coniracts is
recognised on percentage of completion basis of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the -

* degree of completion of the performance obligation. The contract costs nsed in eomputing the revenues -

include cost of fulfilling warranty ubhgatlons Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support
services contracts where the Company is standing ready to provide services is recognised based on time
elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the periad of performance.

. .

Revenue is based on the price specified in the sales contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. For
separately identified component from multiple element. arrangement, pertaining te the sale of services, the
revenues are measured based on fair value allocated to such component within the overall arrangement.
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Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in statement of profit and loss in
the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

Interest income

Interest income from loans and receivables (debt instraments) is recognised using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly diseounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When caleulating the
effective inferest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrament (fur example, prepayment, extemsmn, call and s:rrular options) but does not
con5|der the expected credit losses. )

. Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity |

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit cbligation at the end of
the reportmg period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calenlated armuaily by
actuaries using the projected unit eredit method.

The present velue is determined by discountng the estlmated future cash cutflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on gevernment bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by épplying the diseount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan asscts. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit and foss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included -
in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes i the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of pr_oﬁt and losg as past service cost

Provident Fund

In respect of certain employees, pr{mdent fund contributions are made to a multi-employer Trust
administered by the Company. The Company's liability is actwarially determined (using the Projected Unit
Credit method) at the end of the year and any shertfall in the fund size maintained by the Trust set up by the
Oompany is additionally pmwded for. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
in the year in which they arize. .

Defined contribution plans

Contribations te the employees’ state insurance fund, administered by the preseribed government authorities,
are made in accordance with the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and are recognised as an expense on
an accrual basis.

Company’s contribution towards Superannuation Fund is accounted for on acernal basis.

The Company makes de pgd-contributions to a Superannuation Trust established for the. purpose, 'I‘he
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Company ﬁas no further obligation beyond the monﬁhly contributions.

Other benefits

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the
end of the year end are treated as short term emplayee benefits. The ebligation towards the same is measured
at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused entitlement as at the
year end.

accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from
the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially
determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Long term employé_e benefits

Employee benefits, whicly are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year,
are treated as other long term employee benefite. The Company's liability is actuarially determlned (using the
Projected Unit Credit method} at the end of each year.

-Employee options

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase
in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the optiens granted:

» including any market performance conditions
+ excluding the impact of eny service and non-market performance vesting uondmons, ancl
2 including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period ever which all of the specified

- vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number

2.22

.23

of options that are expected 1o vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision te original estlrnate.s, if any, in statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity. -

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acqulsmcn, construetion or

production of a q_uahfymg asset are eapitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and

prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their mtended uge or sale.

Invéstment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expendlture on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share
(i) PBasic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calenlated by dividing:
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+ the profit attributable to owners of the Company
* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures nsed in the determination. of basic earnings per share to
take into account: o . : .

« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and )

« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
- assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2,24 Exceptional items
Items which are material either because of their size or their nature, and which are non-recurring, are

highlighted through separate disclosure. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide a better
picture of the Company’s underlying pecformance. ’
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5 Non-current investments

Digiife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited
Fimpi Chinchwad eServices Limited

HCL Infolech Limited

HCL Learning Limited

Legs: Impainment i the value of investment * -
Total i _ in equity instr its of subsidiarl

*+ Immpairment all for investment in lag

+Digilife Distribution and Macketing Serviess Limited
-HCL Infotech Limited
~HCL Learming Limited

Aggregate bock vnlua_.ofunquﬂled investments (nat of impairment)
Aggregate amount of Impairarent bn the value of iavestments
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Asat gro3.2021 As at 21.03. 2020
LiCeures EfCrores
36,050,000 56.05 56,050,000 86,08
42,500 o0 42,500 . Gng
‘220,300 G545 T 220,304 68,46
75:374 166.46 75274 166,46
Bg1.00 . BoLoL
890497 dg0.97
004 . 004
Amoung Amaunt,
TiCrores LiCrotes
56.05 - 56.05
468,46 ' GHEL46
e 166.96 16646
o.04 . 0.04
890.97 . 89007
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w0

1

Other non=curreot finonclal ossets

Sarnrty deposils
Aalunce with buoks margin maney

“DBalances held as margin money t ds chéaining Bank

Peferred lﬂ; azavts {net)

Delarred tax assets {rofer note 481

Advance ineome tnx agset {net of provisions)

Advancs incoma tax

[Erovigion for wems tax of ¥ 46.85 crotes (oo - ¥ 46,85 croves)]

Other non-current agseis
Unsecured

Capits] aitvenices .
Dreposits will tax authorities
Prepaid expenses

Toventories

Stoek-in-trade
[Inchedlng In-tramsit ¥ o.64 croves (2020 - ¥ 2.5 croves)]

Write - downa of | ies to net realizable valae

value of inventarie of stock-in-trade and Anfshed goods' in standalone sutemant of proflt and Joss.

‘Trade racelvables

Unsocured:
Considered good
Cradlt inaparired

Lags : Allswandr for doubiful debits
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14,64
aL.z0
3584

220

ELET)

£|

401
165,44
.03

o513

o503

A ok
L0020

¥/Crores

066
1811
RT3

" 4446

|

oM
196.94
o0

2929

[E—

ised as an expense during the yeat amounts to Nil (3020 -2 1.84 crores ). Thege were jneluded in changes in

158,38
19636
2798 15338 .

188,38
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Ak . . At
314032031 31002020
. FfCrores
1z Cash and cash equivalenty
Balances with banks . . - .
= Current aecount . 1H.52 argh
Cheques om hand - . -
Bawk deposles with orlginal warurity of three momthe o less 0.3l . na
Lemsu: Money held in kst [ - o -
. i8.52 37.56
13 Other hank balances
Depazits with remaining matority up t¢ 12 montha® . 1.07 : 17.10
Bolbaireas with banks . .
={n margin account ™ . . 4.60 . Sel
507 94.82

* incdudes ¥ 1 07 crores (2020- ¥ 17,00 erores) livn macked with Banks,

* Inchodes ¥ 1,47 coores (2050- T L35 srovea} wihich bn held in the.name f Karvy Innotech Limnited for :ind 0% behelF a_flthe Company,
14 Loans .

Unpecnred
* Comgidered gnod .
Loata apd advances to subsidlaries {refer 1ate 46) ’ 2.B1 ' _ 20326
Comsidered dowbrful
Loang wnl ndlvances be subeidiaries (refer nowe 96) OS5 . 353.04 :
Lesa: Allowanree for dowbibud b d ad o eulsidiaries X 7005 - 36300 -
N 281 20356
Noke. LT .
Ui d loan given o subsidincies is hlw o devand and careied interast rate 3. 56%-4.00% pa.
15 Odher curranl Aoanefal assets
Considered gooml
Becurity daposits 0.18 . o
Claims neeoverable from vendor z.3q - 2903
Others* (refar note 46) . . 356 408
Conskdered doubaful
o neludes smployse ad \ cloim bl 506 106
Lags: Allswance for doubtful pdvancss : Fob - f 1.06 -
Cither Fimaneidl Asmets (oo none 53}
. 16.28
* incindes ® 5,55 crores (2020 - T 2,40 crores) raceverable from relmed partiag and Nil erores (2020 - ¥ 147 crores) af business consideration receivable from Quess
Corp Limited.
16 (Hiver current assels
Unscemred
Congbdered good
Balam:leslwilh w.stoms. port trust, excise, sales tex and gopds and seevice tax Gt ) 2821
authorities . .
Adlvances to creditors ol © ogv
Prepaid expenses . 3.58 505
. Cithera pacoverable . 2.34 260
Conzidored Duubiful .
Exposits and other advances 2.2 578
Lass: Allowance for doubtful advances : __aaq - [ -
{iher corrent aassets (refer uota 593 . __2.47 .

209



HCL Inforyetems Limited _ ) ) .
Hotes bo the Standalone Fnaocial '

Asat © Asot
F1.03.2021 AL.03, 2020
—YCrores —tiCrss
- r7 Share capital .
Authorisesd
55,25,00,000 Equity Bhares (2020 - 55_.25,00,000) of # 2/= each ' . - 110,50 110,50
S00,000 Prulurmess Shaces {2020« 5,00:000) of ¥ 100/- sach . OO 500
' 11550 MY
Issued, Subagribed and Fully Faid e
22,92,09,028 Equity Shares (2020 - 32,02,00,028) of  2/-each : " 6584 : 6a84
S 6584 R
Nores:
{i) Rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only ane elnss of equity s‘hare having o face valws of ¥ 2/- each. Each holder af equity shares 1= enlitled to one vote per share held. Tha Compeny
dectares and pays dividend in Indinn Bnpees. The d]\ude.ud proposed by the Board of Directors is subjert 10 the npproval of the Shareholders in cnsulng Anmwal Genetsl
Mexting, except in vase of mlecin dividend. .

In the eeent of quuidauon of r.he Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Onmpnmr after distribution of all

b Thad ion will be in proportion to the number.of equity shares held by Shareholders.

{ii} Sbareholders hobding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Numberof % ofghares Humber of % of shaces
Comproy . - Shares Sharey .
{a) HCL Corporation Private Limited - 164.4“;399 4994 16,421,395 - 4994 .
(0 ¥AMKA Suadas Invesiments {Delhi) Private Limited -~ 42,603,194 1294 42,603,184 1254

(1)) Shanes reserved for fsue under options: . .
Information related 1o Employee Stock Opion Plan, including details of ophons Issued, ueniwd.explmd amd forfeited during the peevinws fi Tnl yex and options
outstanding at the end of the reparting period, is set out in note 41.

18 Ot‘lm-liqnily
A Reserve and smoplue -

{a) Securities premivm reserves

Opening batance . . ) : 1094.38 . 119438
Closing Belance ’ : o . . 1,194.98 139438
{h) General veserve ) .
Opening balane X : 21583 . 21583
Closing belanwe . . 211.83 215.83
" () Retpined carmings '
Cpening balance ' . (4,515.87) {1, 107.82)
Nei Laas for the year . - (204,76} (318.44)
’ of post employment benefit ¢bligation, (net of taz) {0.25) (21)
Closing habance . . Q2088 — [ubis8n

) {310.68) [105.66)

d

/
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(D) Nan-eurrent horrowings

Unsevurad:

Term Loans
= From othars

10{li} Lease obligation (refer note 42)

" Motes;

As st
21.03,2081

. 2iCrores

Ag ot
31.03.2070.

EfCroms

1. Un=ecircad Term Loass frem Others aipounling ko B 102,35 Crum (9_020 ¥ fa.75 Croves), out of which ¥ 63,22 Crores (2020 - ¥ 41.00 Croras) is shown under

current matumy of long term debt, is

© 20 Non-correnmt ilroﬁsions

Provision for gravuity and sther erployes benefits (refer note 48)

[inclndes T o145 croves (2020-0.4t) for leuve encnshment and ¥ 0.04 crotes (2020 -

Tous cl()res) other emploses banafits]

211
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12 equal quort a from d'ledxhe of the d.wbm'senmm which earcles interest ® 10.75% to 1L.24% pa.
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2

. As al Az at
. A0F.2021 o 31.03.2070
) : T/Crorer
Carrem borrowings : B
Sconred;
Leang from banks . . .
=Term bans . L. FHTGT |
= Cazh credits . . .25
s - e
Unsecured:
Loans . .
= Froun others* . gip.Hy 20.60
- From rdated parties {refer note 46} J15.00 ’ 26.00
414,89 46 .69
$13.89 . 420.66. |
Notes: . .

1. Sgexired Tarm Laan from Banks smousting to € Nil Crores (zuzo - £ 56.00 Croces) is suoured by way of (1) First pati pagsu éhatge ¢n all immovable, movoble and
intangible asects of the HCL Infosystenis Limited and it's subsid a (2} First patiap charge on all currant assett of the HCL Infosystema Limited and it's
subsldiaries (exeept leae rental receivables). {2) Megative en on twe Wdentifiad propactios, It carries inerent & 8.75% Thil_

2.Shoct Term Loan of T Wil Croses (2020 - T 79.00 Crotes ) is seeured by way of subservient charge on stock and receivables of the Company and against-snpport
firoem HCL Corporation Private Limited and cories intevest & 9.35% p.a. : . .

3. Bacured Labn ( Cash Credit and WCDL ) Forn Banks amounting w T Nil Crotes (200 - ® 100,76 Croves} are secured by way of (1) First pagi pagsu charge on g
identified & ble, ble and i ibie assets of the HOCL Infasystame Limited and its subsidiarles (=) Piret parl-passu chayge an all cwrrent assets of the HOL
Infosystems Limited and it'z subsidiaries (axeept Joage rental recebvablas) (3} Negatlva lem an twro identified properties. (q) Licn on Fixed Deqosit of¥ 101 Cra.

4. Unsecnred Iotervorporate Loah feom HCL Corpocation Frivate Limited smewnting lo ¥ 215 Crs (2020 - ¥ 26 Cra) ia repayable in 11 months from the dute of
availment of coch teanche, which is inlerest free.

5. Becured Tenm loans fram Banks amounting Lo # Nil Ceomes (2ozo - T 149,13 Erores) 1z secured by way of subserviznt charge on cnivent nssets of the Company and

against Swpport from HOL Corporation Privata Limited and lien on fioeed deposit for ® 16.09 crozes is Tep in 1 veayly fnstall : from the date of the
dhbmmy which curries interest @ 2.50% p.a, . .

&, Bhort Tarm Leen ;:ft .88 Crores (2020 - NIL Creres ) is supported by Corpocats Gurapbea of ¥ 100 Crs from HCL Corporation Private L.lmilzed end is repayable
in three squat instolment stacted fram 20th, 11th and 12¢h menth from the date of disbursement and cavries interest @ 10,25% p.a,

* Includes ¥ M crores (2020- ¥ 20,60 crores) of extended supplisr's credit. )

Mole: As at 31.03. 2021, subsidi ;c; inelnde HCL Infotech Limited, Digilife Distribution and‘M.arkn:ting Services Limited and HCL Learning Limited.

Trede payables (refar note 46)

Trwic payables . .
{a) Tolel subsranding dues of micro enterprises and amall enterprizes (refer note 38} : L8 . 6
and ) =1 ] . G

(b} Total outstanding dmes of creditors other than micro snterprises and stajl . : . )
enterprices : 38.50 34149
[includes acceptance T Nl croras (2020 - € 2519 crores)] :

4030 348.20

71
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st Axat
31032021 31.03-2080
f/Crores #{Crores.
23 Other current financial nbilitles
Curvenyt maturities of long-term debty frefer note 100)} - 6352 . 41.00.
Tuterest acerned but not due on barrowings . . =I5 . .67
Cibver payable we related partles (refer note 46) - 4.1
Deprsits L34 30
Unpaid dividéndsy deposits® - . LI
Empleyee benefits payeble s 6.37 ! B 1484
Capheel arexditors : \ . 020 : G20
Advances received againgt sale of HOL Infotech Linited (rafer Note 40} . 200 . -
I5.58 70.38

* includes ounstanding matured deposits of ¥ Nil crores (2020 - ¥ 0.47 crores) kansfarred to Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013, during the surrent year.

* 24 (hher cocrent liahilities

Deferzed revenue ' z.62 1zH
Ad: s d

from . . X . 603
Othors . 1.86 . 303
Statutery dusa poyelile ! . 1.14 339

Ad ived against M Tent assets held for snle i} 4.23 : -
o 1348 ) 146

ag  Cuwrent provisions

Provision [or gratulty and other employes benefits (tefar ot ash . : X Beaf : 520
Provition for litigation {refer nota 37 (c}} 8.8 ’ o

.84 ' i1,

[# includes ¥ 9.24 Crored (2020- ¥ 0,50 crores] lor provision for leave encashment aud ¥ 2.07 Crores (202w — ¥ 3.13 Crores} for other aployes m]

y
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Ravenue from opei-al.iom.; :

Sale af products
Sale of servives

Other income

_Interest income fron financial asset at amortised cost

- On fixed deposits (gross)

- O intercompany deposits
et profit on sale of property, plant and eqmpment
Gain on foreign exchange fluctwation
Provisions/lisbilities no longer required written back
Sarap sale
MisceBaneous income

Ch In inventories of stock-in-trade

Closing balance
- Stodk-in-trade

Opening balance

- Stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Other direct expenses

Purchaze of services

" Spares and stores consumed

Empl benefits

Salaries, wages, bonus and gratnity (refer note 45)
Contribution to provident and other funds (rofer note 45)
Staff welfare expenses .

-Finance costs

hiterest™

. Other borrowing costs

*includes ¥ 0,04 crores (2020 - T .18} interest on lease oblipations (refer note 42)

214

Yeur ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
¥/ Crores ZfCrares
217.08 1,642.97
¢.28 516
17.36 1,648.13
2.25 4.87
0.049 10.07
0.9 609 -
.22 114
14.88 195
0.14 0.13
591 11.40
23.63 20.65
©.53 24.24
0.5 iq4.29 -
24.24 55.30
-5 Sg.30
2.7 BLO6
.41 _6.33
.37 0.50
[ 6.8
2732 5442
.86 . 165
0.20 ©.47
2838 . 56.54
46.88 7001
2.62 13.36
49.50 84.27
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Other expenses

Rent {refer note 42}

Rates and taxes

Printing and statlonery ‘
Communication -

Travalling and convéyancs

Packing, freight and forwerding

Legal, professional and consul charges (refer noke 40}

‘Retainership expenses

‘Training and conference
Office electricity and water
Isurance -
Adwvecti publicity and entertai t
Hire charges '
Commission an sales
Bank charges -
Allowance fgr doubtful debts
Froperty, plait snd squipiment written-off
Repairs -
- Plant and machinery
- Buildings :
- Others
Miscellaneous

Less: Dperating cost recovered from subsidiaries

215

Year emded Year ended
FLOF O 5L.03.2020
E/Croves - X/ .
2.30 540,
27.25 139
022 30
0.55 .70
.02 337
«.61 218 -
1616 18.35
547 . 5.70
.01 .38
1.73 .93
368 6.05
0.42 a3
a.02 ¢.20
0.7 .45
1.16 457 -
3.28 4.05
.40 012
0.00 .27
006 a.53
a3 _3.16
282 270
7445 74.64
.46 783
66,09 66.81_
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Financial Ingty and Risk M.
33 Falr Value Measnrements

The carrying value of financial Instruments by categories are o5 under :

B/Crores
Fair value : Total s
Pasticulars Notes Atcost  through Profit AmortisedCost  Carying 1o Felr
. . ) ar Lass . Value
Financial Assety
Mon-current assets . - -
. () Investment in subsidiagies 3 nOg - - Touog 004
) (©.04) - - (0.04) fg.09)
(i) Others .6 - - 36,36 36.96 36,30
- - (34.85) (34.85) (34.85}
0.04q .- . 56.36 36.40 236.40
{0.04} .- {34.85) (34.80) (34.89)
Current a95ets . o
() Trade receivables T Y : - - 14,84 14,54 14.64
. ) - - (158.38) (158.38) (158.38)
(i) Cagh and cash equivalenta . Coam . - - 18.5% 18.53 18.52
- - (37.56} (37.56} (37.56)
(i) Bank halances other than (k) above 13 . - - .87 - 5.67 567
C - - (2z.38) (2222} (z2.22)
(iv} Loans 3 - - 2,81 k1.4 . oB1
: - - {20956} (20356)  (203.56)
{v) Orthers ) 15 - - ‘1628 15.28 16.28
- - (34.35) (34-33) (34.33)
. - - ] 57.91 57.91 57.91
. ) = (456.05) (456,05 ~  i456.05) .
Financial Jizhilitles :
Noo-current Habilities ' )
(1) Borrowings 19(k) - - . 903 §0.03 59.03
- - (e273) fe275) . (22.79)
{iil) Lease ohligation o 1090ii) - - -
(103} (1.03) {103)
- - 59.03 5903 59.03
O] ] (23-78) (23.78) (23.782
Current liabilities i ]
(i) Borrowings 21 - - 414.89 414.89 414.89
) - - - {420.60) (420.50) (420,60)
(ii) Trada payables . - 2d - - 40.3% 40.39 4039
' : - - (348.20) '(348.20) (348.20)
(1if) Other financial Liabilities a3 : - - 75.58 7558 ‘7558
. - (76,38 (76.38) [76.38)
- : - : 530,86 530,86 530.86
Q] [ (845.8) {845.18] (Ba5.18]

Hote: Previeus year figures are gﬁvenin Trackets,

(This space has heen intentionatly feft blank}
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34 Finaneial RiskManagm‘nenl

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, lignidity risk and credit risk. The Company's fi jal ¥isk 14 tis an integral part of
" how to plan and execute its business strategies. . .

In order to minimize any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Compan derivative fi inl instroents, such as foreign
exchange forward eontracts are entered to hedge cartain foreign cinrensey exposures. Denvatl\les are used exclusively for hedging purposes and
not as trading or spaculahve instruments,

This note exgluins the sources of risk which the entity is u:posed to and how the ennty numages the rigk and the impact of hedge acconntiogin
the Gnancial statements. .

Risk Exp Arising from Mensur t Manag it
Investments, . . .
: . Divarsification of bank
trade recelvables, . |Ageinganalysis, - deposits, investmants, credit'
Credit Risk Ir,;z;il:( .:::]iac:ehs equivalents, eredit appraisal lm;m amill‘ xu dit
loans and other financial assets
Borrowings I!racle payable and . . %vailability d ar .ﬁuﬂd credit
qumd..ity risk other financial Iiabi]liti oa Rolking cash flow forecasts };:;wiét;:mrggmliues and
Future commercizl transactions_ N
. . . Hedging percentage Forward foretgn exchange
Market risk - foreign exchange Rewsﬂmd ﬁ‘::';’-'ﬂi‘:::f;‘:’t sensitivity analysis contracts
{IHE}
f -term i t . e - : nt of hi t debt
Market rigk - interest rate . t.::.rrigble mtl;:rmmnss 2 Sensitivity analyeis : f:g:’?infm :]'gb?h o

The Company's risk management iz camed out by thia treasury and credit control department under policies approved by the senior
mranagement and acdit committee,

| ' (This space has been intentionatly e blark)
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"' ] msk A . -
Credit Risk

Credit risk arise from possibility that customer may default om its obllgatmn resulting mtu financial lass. The maximuwm exposure to the credit
risk is primarily from trade receivables. .

Cradit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank balances is not significant as it majorty includes deposits with bank and financial institutions
with high eredit ratmgs assigned by international and domestic credlt rating agencies.

The credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing the financia) reliability of the customers taking into account
“the financial condition; analysis of hlstnncal bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Individaal limits are set -aceordingly by the Onmpany's
credit cuntrol deparhnent. .

The Cnm]:la\mr uses a provision matrix to compute the expecled credit loss for trade recelvables. The pm\'isiun matrix takes into consideradion
- histerical credit losa experlence and other relevant available external and internat credit risk factors,

Following table provides agew'ise hreakup of receivables

¥/Crores
As at ’  Asat
_ . 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Not Due ) 7.88 4764
o=g0 days past due o ' : 357 ) 72.52
91-t80 days past due . - ] 0.22 14.72
181-365 days past due : : ) . o A1z 22,33
1- 2 years past due : ’ o .71 : 12.09
More than 2 years past due : o ' 20.34 27.06

3584 19636

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasanable expectation of recovery, such ae a debtor failing to engage jn a repayment plan with
the Company. The Company categorises & trade recejvable for write off when a debtor fails to make contracinal payments greater than 3 years
past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are mada, these are recognised in statement profit and loss.

The summary of life time expected credit loss allowance made on customer balances during the year and balance at the year
end is given below: .

T/Crores
As at An at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Balance at the heginaing ' ) ' - 37.98 : 35.93
Add: Provided durirg the year : : 3.28 ) 409
Less: Amounts written off . (20.06) {2.04)
Ealance at the end - 21.20 . 3708
Weighted average loss rate (in pereentage) 59.15% 18.34%

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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Fia jal Risk Ma
Liguidity risk:

Lié{uidity tisk is the rigk that the Company will not be able 1o setile or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable prics. The Company's
treasury department iz responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement managemeit. In addition, processes and policies related to such

riske are overseen by senior management. Management monit

expected cash flows.

or% the Company's net liquidity position through refling forecasts on the basis of

The table helow summarises the maturity profile of the Compény‘s financisl liabhilities based on contractual undiscounted

Noke: Previqus year figures are given in brackets.

(This space hes been intentionally left blank)
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payments
. ¥/ Crores
. Car ‘On Less than 1 12 g5 |Morethan
Particulars Va?::s demand year Years Yesri 5Years
Non-derivatives
Borrowinge
" -From Banks - - - - - -
) (373.91) {11.26) {362.62) {0.00) - -
~From Qthers 537.25 - 478.21 50.03 - -
(110.44) . {87.69} (22.75) - -
Lease cbligation - - - - - -
(1.03) - - (Log) - "
Trade payables 4030 - 40.39 - - -
’ (348.20) - (348.20) “ - -
" iOther financial liabilities
=Deposits 134 - 1.24 - - -
: (3.51) - (3.41) - - -
~Interest accrued but oot due on borrowings 2.35 - 295 - - -
_ @67 . @6 . . -
-Orther Payable to related parties - . - - - - -
(14.11) - (1411} = - -
-Capital Creditors .20 - 0.320 - - -
. {020} - {020} - - -
~Unpaid dividends/ deposits - - - - - -
. {G.47) -  {o47) - - -
-Employee Benefits Payable ' 6.37 - .37 - - -
(1482} - (14.82) - - -
-Dhers 2,00 - 2,04 - - -
' {0.00) - {0.00) - - -
‘Total non-derivative Linbilities 589.90 - 530:85 56,03 - -
(B68.56} (11.2¢9) (833.8¢) (23.78) (1.00) - (0nog)
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. 1al Risk Manag t
Market Risk

(i) Interest rate rnsk

The Company's main interest rate rislt arise from borzowlngs with variable interest rates, which gxpoaes the Cempany to cash flow I.ntarest rate: nsk.

at 31.03.2021, the Company has Nil {zo20- ¥ 11.20 crores) of borrowings with vaciable interest rates, In order to opti

regards to i and to

he i
balancing of fixed rate and floating rate financial instrurnents in its total portfolio.

() [nterest rate mk exposure

the C

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest cate changes at the end of the reporting period are a3 follows:

tate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by

¥/Crores
Apat As at
31.03.2021 | . 31.03.2020
Variable rate borrowings - 124 |
Fined rate berrowings 537.25 47306
Tetal borrowings - §37.23 484.38
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable n;be bormowings:
' $1.03.2021 31032020
Weighted .
Weighted
average Balance % of total average Balance % of total loans |-
interest loans 5
interest rate .
rate : e
Bank loans, Cash credits. - 10.03% .29 2.33%
v | Netexp to gash flow i rate risk - 11.2%
(h) Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher f lower interast expense frons borrowings as a result of changes in intevest rates.
) ¥/Crores
Impact on other
Impact on lt?ss after ta:l.. components af equity
Year ended | Yearended | Yearcnded Year endéd
aLoz.z021 | 3Logzozo | sruog.ece 31.03.2020
Interest rates - incrense by 10 basis points - (o.01) - {0.m)
Tuterest rates - decrease by 10 basis points - 0.01 - 0.01
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Bl ig] Risk M

Market Risk
(i} Forelgn currency risk

The Company’s mejer opecations are in Indis and are m INE and therefore, the Company ia net expnscd w si;nﬂicnm foreign
follows pelicies which are approved by tha sanlor

oxchangs rale exposurs arising from fomsn currency i

mansgemend and the Audit Committee, including the use of derivatives like l'ongnrexchanme forward oumrnm to hedge exposure to forelgn eurrericy risk.

rigk. The G

the

and the C

(n} g y chek exp
The Company's exp o foreign -y risk at the end of tha reporting period expressed in INR ara as follows €/Crores
SLr EUR Gar SGD
Flnancisl Ascots
Trode cetrivables #.60 - - -
. (775} - - (@67}
Cunsgh and cash equivalemts - N - - .02
i [o.00) - - (0.06}
Nat arpnsm:e 1o foreign cucrency risk (assets) | 1:':) : : ‘::7:]
Flnancial Liabilives-
Trade Payables ' . o292 - - -
(1068} 003} (001} -
Derivative Habilides
Fareign exchange forward conkzacts - - - -
. (7.5 - hd =
2.92 . . -
Nat exposure bo ﬁlmlml currency risk (labilltkes) s (003} (.01 .
Nute: Frevious year ﬁéures arg given [n brackets.
(a) Senaitivity . o
ing, table d the of net unhedged foreign eurreney exp relating 1o financial i w bly possible changes in foreign
mmncyme.hnnge rates, with all orher variables held constant, R X
Tmpact om profit o loss aml equity Lin T}
T Inn FC exch in FC ench
Change in Tatew rates
' me&n Yeurended | Year ended Yoear ended Year ended
rte} B2 | 41.03.20a1 31.03.2020 31032021 31.03:2020
USD.sensitivity o%a .28 oo | {o.28) {o.23)
_[EUR sensitivity =% - [{=X:])) - Q.00
(GBP sensith 5% = 2.00 - .00
SGD sersitkvi 5% .00 g (0.0} [0.14)

5 CaphalManasemnt.
Risk Mamgemenl
The C /5 ot

capital arg to

when
ard benefits for other stakeholdersand to maintain sn optimal capital structare te educe the coot of capital.

The capilad stracture as 8t 31.03,2021 and 31.03.2020 are a5 {ollows:

d their ability bo continuez a3 going concern =3 that they cin continue by provide rewurns for dnrehulderu

T/Crores
As at Asat
B1.03.2021 31L.03.2020
Tokal Debl 537.25 48435
Equity (244.83} (26.82)
Capital and net debt 29%.41 444.53
ing ratio 183.73% 108.96% |

)))/

{This gpace fuzs beer indentionatly laft Wank)
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36  Exceptionagl items
YCrores
P Lars - Year ended Year ended
F1.09.2084 31.03.2020
. 8. Loss on conversion of lean given to HOL Tufotech Limited into Optionally Convertible Debentures {OCD) {6.31) -
b. Provislon: against loan given to HCL Infitech Limited, HCL Learning Limited and Digilife Distebution and Marketing . '
Bervices Limited - ) . (8278 (117,36}
. Provigion forloss in sobsidiary - . (2.79) o=
d. Profit on sals of properties : . - 1505
Total i : ___(00.88) (a1

37

a) The mmprny has recognised a loss on of T 6.31 Crores, upen conversion of et balance of unsecured Ioan, into Optionally Convertible Debentures. (mfér
note 52). ’ . . ) )

b} The fompany has made provision of  84.57 crores (FY 2020 - E 117.36 crores) against loan given kv HCL Infotech Limited, HCL Learning Limited and
Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited. The Compary, idering that HCL Infotech Limited has negative net worth as on31.03.2021, due to
continuous less incurred by the entity and based on future plan of this entity, may not be able to recover the loan given to HCL lnfotech Limited upto the
value of its negative net worth. Further, in case of HCL Learning and Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited, the Company doesn't expect
significant operation over the next period, accoridngly management hased on future cash How projection has considered these losn as doubtful and created 2
provigion to the extent it is not recoverable. ’ : .

¢) The Company has made proviston of % 2.70 Crores, on aceount uf accumulated losses and etrosion of net warth of HCL Infotech Limited, o3 at the balance
sheet date. . - .

d} The company has recognised a profit on the sale of properties of # 15.65 erores in previcus financial year, .

a} Contingent labilities :
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis:
. ¥/ Crores
. As at Asat

Partlculars ) ) 31.03.2021 31.02.2020
Bales tax* : . ) 120,014 288.32
Excise® o ’ . 459.78 15475
Income tax . n . 30.60 - 307G
Industrial dispules, ivil suits and consumer disputes .- .35 Lgg

* Inchades sum of ? 135,38 crores (20z0- € 113.73 crore) deposited by the Company againgt the above,

. The amounts shown i ttem (a) mepresents the best poasible estimates arrived at on the bnms of available information. The uncertzinties and possible

reimbursements are dependent on the out come of the different legal processes which have been initiated by the Company or the claimants as the czse may
be and therefure cannot be predicted ai ly. It is not precticable for the Comp to esh the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
perding resclution of Fhe respactive procecdings. Lt ’

b) Coxrporate guarantess : . : _
Corporate guarantee of ¥ 38.35 crores (2020- ¥ 157.44 crores) was given to banks and finaneial institutinns for worlking capital facilities sanctionsd to
subsidiaries of which the total amount utilised as at 31.03.2021 is ¥ 0.98 croves {2026 - ¥ 3,19 crores).

<) Other litigations :

(i) The: Comprany hos been named in 2 snpplementary charge sheet filed with the Court with respect to a contract awarded to the Company in 2005 by the UP

© state Government, amounting ta # 2.94 crores (2020 - ¥ 2.54 erores), for the supply of computer hardware and related services under the Naticnal Rural

Health Mission and thersfore summons have been issued by the Comt. CBT special court has framed charges against the company and its employae.
Currently the procsedings has been stayed by Supreme Court. The management is of the view that the company has nat engaged in any wrong doing.

(i) 45 at 31.03:2021, the Company has ertain sales tax and other indirect tax litigation matters against which provision amounts fo % 8,38 croves (2020 - ¥
6.50 crores} is outstanding, Provision amounting to ¥ 2.72 ceores (2020 - ¥ 3.57 croves} was created and ? 0,84 erores (2020 - ¥ 1,92 crores} was ntilized
during the y=ar. .

(This. space Jues been fnbentionally left blank)
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Disclosure of Mim and Small Eaterprises based on information available with the Companir:

€/Crores
Asat Asat
@ (i} Principal amount remaining vopaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 1.89 . 671
(ii) Interast due on the above amount . 0.0 0,12
b {i) Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and ) o
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (Act) . .
(ii) Araount of principal payments made to the liers beyond the appointed day
during the year 28.89 5351
e Ampunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but -
without adding the interest specified under the Act : H N -
d. Ampont of inferest acerwed and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 054 1.22
e 4 of fucther i remaining due and payuble even in the snceeeding vears,
until such date when the interest dues ae above are actually paid e the small ) )
enterprises - -
As per provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company lias bo provide at least 2% of average net profits of the preceding three

{inancial yeara towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR": Arcordiogly, a CSR Commitiee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities a5
per Schedule VII of the Companies Aet, 2013. The Company was not required to spendfcontribute to CSR activity during the year as per Saction
135 of the Oompames Act, 2013 as average net prefit for the last three financiel year is negative. .

Remuneration to Auditors™ ) ' ¥/Crores

: ) Year ended Year ended .
. 31039021 31.03.2020
a. Statutory audit . ’ : .50 o7
b. Limited Review ’ . o ' 0.24 .51
¢. Taxaudit fees ,J'cerhﬁcatwns . o.08 a2
d. Cutof pocket sxpemes ) . 0.02 0.13

- Total . 084 148

* gacluding G5T as app]lcab]e . .

Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP):

‘The Company had previously granted options to eligible employees under the Employes Stock Uph'oh ek 2000 and Employes Stock Based

Compensation Man 2005, which were to be vested In a graded manmer aver a period of 42 and 60 monthis respectively from the date of grant and

areto be laed with In & maxi period of § years from the date of vesting.

The sharzholders of the Company in the last year's Annual Genersl Meeting held on 29th September 2o0zo had approved the amendment of

Bmployee Stock Option Scheme 2000 (Scheme 2000) and Emploves Stock Baved Compensation Plan 2oos (Scheme 2005} by inzerting the
and termination clanse™ in tha schemes, thereby Board of Directors of the Company had terminated these schemes.

. (This space has been fntentionelly left blank)
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"3: Laages:
A) Cancelable Cperiting Leases
‘Aq Legsor:
The grozs black, lated d iation and d dati L {m respect of the asvexs givet, on operating keace are as below: .
. i &/ Crores
. : Accumuloted - Depreriation °
Particalars . . As at Grosu Block Ikpmht‘lon Net Elock 4 e
Frechakd Land 3039081 L87 - X &7 -
Lo ez} . (.87} -
Building . BLOZ-2021 . 13ar - tab 12.00 025
31032020 {13.47) - {a1p) {12.38) (0.2}
Flant and Mactinesy 21032021 246 P .23 | 03
BLAOS-J0I0 (215) 5] (0.45 (0.36)
Furni i Fi d Oifir: Byu 31032021 © gz g1 . toz o.48
) : : . ILON2020 (5.22) (zfiz} (z40) (w33}
Camputers . : . ae03.30m %1 a6 .o .
aLug zozo {018) (w26} [w.an} (o)
TOTAL F1.403.2021 22,88 6.85 .03 .96

2163 2040 {23881 (5B8) fi7.00] (uag}
Nere: Provicus year Hguras are given in bracksts, . .

b) As o Lesace

The Company had talmn godown premises nndear kaze, These ave generally aot nommudlnhlelcua:sbmng Imﬂpmed peno:l upta thres years. The

lepsts are renevabla by mutwal consend end an mulually sgrezable terms, The Company Ivas given refundsble Inlerest free security deposits under -

certait leass sgrevments Thers is oo contingent rent, sublease payments o1 resinictlon impuved in the lease agreement. In terms of criteria speclfizd

In Ied A% 115 Lansas, for mmz of thete laates (ia. lmaes other tlsn with shert taom peclod or dow value azssts), preseut vaiue of al future lease
has been ised a5 right-of-me nesets ond g bease Labilities wilh the charge for depraclation o rglt-ol-use assels and

interest on tezuellai:l]ilies n Ihe mtement of prafit andlnudunng the p previoos year (refar nots 3 & 31

" And for other leases, yearly Ieose poymrepts is mq;uuxed off on straight Kne basis over kace term as Tent axpenses (nelel nabe 323

Fayments recognisad an expanee

. ¥iCroaes
Partlculars Yeor ended Yaur ended
: 21.03.202L 21037020
Dieprecialion axpense « rightsofuse aseety [Tefer noe 3} 0.56 1.68
Interest on leaze liabilithes (refer note g1) o.0g4 .8

Tt expense - short derm leares {refer note 32) . =30 590

Tola_lm\ outllow for leases duriog the year endad 35 Bareh 20213 % 1.03 crores (302 - € 149 crares).
43 Earnings pershare (EPS)
Baslr eﬁmings per-sharz lo caleulated by dividing the oot losz fir the vear attribotable to equity shareholders by the weighted sverage number of

exquily shares outstanding during the yoar. fhe los considare in ascertuining tha Company EFS rapresant loss for the year after tax. Dilwed BFS i
compiited and disciesnd weg the weighted averags number of squity and dilutive cquivalent shares cutstnding during the year seeept when results

would by antl-dilutive,
Fartieulars i i . Yearended  Vearended

- J1.03. 20, A003 5020
Loss abtar tax (2/Crofes) ’ : - {204.763 (318.44)
Weighted svetage aumber of shares outstanding in computation of Bagie Jam,anppa8 379,309,925
EFS :
Weigltted werage number of B ing in comp of gm0zl gu0.205.928
Diluisd EFG ’
Basicand diluied (of £ /- cach) {X6.22) {39.67)

44 Segment Reportiug ;

The Company pubdist deilemy innnesl #lang with the conseliduted finpucial stabemmnits in ﬂ\a anmlal wm In accordance with
Indiau Areounting Btanderd 108, Dperaling Segments, the Company hus disclosed the segmznt  finencinl

(This spune has been intenmonaly Kyt blenk)
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45 Ewmployes benwilts
(a) Defined Contrihution

‘The Comy has ised tiie Folloving i# the atate of profit and loss:
K . F/Crores
- . ' Yeor emded Year ended
21.03.2021 1032020
o 0 Sup Fund® ’ e 0.20
it o National Pension Scheme® . X 0.0 - 0.0
itution to Empl State Insurance* ) 0.00 [ 2]
o Emg Pension Scheme 1995" ’ 5.a5 L
* Inctuded in tiom to p and otber funds under Employee benefits expense (refer note 20}
(b) Definved Benefit ’
(i) Grakuity
(iiy Prevident Fund
The Campany ik to the empl Adent fand trust "Hindustan Comp Limitnd Eenpl Provident Fond Trust™ which iz managed by the Cantpaby. The
Company’s Provident Fund Trust iv exemplzed under Saction 17 o[implnyees Provident ¥und Act, 1952. Conditions for grant of ' ipulate thak th shall make

good deficiency, if any, in the intecest cote declaced by the trust vis-i-vis statutocy rate. Arper Ind AS— », Employes Bzmzﬁls, provldenl funds a2l up by employers, which requines
interest shortiall to be met by the emiplayer, needs 10 be trested as defined benefit plan.

The Trust [neludes employees of the Company as well ay of il‘s Tndian whelly owned subsidiezies. In view of te sane, it is » muhi employer defincd beuﬁlplnn,

‘The Trest bas been investing the pruv;d.anrﬁmdcomnbuhnm of the employees of it's Indian wholly awned subsidiaries in & composite mannar and th cannol be sep d
Wentifiad entity wise, . . :
Tn view uf the zame an aetuarial valuation, in L with the Ind AS-19, was cacried out at onmwsm Yeval. As per actuarial certificate there is no shorrlsl in the eacning of

fund agalnst statutorily required "Insereat cuwe guarantee® wnd accordingly, the "lishilicy nn scvount of interest rate guarantee® s ail.

In aceordance with Ind A5 19, s actuarial velurtion wes carried urt in the respact of the aforesald defised benafit plan Lased on the Eulluwms assumplinns:

Grakurty FProvident Foud

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year endurd

. 31.03.2021 1,03 20540 1032021 2L03.2020

Téscownt cate (per anooam) 4.59% 5.66% - . -

Rate of increass in enmpeasation levels ’  FO0% © RN - -

Buata of taturn on plan assets . - - - .
Expected statubory inteiest mats . - - 2.x0% B.5o%
Expeeted short fall in intereat sarnings . - - a05% 0.08%
Expected average remaining wozking lives of emplayses (yoars) . 10.25 . 14.00 10,35 14.04p

As of gLug.a02, eveEy 0.5 PeTceninge point increase / decreaze in ditmaunt rate will affect gratnity banefit obligation by appreximately by ¥ 0.01 crores,

As of 33.03.2021, every 0.5 peccentoge poinl inerease / daorease in weighted avernge rate of increasa in compansaticn levels vril] effect gratuliy banaflt oblj;nllunby
approximately ¥ .o ches,

‘The estimates of futore solary i idared in aclyaril viluati } of inMation, seniooity, pmmol.iou and othear retovant factors sach 19 supply and demand
in the employment mearket. . :

Description of Risk Exposucas:
Veluetions are based on certain gssumplions, wh‘;da are dynamic in mature and vary vec time, A such company is cxposed to varicns risks as follow-
A) Falary Increases- Actual aalaqr. ncrensca will increase the Plan’s lisbility, Tncrense in salary inceass vals aasumption in ﬂllure vaheationa will alap incranga the liabifity.

E) [nveetmunt Rizk = I Plan |5 funded then aesets Babilities mismatch & aclugl investment return on assets Jower thun the dmnumralze usuumad at the ket valuation Gabe con
itwpact the Liabiliy.

) Discount Rate : Redrction in discount rate in subseq ions can fncrese the plan's liabily.

Dy Mertality &disshlity — Avtue] deathe & disability coses proving lowar or higher than assumed i the vuluation can impact the lizbilitis.

E} Withdcawals — Actus] withdrawals proving higliee or lowae than assomed withdrawals aod change of withdrawal rates st subsequent valuations can impact Flan's liabilicy. -

/
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Recanciliaton of opening and clasing bal fthe preacat

value of thadafead benefly ohligation:
Pregent valus of ahligation at the beginning of the year
Current sevviee cnal
Inetact cott
Acquigilon athuﬂmenl
Total smountracagniaed in profit oc loss
Hwtivacisl Cghin) floss from chenge in demographle assumptions
Activarial {galn] flaza frvm changs i financial assumptions
Ih:perienue feainifloa

al amonnt m;nuulmuihm- comprehensdye Inesn
Bm!ﬁls paid
Senlopents/ivaneker in
Contributhon by pln participants
Presemt value of obligetion ui the and of the year

Reconcilintion of falr vabue of plan assets:
- Balr valwe of plan aesote ot the beginning of the pear
Enpected vetorn oi plan assets
Contribation by employer
Setibements/tronsfiac In
Contrlbution by emphaye:
Benefit paid
Actwarsi gotn/(loss) on plan aets
Differenca in opening
Fait vahue of plan anssts ok the end of the year

Conwt cecogmined for the pear 1

Current parvice cosl

Company conlrtbubien ta provident fund &
Pair service wost -

Tnlerestcost

Actuaril {gain]/lass

Inlerest grarantes lisbility

Ehoctfall o fund

Nt eost racognised for the yeor*

* Included in salarws, wiges, hanus and grarubty Jor gratuiry and contribution to provideok snd ather fands for provident fund under

and ather comprebansive income.

FiCrures
—_fsuDLGyB0L Az ot 1052029
Eratulny Provident Fund Gratuy Provildent Fund
337 ’ 13328 _3.36 4B.E0
009 LA nay . 156
LB LLET S azsgy 1.5
o238 iZ.0L a6 Azl
.01 - [ -
& WoD L2 Qi
028} 009 w03 2.7
[o.ag} 0.09 0Bl z77
(L7} (19.84) {1.26) (36,08}
- 1.36 - . 13
- ‘aka a 491
144 13066 337 15323
An a1 3103203t As at 5103 2000
* Provident Fund Provident Fund
152.56 0971
1m7R 1337
508 155
136 13
a8z 4
(19.84) (36,08}
- (131)
13073 15256
Ag At 3h07.2051 A9 Bt 3107 2000
Gratuity Providewt Fund Cratuity Prarident Fund
.09 - Ay -
- 106 - 156
.39 = 030 -
e.23) - o2t -
.09 L8 o7 L
ployee henefits axp note 30)

4 The Corapany’s contribution ko prevident fund for e year ia T 0_q0 crozes (2azn - £ 0.8z cpoqest and the remeining relates o cther celated companies &9 meatinned sbave.

The majer eavgories of plan assets are ac follows:

Crntral govermment secn s
Sinbe goveramwnl securilis
Fublhe sector bonds

Spocinl deposit schenis
Bruity

Bonk helance

Total

Az ot 31.03.2081  As al 3092020
Unguotedin % Tnquoted in %

£ the puwnl. Ling of (1 caliced benwiir obilgarion and the R valne of the plam aggerst

Presenl value of thr-obligation as at the end of the yusr
Falr valwe of plan sty at the end of the year
Amsotef{Liabillties) recognieed In the Balue Sheet
Eapcnm ncﬁustment in plan lksbillbes

inplan angets

Preseni value of dw cbligatlon ee at the end of the year
Pale velwe of plan swsets at theend of the year
Ansutaf(Llabllitles} recognisd I the Balance Shast

The Company expects to pay 2 0.80 crores in roniribubions to ity defined benefits plan in next inanglal yens,

-+ Ag thire i sumibe, the ;e hes not been recogniced in Bolance Sheet,

D)/

41.68 4333

1950 LT

ag.3L 2758
Hn G (L%

o.53 .41

Lo 021
100.00 Lo, 00

Gramity

FiCroarey

AS AL 31032020 AR M 3i.00.2020

[T 157

L) {337

028} 0.03

Frovident Fund

[ - N

Agat 303z Asal Jrog.eto
[A20.66) (133.2a)

151075 152,56
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HCL Infosystems Limited
HNotes to the Stnndalone Financial $tatements

46 Disclnsure of related partles and 3 lated party ¢ fons:
a) Company having sub {al interest:
HCL Corporation Private Limited
b) List of parties where control exists/existed:
Subsidiaries:
‘HECL Infotech Lamited
HCL Learning Limited

«}

1]

Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited .

Pimpri Chinchwad eServices Limited (holding 85% of shnreholdmg] !

HCL lngys Pte. Limited, Singapore (till 15.11.2019)

HCL Investments Ple. Limited, Singapme 3

Murture Techoologies FZE, {formerly known as HCL Infosysterns MEA FZE}), Dobai )

Others (Enterprises over which, individual having indirect significant influence over the company, has
significant Influence) and w‘lth whom transactions have hken place during the yeer andfor where balances
existy

HCL Techuologies Limited

HCL Commet Limited

HCL Taleat Care Private Livited

Koura & Co.

VAMA Sundari ]nvestmems (Drelhi} Prlvnte Limived
Shiv Nadar Foundation

Nzksha Entetprises Private Limited

Key M 5 P 1

Mr. Kapil Kapur -CFC (Mr. Kapil Kapur resigned from the pos:tmn of CFO w.e L 315t MMI 2021 and Mr. Alak Sahu was
appointed as CFO wef. 1st June, 2021

Mr. Sushil Jain- Company Secretary (Mr. Sushil Jain was superantmated w.e.f. clostog hours of 3lst Mareh, 2021 and Ms, Komal
Bathla was appmnl.ed as Company Secretary w.e. f 1t April, 2021)

M. Raj Sachdeva was appeinted as the Manager of the Company w.e £, 15t May 2021, subject to the approval of sharzholders in
the Annoal General Meeting tol:-e hd.d in Financial Year 2021-22 .

Mr. Vinod Pulyani had been appointed as the Manager of the Company w.e.f. 2gth September 2020 subject to the approval of
the shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting. He subsequently resigned from the position of the m:mager of the
Company w.e.t. 3oth April 2021

Mr.“ jan Ragl {Managing Directer, til] 31.03.2020)

g Ay L3

{This space has been inteniionathy lefi blank)
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Summary of Reluted Party dischosures

ix/Cromes)
Company kaving
A Transactions (YTD) sstantial idiarl Others [Kev Momagament Total
Lutorest* £ TAONDE
Mar-zi | Marze Mar-m1 Mar-2a Mar-21 | Mar-2o | Mar-oi | Margo | Mabesy Mar-an
Bales and Belated Income - T = 1589 ypag | agiBy - - ag.md aapdn
- HCL ion Lirmited - 003, - - - - - - - -
-HEL Comnes Limibed - - - - . Za - - - N
~ Digilife Distribution and Mathetng Serviear 1. - - nas 158y - = . - - -
= HCL Tecknolgmies Linilked - - - - Ty | afadn - - - -
= Shiv Nadar i - - - - - X1 - - -
- HCL toundation - - . - . ey N - - -
58N Trust - L] - L oo o038 - - - -
KRI Burcation Private Limitsd - . - - oog| oan] - - - -
L Avitas Poviate Limited - - . - . oad - . - -
-HCL Traming £ Swhing Services Prwvats Limited . = - L - 0T, . - . -
Mami Soodari lnvestmans (Delln] Privete Limited - . - - oo 003 . - - -
~ACL Corpewateon Private Limited - - - - - a0 - - -
Arsets Sobd - - 005 - . - - . o.08
-HEL Infotech Limued - - 045 - - - - - - -
Purchase of Gonds - - . - . [T - - - 0.4
~HCL Software Produtts Lid., - . - . N o . 5 T =
Purchase of Fined Assals - - 008 00 - - - - Ey .01
-HEL Enfotach Limuted = [ nog - - - - - - -
-DIE‘IIfgnmtrimhm and Marketing Sarvices Lamitesd - - - 001 = - - -
P P loon snd
| el v v - - #a7d 736 . - - - A1.78 1236
|- FCL Infiolech Limitea - - 733z b - - - - N -
[+ HCL Leaming Tomiteed - - 16 e - - - - f -
—Tiglfa Digtribartion and Macketing Sarvices Limfted - - 150 | - - . - - - -
Current bormwings 1aken (hes) aBo.00 ZhntHr - - - - - . 2R, shon
- HCL Corprratian Py Lad, gfpon]. 2600 - - - . - - 22000 26 i
Loans wirl Advances [justed dNeE} - - Be9.5z aTETE - - - [ i)
= HCL Infotech Linvted % - - [ - - - - . - -
WL Lenrhlng Uimited . - . Frohe) - _ - T - T
Loane st Advanees Given (Met] - - Ty ] - - - - 5.9 | 12235
~ HCL Indoteeh Limited - - - Taz31 N N - . 2 .
- HCL Leanimg Lanited - - 133 - - - - - -
- Bmpri Chlnehwade&er\dm Lid. - - .00 .00 - - - -

- gkt DN and ot Limbted - - FE3 - - - - - - -
Tnderast Charged on Losns & Advanees Glven - - LEn ] 30,07 - - - - 0.04 1007
- HCL Infatech Limited - - - - - - - - _ -
HCL Loamming Limiled - . . o7 B . . - T -

- DigHlla Dlatribulion und Markebing Services Limited - - 004 B0 - - 5 - - -
Lsterest Payable on Loans & Advance Taken 2.0% 180 - - - - - - 207 180
- BCL Covporabion Py Lid 1407 80 - - - - - - - -

Rent Recrived . - - - 5,40 pE] - - 2,40
~HCL Techinpbogws Limited - - - - 145 eof - -
~HCL Comnet Limdred - v < B . oar] - -
+ HCL Training, b S1fiing Swrvices Pt. TH, - B - - akg| aoe] - - - -
Rediuterarion - - L L - .00 342
-+, Rangergjan Reghavan - - - - - - - [T}
» bir Buchil Jain - . - - - famy [Ee
—br.Fapil Kapur - - - - - 1.8 134
ds aupremdliare - - - - - - -
) Received - - 12,65 122 - -
HCL Infotech Limiead - - 12 8.56 - - - -
-HECL Learning Limiled - - A0 Dbt - - -
= HCL Insy e Linrted, Singapor® - - - 24f - - -
Tigitie Dlstribution and Marketing Secviess 114, - - hard %1 L hd - -
~Furtare Technologies FZE, Dubai
tiiprmerly kuowm i HCE Infosysieins MES FZE) - - - ook - - - - - .
b Fald a0 | .78 - - - - - - 0-30 278
- BCL Corporstiom Po. Lid. 0.50 0,78 - - - - - - - -
D.Amnmd-:msﬁunrehledgrﬂu - - - - - - - - - -
Investovamt in aul {Grios) - - Bg141 Bonon - - - - [TTR] Sonon
Mm:]lum«m Investrent i subsidiades - - [E] 1) TS - : - - (ayon7)|  (Ba0an
Trade - - Sl 4.68 Lap| 3806 - - 576 43
Cwmant WE S15.00 DM - . - - 416,00 2 00
Laans and Advances {Orass) - - Fa.86 060 - - - - .86 E66.80
[mpairment aBowance oh pan and advances - = 103 | b - - - - 005 365301
Trade B - [ EXY 14738 [ Oy - - X1 13B.O06
Iniveatment ln Orpti Comaveilde Debenturss {008 5 - - if.0a . = - - - 1842 -
Lsher Racoverable .07 .07 381 =33 - - - - 3468 ]
Other’ EI&G - - - e - . - = - 1401
# Salas and rebied Inwme.salenlnemrcs purchase of gootts and porchose of ion Leksets HEL Infotech Limited and e Cotpany om aooount of pendlng
o system bogitiens. Further, with reqnetwoeuain ConTECts, m: (:umpmysscumnﬂy pursing, orbitrasliong To-claim amoennts due to e Company for
aerviess provided, Any amownt receivable usder such contracls upon ik f any meards Al ba d 10 HEL lndotech Limived, i3 wholly eemed

subsidiary alncz HOL Infoteeh Limited hos been ineurring sl coats with respect to the srld c.ummdsomhehallonhe Company and lse Company has bam reniting amoonts recuived from
M pespiective coslomens ko HCL lnfoteth Limited

* Prapared till 3138 May, 2008 as the Company has oigmed Shave Purchase: and St 16t Moy, 2ou8.

+ Prepamed nli 15 bev, 2010 ga tle Compay s ransfarmed #s sbares 10 otber perty 6n 15th Nov, 2019

"o Corporate e rntee utilised ¥ 1040 crores (2020 - £ 224 crotes), w50 veler note 57

Aok due o § Brom Tekled parties ave whsecured and ors repaysblefte be recsivad incash.

% Includet adj ngainst subsecipton o the 40,04 (forty Takhe) 0.1% Dptionally Convertible Debentures (0CD} of 2 fage valwe of 2000 wich
and Lnterest welver of ¥ 2MMSWM50 & 52)
SOCDW d on Falr vaboe of i ok receivaoke i recognlzad in e compamy Rnanchls In Neu of (CEromouni, asperthe

b ot under IHI A5 10 Fi Bute 53

b/
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HCL Infasystems I.Imiled
Noles to tha dak |

! E/Croves
. Year ended Year ended
Compensation of kay management persannel of the Compsny* ] ] : 31.03.2021 3L02-2020
Showt-tarm umqluyan heogfite 2.0 .42
" Tatal comp ion pald te key 1] 2.0g ja2
The amouats dizelosed in fhe table are the smounls remgmedne an umame dnri:lglhe veporﬁns petiod mlated e Mmunngenmt pelsnrmel. .
* Post employment benefit comprising gratuity, and d ag these ane d furﬂluﬂwnpunynsawhnle
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HCL Tafusystcmvs Limited
. Nots to the Standabone Financisl Statements

48 Tuxation:

{a) Priwiion fr taxa.tl.on hns been compatad by sprlying He Income Tax Acl, 1061 lnd other relevant, 1 regulotinng in 1he jurisdiction where the Company conducts the
buminess 10 the profit for the pear. Deﬁm—ed rax ansets and deferrsd x t, L x begally right axista b sal-off current ten saacta galngl cucrent Iy
Liadfiti d the doferred tax mllalllLlluu relnres and el cruthariry,

ib) Deferved Tax®:
Mujor compoaents of dekored (2 arising

g with thalr m AR AL 3103, 20831 ITS;
2/ Crmpey
A Rt Movenuart during Azut
1003 2P0 Ahet year ALo3A0E1

Asscin

Vnrwksed gaim on Wudexenion of knd

Priwision far doubtlil dettyadvamcesfother current acsets

Tax bixses

Inspack of expendinue charged to stabetnet af profil and Inss but alkwable for bax plcpose It futore vears
MAT credit

Total [4) . b

Tiffersnce bulween WDY of fixed argets ag pethoohmdnnmlnmmem Acl, 1961 ' -
Dulies, txtes mnd caac allowd for ki purpose on payment basic -
‘Tetnl (B} : -

et

et sbcforred by assets (AN(E) ’ _

"nnCnnpmw b recognized daferred tax aszetr td the extent deferred tar liohifrien mvailable. Furiher, duding the year defecred tod assets amounting M {2owo- * 359
wrores) os been wrinen off diwm 10 luck of rensonable certainty of twaeble fidure profits ugainst which defeenal by sstvts com be ulilized.

) Tncome tax exponac:

Thia kote provides an anabais of the conpouy’s ncome tax expense, and how dhe tax expenre & atfesed by snd Iiema.
i} ¥/ Crores
. Yoar ended Year andad
n»&m 31032020

Income tuuxpme = Currest lax

Current taw on proflts for e year . - -
Aubpestmeni for curmot Wax of prior peciods . - -
Total crvwent bax axpensa : . - -
Drecrease in MAT evedit . L - nze
Drecreasn ¢ (increune} i deferred 1 as s . N 5185
Total - i a _ 55
Tocome kax exgensc - . 4 5‘_‘
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- . o Fear coded Yoor anded .
Rzcondlintion of tax cxpensc amil he sccounting peefit multiplled by Indle's 16x racen 032081 ALt B
Loss brfoce income lax wpense . (aoa76} (23989
T at the Indlan tay rete of 3L.80% (2020 — 31,20%) ' R (63.BE) ro.60)
Digall far whigh 1ax not eraated .
v and wnter corp depa 2639 Fhbz
Ocheer - -
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Treorease [ (ncrease) n deferrel tax eals . . . - .85
Tar: Iesaes fiar which no deferved tax was recognised . J7.50 4200
Ineome mx expense . = - 53.55
. ' ' i . . - BfCroces
Tax Logses As Rt Asal
: ’ —JLOTEOR) | 31030020
Vpused ke osses anid depreciation for which na dukerred tak nssets has been cecognised 44555 a86.u3
Polenbio] bax bemefit @ 51.2% {2020- - 31230%) B 13901 1649
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Motes 1o Financial

49

50

f i

s5a

5%

The toard of Directors of HEL Enfosystems Limited i ks meeting beld on February 10, 2021 had approved to sell the entire shargholding held by HCL®
Iofusystems Lienited 1n HOL Infotech Limiled ok “Net Asset Value™ as o closing dobe, after sequiving ihe undestohlng which shall comprise of the

businges lating bo two specific projects through a business transfer ngresment, cetain other assets and liabilities theough assignment deed and HCL

Investrnents Pie., Singapore & its siep down aubs|dioty through 4 share purchase ngresment, Drmedited net asset valut of HCL Infitech Limited poat

thiscarve out a5 on 30 September 2020 is ¥ 147 Cts. The salz will be made ta Naveso Consulting Pyt Lid besed on the teoms and condilinns a&

in share purchase ageoement dated Februacy 10, 2021. Cou af the customers of our key defense projeet which i forming part of the deal as noked uste

rainkain status.qua and forther explore albernative options, The Company & io active discussion with the imvestar sad the customer end this

trarraa::lmn Is expectad to lake longer time thm xpetod initially with of change in terms, Smu'. the cloaurs of mansaction is yobjeet to cerain

ok which ar jid hztantive Lo nature, the yecounting effuct of the abo Jom has oot been fdered in these

financiel Stateroerts. - .

The Boavd of Dircetors of the Oompany in their meeting held on Marck 23, 2021, has appmd ] m Ietlm for waiver of interest 6 Unsecurcd Laan,

of % 228,58 Crotes to the HOL Infotech Limiled, a wholly owncd subsidiacy. Due b ditiens In 1he market, HCL Infutech
Limited, ks been euffaring Tosees gines Inception, thecefora the cnmpnmjr hag smpped recognizing interest income on sald unsecured Loam since
Detober 2615. Accordingly, e arcounting effect of the abowve ion hag not been fdeced o thee: financial matements

Praperty, plunt ond eequi held for snle

1o erder to raduce Compamy's debt obligations, the Company hos detided to menstee Company owned pripecties |t a phosed mpnner. Severa! uf
Company'’s prapertles are not being fally utilized due to thanges wn tha busiess of the Company. Pursiant to the Bonrd approvel dated Jonuary 23,
gy, blay (8, 2023 and Moy 27, 2091, the Company has jntended to dispoce the four propertiss located in Mobali, Sectar-11 Neida, Sederapet and
Hyderwbad, having gresa eartying mount of % 19,86 erores, Recumalated depreciation of 2 4.81 crores and aat earrying amoum of 3 15.05 cores, fara
vansidecaiion of % 79,86 croren

Cul of sbovementioned four proparties, the Company has sabl three peoperties locoted in Mohali, Seetor-n Hokls and Sederapet oy on the dale of

. approvat of the finoncial stabements for issue. Far ano property loested o Hydeabad, e Campany hag idenified the buyer ami traneber the thile of

such property is exocted in the near fature,

The Beard of Directors of tha Company in its meeting hekl om hdnn:ll 23, 2021, had d tn odjust 1hve  Jnan ad! 1 to HCL Infolech
Limited, o wholly-twncd sebeidiocy, amonnting.te ¥ 4oér crores, against th» subseription maney pavable by the Company ta HCL Infotach Lirited, far.
subscription of the 40,00,000 (farty lokhs) 0.1% Optienally Convertible Tict (2CD} of o fves veluo of %4006 cach (indian Rupees Cne thousnod
anly} issued, oa private placement basis o the Company, pursunont 16 torms of OCT1 Subserlpiion Agreement dated March 51, 2081 betweon the
Company and HCL Infatech Limited. As Jagally advised, the issuance of 0.1% OCDs does nat meet the definitio of lews as envisaged under section 186
oftha Campanles Act, 2013 and aceocdingly lhe Cammpany is of the view thal the above iransaction I outside the purview of the sfaresaid seetion,

Furiher the company has recogniscd o loss on of ¥ 6,51 Crozes, opon iom of nat bl | lean inte OC1Y. [Refer npde 363

The Company and HCL Infateeh Limited, hos agreed that the 0C1s es mantionod in oote 5a; issued to 1he Compams shall by redeemed anly feors and 1o
the extent of the praceads from certoin apecificd book rw:ivnbles nnd faverable awnria reeehvd by the HCL {nfotoch Limiled in avcordance with the
tess gel oot in The OTD Subscription A y BEL Infeteeh Limited, hos transfecred it rghts to rmoeedve eash Bows frem those

pecified book receivnlibes and s :ma.:da o tho Cnmpany ami the aforesaid keansaction meew the poas-thraugh arcangement crlterin, a3 per the
requirements of [nd AS 109 Finonciol Instruments. l‘herefum, The outmndm,g bnlance of specified books reoeivables of ¥ 18,92 Crores (including
amount of ¥ 8.67 Crores of the contract asets) hag boeo derevog in the £ of HOL Infotech Limited and recognived by the
Company rgringt the value of OCDs o

Based on the detailed uisesstaent pecformed by Magogement which plso included, wherever eonsidered macessary, parforming reconcilintion with fhe
partins and obkuining legal apinion, the Compony has credived it Stabment of Profit and Loss with 1988 Conpes, for the year ended March 3i,an21

 Lzoets T 1.95 Cromes), on aceeunt of weile back of eatain ald payablesand provisions.

The Beard of Directérs of the Compony in its meeting helld on Augnst v, 2020, approved the mezger of HCL Learaing Limited apd Digilifa Dlsu'l‘budon
and Marketing Services Livmited (DDMS), wholly owned subsidfaries of the Campaay, ‘with HCL Infosystems Limited The peopoesd moarger is for the
purpnsn of simplifying the group structure. A3 purt of the ongoioy eotlenefzstion. of e bualness, the leataing busineas ond th distribution business are
being seuled down, As o reault, separabe satiies for thesa bosimesas, iy, HCL Learning Limited for learning business ond DDMS for distribtion
Busines, sore no konger requhed An application was filed before the Hon'ble Fational Company Luw Tribuwol {'NCLT') at MNew Dalhi Bench oo 21

ber z0zo for ohtai rion of MOLT on the proposed mesger.
Fince, the oforesnid Schere ik subject to appmval from mn::emed Tegnlatory authogities whicl ixe 1 be the g effect of
the above Scheme has net been idered in these i :

Tha Board of Directors of the Company in ite mesting held en Aagust 05, 2619 app ] 12 el 1he srytive sharehaldlop hekl by HCL Leacning Limoled
(n Subsldiery of HOL tnksystame Limied) in HCL Insys Pte Ltd Singapore (slep swbsidiand, after the tmsfer #f the tratding hnainess nnd the

bridinry Murture Technologies FZE o HCL L Pre Lid (subsidlary of HOL Infolech Eimited). The sale hor Been meatle 1o POCW Solutions L
[nratuhl comeideralfom of % 303 35 crooree. Tiwe boapsaction was cnmplemdon November 15, 2018

{Thie ooy s been intenifonally feft blenk}
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A at Mesch 31, 201, the Company 136 accumulated lomes and s net worth has been fully craded, the Company has incurred a ned Toss of T an4.76 Crores, during the eucrent year
(March 31, 2020 ® 21344 Cromes) and Fe O /s eurvent llabil dod ils curvent assots by ¥ 46132 Croves (March 21, 20a0: % 544,88 Croves) a0 ek March 1, 2021 The
Toases are primarily s & sesubt of delayed receipts oo certuin gystem i i uls, certuin historical Jose macyin glow-dawn of distriburion businesses and finance
costy, The manngement of tha Compe iy, i& purcuing strategies which include scale e of loss-makiog busioessey like scal ing dovn of the distriuten business (cofer note 563, sule
of vertiin etivg amd] reduction in ling delyts, T epure the necassary financial sppost for ks cperations, the Board of Direcbis of HCL Corparstion Private
Limited hag approved support (in the form of and d baams) 1o the Company upto ¥ 1,500 Crores. This had heen approveil by tha shareholdecs of the
Compony, vide 1heic resalytion datad Saprember 14, 2u17. € Jeriog the abive support, thve Canpany’s nonaganent aad the Brard of D have & exp fan Hiot
the Compony will ba able b realie its aseets and disdiargs im 1 and libilikizs aa they fall due in the near fatnee in 1he normal coarse ofbusiness, Aceordingly,
theso financial have reen preparcd an a going eooceen bosks, . o

I i of tha cuirent Brwncial stresa Fsoed by the Enterprise ond Cousunver Dstribation businesses resubdsy i decline in sales and increose in keses, the Baard of Dixeetars hod
‘wppoiled a mputed independsnl l6ing rim o vevew thenr businesies, Besed on the report of the sonsuliing firm ant (ke joputs of the management beat, the Board of
Dirscers in their zeeting dated Janmucy 27, 2020 declded thet because of low margin conlmets, lough matkst lbiond ar! the enerent financial position of the Cotapony, the
Dintibubion businesses of the Company were oot financalk irabls. ¢ uzntly, the Board | in order to lidt Fature fmancial #osses, the Enterprise and
o ihartion Business hag been suk ulky sealed down dutlog Ihe year.

Miaimgatnant bebieves that [t has taken indo sccount ail the possille impacts of known events arising fram CUVID-19 pandemic in the ion of these Fal In
evobunting the irpact of COVID-15 on the Company’s abllity to continve pa & going concern, the munogement bas sssessed tha impact oa ite husiness and the sacndng vahe of ils
BNy aRsME of prop Plane and role bles oo other Tecaivatite balstces, The impac asssssment of COVID-ag is o continaing procass glven the
ricectaintics assacialed with its patwre nud dnralion sud sctual Tesults say differ matecally Brow these estinates. The Compony will coarlnge to montor oy mastdal changes 1o
future econamic ennditions and any significant impact of these changes woukd be izecl in the fivancial ns ard when, 1hese materiol chongea to economsic condilions
wrige. .

For BS R & Asvocintay LLP ) Torund on bebalf of the Bost of Tircctors of
Dhar hered Acoaumients . HCL Infoaysteme Limited

—

Pawin Kumar Danwar . Koushlk Duan
Dirpctes Diceclor
iz Number - igae0 PR - cbllgmusg

W, o

Chbef Flramedal Officer

New Dielhd, Juneas, 2021 " Noidle, Jua 25, 2081
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Annexure-XII
HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED
Unaudited Standalone financial results for the quarter ended June 30, 2021
Regd.Off. 806, Siddharth, 96 Nehru Place, New Delhi 110 019.
CIN - L72200DL1986PLC023955
Phone number +91 120 2520977, 2526518-19 Fax +91 120 2523791
Website www.hclinfosystems.in
Email ID: cosec@hcl.com

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Standalone
Particulars Three months ended Year ended
30.06.2021 31.03.2021 30.06.2020 31.03.2021
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
1 |Income
Revenue from operations 309 727 7,118 21,736
Other income 776 1,431 370 2,363
Total Income 1,085 2,158 7,488 24,099
2 |Expenses
(a) |Cost of materials consumed - - - -
(b) |Purchase of stock-in-trade 441 (64) 6,104 18,148
(c) |Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade (184) 137 804 2,371
(d) |Employee benefits expense 187 398 1,016 2,838
(®) |Finance costs 531 874 1,500 4,950
(f) |Depreciation and amortization expense 49 74 130 403
(g) |Other expenses 1,389 1,927 1,071 6,777
Total expenses 2,413 3,346 10,625 35,487
3 |Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (1 - 2) (1,328) (1,188) (3,137) (11,388)
4 |Exceptional ltems (loss) (refer note 2) 6,320 (3,363) (342) (9,088)
5 |Profit/ (loss) before tax (3 - 4) 4,992 (4,551) (3,479) (20,476)
6 |Tax expense
(a) Current tax = - - -
(b) Deferred tax expense - - - -
7 |Net profit/ (loss) for the period (5 - 6) 4,992 (4,551) (3,479) (20,476)
8 |Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = (25) - (25)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - -
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = - - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss - - - -
Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax - (25) - (25)
9 |Total comprehensive income for the period (7 + 8) 4,992 (4,576) (3,479) (20,501)
10 |Paid-up equity share capital (face value per share in Rs. 2/-) 6,584 6,584 6,584 6,584
11 |Reserve as per balance sheet of previous accounting year (31,067)
12 |Earnings per share (of Rs 2/- each) (not annualised):
(a) Basic 1.52 (1.38) (1.06) (6.22)
(b) Diluted 1.52 (1.38) (1.06) (6.22)
Notes
1. After recommendation by the Audit Committee, these results have been approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on August 06, 2021.The statutory auditors have issued review report with unmodified opinion on these results.
2. Exceptional items include :
Particulars Three months ended Year ended
30.06.2021 31.03.2021 30.06.2020 31.03.2021
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
a. Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (Refer Note 7) 6,203 - - -
b. Provision against loan given to subsidiary 117 (2,453) (342) (8,178)
c. Provision for loss in subsidiary# - (279) - (279)
d. Loss on conversion of ICD to OCD (Refer Note 9) - (631) - (631)
Total loss - (a+b) 6,320 (3,363) (342) (9,088)
# The Company has made provision of Nil for the quarter ended June 30, 2021 (for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2021: Rs
279 Lakhs), on account of accumulated losses and errosion of net worth of HCL Infotech Limited.
3. As at June 30, 2021, the Company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been fully eroded, the Company has incurred a net

profit of Rs. 4,992 Lakhs during the current period (March 31, 2021: net loss of Rs. 20,476 Lakhs) and the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by Rs. 40,523 lakhs (March 31, 2021 Rs. 46,133 lakhs) as at June 30, 2021. The losses are primarily as a
result of delayed receipts on certain system integration contracts, certain historical low margin contracts, slow-down of distribution
businesses and finance costs. The management of the Company, is pursuing strategies which include scale down of loss-making
businesses like scaling down of the distribution business (refer note 4), sale of certain non-core properties (refer note 7) and reduction
in outstanding debts. To ensure the necessary financial support for its operations, the Board of Directors of HCL Corporation Private
Limited has approved support (in the form of corporate guarantees and unsecured loans) to the Company upto Rs. 1,50,000 lakhs.
This had been approved by the shareholders of the Company, vide their resolution dated September 14, 2017. Considering the above
support, the Company’s management and the Board of Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to
realise its assets and discharge its contractual obligations and liabilities as they fall due in the near future in the normal course of
business. Accordingly, these financial results have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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. In view of the current financial stress faced by the Enterprise and Consumer Distribution businesses resulting in decline in
sales and increase in losses, the Board of Directors had appointed a reputed independent consulting firm to review these
businesses. Based on the report of the consulting firm and the inputs of the management team, the Board of Directors in their
meeting dated January 27, 2020 decided that because of low margin contracts, tough market conditions and the current
financial position of the Company, the Distribution businesses of the Company were not financially sustainable. Consequently,
the Board recommended that in order to limit future financial losses, the Enterprise and Consumer Distribution Business has
been substantially scaled down during the previous financial year ended March 31, 2021.

. Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impacts of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic
in the preparation of these financial results. In evaluating the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, the management has assessed the impact on its business and the carrying value of its major assets comprising
of property, plant and equipment, trade receivables and other receivable balances. The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and actual results may differ materially from
these estimates. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and any significant
impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial results as and when these material changes to economic
conditions arise.

. The Board of Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited, in its meeting held on August 06, 2020, approved the merger of HCL
Learning Limited and Digilife Distribution and Marketing Services Limited (DDMS), wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company,
with HCL Infosystems Limited. The proposed merger is for the purpose of simplifying the group structure. As part of the ongoing
rationalization of the business, the learning business and the distribution business are being scaled down. As a result, separate
entities for these businesses, i.e. HCL Learning Limited for learning business and DDMS for distribution business, are no
longer required. An application was filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) at New Delhi Bench on
21 September 2020 for obtaining the sanction of NCLT on the proposed merger.

Since, the aforesaid Scheme is subject to approval from concerned regulatory authorities which is considered to be substantive,
the accounting effect of the above Scheme has not been considered in these financial results.

. In order to reduce Company’s debt obligations, the Company has decided to monetize Company owned properties in a phased
manner. Several of Company’s properties are not being fully utilized due to changes in the business of the Company, therefore
during the quarter ended, June 30, 2021, the Company has disposed three properties located in Mohali, Sector-11 Noida and
Sederapet, having net carrying amount of Rs.1,407 Lakhs, for a consideration of Rs. 7,610 Lakhs, resulting an overall gain of
Rs. 6,203 Lakhs. (quarter and year ended March 31, 2021: Nil). Additionally, the Company has subsequently sold one property
located at Hyderabad during the month of July 2021.

. The Board of Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited in its meeting held on February 10, 2021 had approved to sell the entire
shareholding held by HCL Infosystems Limited in HCL Infotech Limited at “Net Asset Value” as on closing date, after acquiring
the undertaking which shall comprise of the business relating to two specific projects through a business transfer agreement,
certain other assets and liabilities through assignment deed and HCL Investments Pte., Singapore & it's step down subsidiary
through a share purchase agreement. Unaudited net asset value of HCL Infotech Limited post this carve out as on 30
September 2020 is Rs 14,700 Lakhs. The sale will be made to Novezo Consulting Pvt. Ltd based on the terms and conditions
as specified in share purchase agreement dated February 10, 2021. One of the customers of our key defense project which is
forming part of the deal has asked us to maintain status quo and further explore alternative options. The Company is in active
discussion with the investor and the customer and this transaction is expected to take longer time than expected initially with of
change in terms. Since, the closure of transaction is subject to certain conditions precedents, which are considered to be
substantive in nature, the accounting effect of the above transaction has not been considered in these financial results.

. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on March 23, 2021, had consented to adjust the unsecured loan
advanced to HCL Infotech Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, amounting to Rs. 40,000 Lakhs, against the subscription money
payable by the Company to HCL Infotech Limited, for subscription of the 40,00,000 (forty lakhs) 0.1% Optionally Convertible
Debentures (OCD) of a face value of Rs.1,000 each (Indian Rupees One thousand only) issued, on private placement basis to
the Company, pursuant to terms of OCD Subscription Agreement dated March 31, 2021 between the Company and HCL
Infotech Limited. As legally advised, the issuance of 0.1% OCDs does not meet the definition of loan as envisaged under
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the Company is of the view that the above transaction is outside the
purview of the aforesaid section.

Further the company had recognised a loss on of Rs. 631 Lakhs, upon conversion of net balance of unsecured loan into OCD
during the previous financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Digitally signed

KAUSHI bykausHik

DUTTA

K DUTT A Date: 2021.08.06

17:25:19 +05'30'
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" The Company and HCL Infotech Limited, has agreed that the OCDs as mentioned in note 9, issued to the Company shall be redeemed
only from and to the extent of the proceeds from certain specified book receivables and favorable awards received by the HCL Infotech
Limited in accordance with the terms set out in the OCD Subscription Agreement. Accordingly, HCL Infotech Limited, has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from those specified book receivables and favorable awards to the Company and the aforesaid
transaction meets the pass-through arrangement criteria, as per the requirements of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. Therefore, the
outstanding balance of specified books receivables of Rs. 1,892 Lakhs (including amount of Rs. 867 Lakhs of the contract assets) has
been derecognized in the financial statements of HCL Infotech Limited and recognized by the Company against the value of OCDs.

. The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards
Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be
framed. The Company will carry out an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial results in the period in which the
Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

. The figures of the last quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial year upto March 31, 2021
and the unaudited published year-to-date figures upto December 31, 2020 being the date of the end of the third quarter of the financial
year which were subjected to a limited review.

- Financial results for all the periods presented have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised
accounting practices and policies to the extent applicable.

By order of the Board

for H

Kaushik Dutta

CL Infosystems Limited

Digitally signed

KAUSHIK by kKAusHIK
DUTT

. A
Director DUTTA  Date:2021.08.06

17:25:36 +05'30'

Place : Noida

Date

: August 06, 2021
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B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10,12th Floor Tower-B Telephone: +91 124 7191000
DLF Cyber City, Phase-Il Fax: +91 124 235 8613
Gurugram — 122 002, India

To
Board of Directors of HCL Infosystems Limited

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited standalone financial results of HCL
Infosystems Limited (“the company”) for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 (“the Statement™).

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company’s management and approved by the
Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”),prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is to issue
a report on the Statement based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements
(SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of
the Entity” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we
plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of
material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical
procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not
performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4. Attention is drawn to the fact that the figures for the 3 months ended 31 March 2021 as reported
in these financial results are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full
previous financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter of the previous
financial year. The figures up to the end of the third quarter of previous financial year had only
been reviewed and not subjected to audit.

5. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and other recognized accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the
information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including the manner in which it is to be
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

. . . . Registered Office:
B 5 R & Assaciates (a partnership firm with Registration 5t ?:Ioor, LodhaExcelus

No. BAB9226) converted into B S R & Associates LLP Apollo Mills Compound
{a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi
No. AAB-8182) with effect from Qctober 14, 2013 Mumbai — 400 011
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B S R & Associates LLP

6. We draw attention to note 3 of the Statement, which states that the Company has
accumulated losses and has incurred a profit of Rs. 4,992 Lakhs during the current quarter.
Further its net worth is fully eroded and that the Company's current liabilities exceed its
current assets as at 30 June 2021. These conditions, along with other matters set forth in
note 4, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern i.e., whether the Company will be able
to realise its assets and discharge all its contractual obligations and liabilities as they fall
due in near future in the normal course of the business. However, based upon the measures
as set forth in the note 3, including necessary financial support from a significant promoter
shareholder, the management and the Board of Directors of the Company have a
reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to operate as a going concern in the
near future. Accordingly, management has prepared the statement on a going concern
basis.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 116231W/W-100024

G I R I S H Digitally signed

by GIRISH ARORA

ARORA 5555 o530

Girish Arora
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No: 098652
Date: 06 August 2021 UDIN: 21098652AAAABC1791
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HCL INFOSYSTEMS LIMITED
CIN- L72200DL1986PLC023955
Registered Office: 806, Siddharth, 96, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110 019,
Corporate Office: A-11, First Floor, Sector — 3, Noida - 201301
Telephone: +91-120-2520977, 2526518, 2526519, Fax No.:+91-120-2523791
Website: www.hclinfosystems.in, Email: cosec@hcl.com

Sr. No.:
User ID:

Name of the creditor:

Address

Dear Creditor,
Subject: Instructions for joining the meeting to be held through VC
and for e-voting during the meeting through electronic means

In compliance with the provisions of the NCLT order dated September 17, 2021 read with the rectification
orders dated September 24, 2021 and order dated October 7, 2021, the Company is pleased to provide
creditors, facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions set forth in the notice for convening
the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors of HCL Infosystems Limited scheduled to be held on Tuesday,
November 30, 2021 at 02:30 P.M. through video conferencing as per the directions of the National
Company Law Tribunal, Court-V, New Delhi Bench.

The Company has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) to provide
the e-voting facilities.

The e-voting period begins on November 30,2021 at 02:30 P.M. and ends after 15 minutes from the closure
of the meeting. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Unsecured
creditors of the Company as on 31st March 2021, (cut-off date), may cast their vote electronically. The
voting right of unsecured creditors shall be in proportion to the principal amount due to them as on 31st
March, 2021.

The Creditors may join the meeting as per the instructions mentioned below and cast their votes using an
electronic system (‘e-voting”) which is available at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Instructions:

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Sharecholder/member’ section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

4. The e-voting particulars are set out below:

EVEN USER ID PASSWORD
(Electronic Voting Event Number)




For the first time the system will ask to reset your password.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check

box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Click on “EVEN” of company to cast your vote.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, and click on “Submit” and

also “Confirm” when prompted.

12. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

13. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

14. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote

15. If you face any problems/experience any difficulty or If you forgot vour password
please feel free to contact toll free number 1800 1020 990 /1800 224 430 or contact on
email id evoting@nsdl.co.in

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CREDITORS FOR ATTENDING THE CREDITORS MEETING
THROUGH VC ARE AS UNDER:

o v

— = \O 00

1. Creditors will be provided with a facility to attend the Creditors meeting through VC through the
NSDL e-voting system. Creditors may access the same at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under
login by using the e-voting credentials. The link for VC will be available in shareholder/member
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Creditors may access by following the steps
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link
of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu.

2. Creditors are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further, Creditors will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS DURING THE MEETING

As the meeting is being conducted through VC, Creditors who would like to express their views or ask
questions during the meeting may register themselves as speaker by sending a request to the Company at
cosec(@hcl.com and are encouraged to send their queries in advance mentioning their name, address and
PAN, to enable smooth conduct of proceedings at the meeting. Registration requests/ Questions / Queries
received by the Company on or before Tuesday, November 23, 2021 on the aforementioned e-mail id
shall only be considered and responded to during the meeting.

Those Unsecured Creditors who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting. Speakers are requested to submit their questions at the time
of registration, to enable the Company to respond appropriately.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate,
to ensure the smooth conduct of the meeting.



